Bia

BEST FOOD

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(AEASREEMRLZBERAE)
Stock Code R 21L35 © 1488

2020 +

ANNUAL REPORT ¥R







02
04
08
21
38

44

Corporate Information

NAEH

Chairman’s Statement

ERERE

Management Discussion and Analysis
B RE DT

Corporate Governance Report
HEERRE

Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EERSREEEBN

Directors’ Report

ExERE

Independent Auditor’s Report
BB AR

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FeaZHEWEE

Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERE2BR

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEBHERER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

Financial Summary

IEHE

Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report
BiE - HERERRE



02

W

CORPORATE INFORMATION

DA EH

Board of Directors

Executive directors

Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Xiaolong
Mr. Jing Shen

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence

Audit Committee

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei (Chairman)
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Xiaolong
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei

Nomination Committee

Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman)
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence

Authorised Representatives

Mr. Jing Shen
Mr. So Wai Yin

Company Secretary

Mr. So Wai Yin

Registered Office

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2020

EEg
HITES
OB ()
BN

SsEE
BUFHTES

B R M 55 &
REERE
BEXEE

EREES

REERLE ()
B R M 52 &
BEXEE

YMWEES
REESE A (L)
EYNF
ES T
REEZESE
BB ()

REERE
BEXEE

RERR
ey Tt

HEE L
RAME

HEESLE

AR EE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands



CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

N R E R (F)

Principal Office

Suite 11, 70/F

Two International Finance Centre
No. 8 Finance Street

Central, Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

Hong Kong:
Citibank, N.A.

Mainland China:
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants and Registered PIE Auditor

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Suntera (Cayman) Limited
Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3
Building D, P.O. Box 1586
Gardenia Court, Camana Bay
Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and
Transfer Office

Tricor Secretaries Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

Website

http://www.bestfoodholding.com

HEIRER
EXEPIR

2 B8R

BIBR & B AR 0 — Hf
7011 =E
FEFRET

58
EERITARRA A

R A b
PR TERT

B BX B
7 SR COE B 5 D B 5 A

HESTMERIMARNEERZER

TERODBEFERE

Suntera (Cayman) Limited
Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3
Building D, P.O. Box 1586
Gardenia Court, Camana Bay
Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

BEEROBFERTRE

FERNERBERDA
)

EFAER1835%E

B A 5418

48 1t

http://www.bestfoodholding.com

BRERBERAT —ZT=-%

FFH

03






CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

ETRBE

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Best
Food Holding Company Limited (the “Company” or “Best Food”), | am
pleased to present the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

At the beginning of 2020, the sudden outbreak of the novel coronavirus
disease (COVID-19) pandemic (the “COVID-19 Pandemic”) has put
unprecedented pressure on the food and beverage industry, which
brought a fatal crisis to most of the food and beverage enterprises. The
Group adopted flexible measures to increase income and cut down
expenditure, while actively obtaining banking facilities. Leveraging the
efforts of all employees and the strong support from the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”), all of the Group’s controlling and joint-
stock catering brands survived the downturn and promoted optimization
in respect of digitalization, brand upgrade and operation system in a
pragmatic manner during the COVID-19 Pandemic.

The management team of Best Food offered assistance to brands
located in Southern China for new shop opening in the Beijing-Tianjin-
Hebei region, which marked the first step for expansion of such brands in
Northern China. This not only aimed to enhance the advantages of the
Group in the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region, but also expected to promote
the capability in resources integration of its management team and the
overall value of its brands.

Furthermore, the management team of Best Food was dedicated to the
digitalized renovation of food and beverage groups. In terms of front-end
customer operations, digitalization contributed to a more user-friendly
customer experience. In terms of back-end data management, it boosted
operational efficiency and reduced management costs. In 2020, the
Group provided food-order-at-table and check-out-at-table services as
well as order-via-mobile-app options for a number of brands. The aim is
to develop a digitalized platform linking all brands within the Group.

Franchising is another growth driver of the Group. In 2020, Best Food
exempted certain franchise fee to support its franchisees in times of
challenges. The Group’s brands have initially entered into the intent of
cooperation with prospective franchisees by themselves or with the
assistance of the franchise team of the Group. The ability of these
franchisees in exploring lower-tier markets created the potential for the
rapid growth of Best Food.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

EREHE (H)

Prospects and Future Planning

Since 2016, the Group has embarked on the systematic expansion plan
after identifying the opportunities in China’s food and beverage industry.
The COVID-19 Pandemic has not changed the long-term development
trend of the catering sector. The Group will remain committed to its initial
aspiration and continue to strengthen its digitalization and systematic
capabilities in brand and operational empowerment in the future, so as to
unswervingly develop Best Food into a new multi-brand catering platform
on the basis of digitalized user operation. The Group is confident about
the future development of China’s food and beverage industry.

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EFR®wE (&)

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend our sincere gratitude tothe HAAEREFZEZT e MAEERSE TP E
Shareholders, customers and business partners for their strong support ¥ B EHERAEEL TR OTHE £
throughout the year. In addition, | would also like to take this opportunity — Z.OEUE o AN - AN A TREE I M & R 3 =
to thank all colleagues and staff for their persistent contribution to the B T8 H R AARNEBEL T -

Group.

On behalf of the Board REEEE

Zhao John Huan HLE

Chairman TE

Hong Kong, 25 March 2021 20213 H25H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB A A AT

Business Review and Prospects of the Group

Looking back on 2020, the year-long COVID-19 Pandemic continued in
2021 and took a toll across the entire food and beverage industry. A
number of food and beverage enterprises were severely affected or even
closed down.

In 2020, the Company has strived to seize opportunities for a successful
business rebound with corporate survival as its primary goal amid the
CQOVID-19 Pandemic. Given that over 75% of the direct owned stores
under the controlling brands of the Company are located in Beijing,
coupled with several waves of the COVID-19 Pandemic occurred in
Beijing, the operation of the Group was seriously affected under strict
policy regulation implemented by the government in response to the
COVID-19 Pandemic. Some of the stores were closed down, while the
opening of new stores and expansion of franchise business had been
carried out by the Group prudently. During the COVID-19 Pandemic, the
progress of adjustment of various brands was accelerated. All the brands
under the Group survived by applying various measures, such as
reinforcement of online operation, digitalized construction, adjustment of
store layout, optimization of organizational structure and strengthening of
organizational capabilities, in preparation for the long-term development.

As mentioned in the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2016, China’s food and beverage industry had undergone
tremendous and profound changes in market demand and supply, which
heralded that chain catering brands with the ability to provide
convenience, safety, health and fashion sense would stand out in the
industry. Best Food has begun to invest in the food and beverage
industry in a systematic manner since then.

The COVID-19 Pandemic has accelerated reshuffle of the food and
beverage industry and has heightened short-term fluctuation in financial
results. As a result, outstanding brands could be differentiated from other
competitors more quickly. Although the entire industry was under
tremendous pressure, the Group’s brands have revealed strong vitality
and some of them have even achieved growth amid adversity in 2020.
Based on the preliminary appreciation in value of the Group’s brands, the
Group has obtained, and expects to obtain new financing facilities.

The Company hereby would like to re-emphasize that it has been
attaching great importance to its long-term development. Directors and
management of the Group make decisions on the basis that the Group
would capitalize on the long-term opportunities arising in the industry,
instead of considering short-term profits based on market responses in a
short duration.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEB WD (E)

In addition to emphasizing the Group’s long-term development, the
Company would also like to highlight that the emergence of new brands
across the food and beverage industry, driven by the new wave of
consumption in China, is not a gradual progress. Instead, a large number
of brands are emerging in a bloom within a short period of time against
the backdrop of mature development of fundamental conditions. Given
its judgement on such long-term trend, Best Food establishes its
business platform, with a view to seizing the systematic opportunities in
the industry.

On one hand, Best Food focuses on upgrading brand models,
digitalization and franchise expansion to increase its business scale. On
the other hand, Best Food introduces excellent brands in the southern
region to the northern region in China through Best Food’s brand
promotion model by establishing intensive business layout in the Beijing-
Tianjin-Hebei region, building regional advantages and enhancing brand
value through high potential brands, thereby contributing revenue to the
Group.

On this basis, Best Food will subsequently further extend the team’s top-
class and extensive operation experience in the food and beverage
industry. For instance, in respect of franchise expansion, Best Food wiill
establish a unique franchising model, work closely together with
franchisees in different regions and leverage operational capabilities of
the regional franchisees with Best Food’s multi-brand “content” resources
to achieve positive results in different regions. In 2020, as affected by the
COVID-19 Pandemic, franchisees remained cautious with their franchise
expansion plans. The Group provided support to its franchise partners by
reducing or exempting franchise fees with a view to achieving mutual
benefits and long-term development through the partnership. In addition
to brand appeal, franchise expansion is based on (i) the optimization of
single-store model in terms of reducing investment costs and upgrading
store layout; and (i) provision of better services to franchisees by
enriching their enterprise resource planning (“ERP”) system through
digitalization. Currently, franchisees of controlling brands under the Group
have achieved automation ranging from value storage, inventory
inspection and online ordering.

In order to support further expansion of the Group’s businesses, in
respect of supply chain collaboration, the Group continued to lower
procurement costs by expanding centralized tenders for procurement
and sharing infrastructure facilities. In 2020, the Group continued to
organize its controlling brands to invite tenders for some of their
procurements, which has lowered the costs of raw materials. In addition,
the Group actively promoted the external sales business of the factory of
the Group, resulting in an increase in the factory’s production value and
business revenue. During the COVID-19 Pandemic, the Group also
specified the central kitchen optimization plan of its controlling brand,
HHG, and put in resources to expand its capacity. In 2020, the Group
completed renovation of warehouses and production lines of HHG, laying
a solid foundation for further expansion.

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEB WD (E)

Furthermore, the Group particularly focuses on the capacity building of
online and offline digitalized dataflow operation. In 2020, the Group
continued to facilitate the digitalization system upgrade of its controlling
brands, while dedicating its efforts on improving customer experience
and internal management efficiency. Beijing Dingding Technology Co.,
Ltd.* (b RIJBTERI AR AT]), a joint-stock company, provided
assistance to the Group in the implementation of customer operations
with a focus on the digital platform, “WeChat Mini Programs”. For HHG,
the Group implemented measures such as customer acquisition via the
use of WeChat Mini Programs, community operation, integration of
membership shared channels of various platforms, etc., hence the
number of members using WeChat Mini Programs increased steadily by
more than 50,000 users per month. Xinladao Hotpot realized tableside
ordering and billing, and started to apply facial recognition technology to
conduct works such as back office management and big data analysis.

Looking forward, the food and beverage industry in China is entering a
golden development era of unrestrained growth. The Group believes that
the unique model as well as the constantly aggressive and innovative
approach featured by Best Food will gradually create value and be
recognized by investors.

Operating Results

In 2020, the Group’s total system sales, constituting sales of all
restaurants, both owned and franchised under the brands of the Group
amounted to RMB1,626.8 million, representing a decrease of 15.0% as
compared to RMB1,913.9 million for the corresponding period in 2019.
The revenue presented under consolidated statement of comprehensive
income of the Group was RMB650.7 million, representing a decrease of
34.8% as compared to RMB998.3 million for the corresponding period in
2019. The operating loss of “HHG” and “Xinladao” was RMB64.3 million,
as compared to the operating profit of RMB32.9 million in 2019. Net
management expense of the Group’s headquarters amounted to
RMB26.1 million in 2020, increased by RMB8.7 million as compared to
2019, which was attributable to the continuous recruitment of new staff
for its digitalization and franchise departments upon the gradual recovery
from the COVID-19 Pandemic in the second half of 2020 in preparation
for the development of the coming year. The Group recorded an
operating loss in 2020 of RMB98.4 million, as compared with operating
profit of RMB7.3 million in 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEB WD (E)

In 2020, the Group’s finance expenses, net was RMB52.3 million,
representing a decrease of 13.4% as compared to 2019, including,
among others:

(i) the interest expense on lease liabilities of RMB16.7 million,
representing a decrease of 10.7% as compared to 2019; and

(i) the interest expense of the convertible bonds issued on 23
November 2018 of approximately RMB35.2 million during the year,
which was in line with RMB35.9 million in 2019.

In 2020, non-operating items that had financial impacts on the Group
were as follows:

(i) share of loss of associates amounted to RMB14.6 million, as
compared to RMB11.2 million in 2019. The impairment loss on
investments in associates was RMB24.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2020, as compared to the impairment loss of
RMB15.0 million in 2019; and

(i)  gain on fair value change on derivative financial instrument of
approximately RMB29.3 million arising from the option to issue
convertible bonds with an aggregate principal amount of HK$780
million to be issued by the Company pursuant to an investment
agreement entered into between the Company and United Strength
Victory Limited on 13 January 2020, which was approved by the
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting
held on 28 May 2020.

Based on the above, the Group recorded loss for the year of RMB151.0
million in 2020, representing an increase in loss of approximately
RMB29.6 million from the loss of RMB121.4 million for the corresponding
period in 2019. It should be noted that a loss of RMB106.0 million was
recorded in the first half of 2020, while a loss of RMB45.0 million was
recorded in the second half of the year. With efforts of raising income and
cutting down expenditure, wealth management products and balance of
cash and cash equivalents of the Group amounted to RMB151.7 million
in total as at 31 December 2020.

In the second half of 2020, the performance of controling companies
and joint-stock companies recovered in different degrees. The Company
considered that with the abatement of the COVID-19 Pandemic and the
successive implementation of the abovementioned measures, the
performance of the Group will achieve breakthroughs in 2021.

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEB WD (E)

Business Progress of Controlling Brands

HHG

In 2020, HHG continued to implement the strategy of “Activating
Organization, Streamlining Varieties, Increasing Categories, Optimizing
Quality; Capacity Upgrade, Value Realization; Customer Satisfaction,
Employee Pride” proposed in 2019 and remained focus on product
elevation and customer experience, which has made considerable
progress in boosting sales through multiple channels. With over 95% of
its direct owned stores located in Beijing, HHG was affected by the
CQOVID-19 Pandemic and recorded an operating loss of RMB18.9 million
in the first half of 2020 with a decrease of 37.5% in its system sales in the
first half of 2020 as compared to the corresponding period in 2019. The
operating loss was partially offset by the operating profit of RMB15.1
million recorded in the second half of 2020, mainly attributable to the
abatement of the COVID-19 Pandemic and the savings in labour costs
due to the systematic adjustments made on the working hours
scheduling system. As a result, the system sales recorded by HHG for
the year ended 31 December 2020 decreased by 21.9% as compared to
the corresponding period in 2019. Based on the above, the operating
loss was RMB3.8 million in 2020, as compared to the operating profit of
RMB16.3 million in 2019.

Brand Upgrade: In July 2020, HHG signed a contract with its first brand
spokesperson, Zhai Xiaochuan, a core player of Beijing Basketball Team,
with a view to rejuvenating the brand. In addition, it launched cross-over
gift packages and promotional events in various holiday seasons and on
the day when Beijing Basketball Team won the championship, which
effectively boosted the growth in revenue. In November 2020, HHG
opened its first Winter Olympic Games themed store in Beijing and
sponsored the Ice Hockey Elite Match organized by elite schools in
Beijing to further strengthen its brand image.

Digitalization Upgrade: In 2020, HHG flexibly conducted online and offline
multi-dimensional marketing, including posting short videos on Douyin (£}
&) to interact with customers, and revamped its public accounts with a
younger and more fashionable image to attract young consumers. The
proportion of orders through WeChat Mini Programs and the number of
members increased steadily month by month. In order to provide quality
services to the increasing number of franchisees, the ordering module
with stored value was introduced in the ERP system which realized real-
time enquiry of inventory, self-ordering and automatic calculation after
recharging value by franchisees and enhanced the ordering efficiency of
franchisees, laying a foundation for franchise expansion.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEB WD (E)

Product Research and Development: In February 2020, HHG launched
“anti-epidemic set meals”, which include a self-developed refreshing
drink for nourishing lungs. As official workers gradually returned to work,
HHG relaunched certain products that had gained acclaims from
customers in the pipelines based on market research, such as Spicy Stir-
fry Pot (it k&), Buddha's Feast (%&£ I %) and Vegetable Wonton (&
HARAT). Keeping abreast of the youngsters’ passion for tea drinks and
the spicy food trend nowadays, HHG also launched various products
successively such as Berry-flavored Drink (5% 82 B2 B4 8%), Orange & Mango
Tea (ERBETEERZL) and Flaky Pancake with Rattan Pepper and Pork (B
FEAF Y8, in order to meet customers’ needs.

Supply Chain: Relying on the centralized procurement center of the
Group, the Company enjoyed a centralized procurement price across
multiple brands, which reduced the costs of some staple food. In addition
to the sales of semi-finished vegetables to third party customers engaged
in the food and beverage business, HHG also launched new retail
products targeting end-customers, such as frozen breakfast, as a part of
the “omni-channel” sales. In 2020, given the food safety and subsequent
demand for capacity expansion, investments were made to increase the
area of its cold storage and upgrade its equipment.

In 2020, Xinladao carried on its structural adjustment and brand upgrade.
With nearly half of its direct owned stores located in Beijing, Xinladao was
affected by the COVID-19 Pandemic. Its system sales for the year of
2020 decreased by 44.8% as compared to 2019 while gross profit
recorded a decrease of RMB165.2 million. The operating loss of Xinladao
for the year amounted to RMB60.6 million, representing an increase in
operating loss of RMB77.2 million as compared to the operating profit of
RMB16.6 million in 2019. Among which, the operating loss in the second
half of 2020 amounted to RMB9.6 million, representing a significant
reduction as compared to the operating loss of RMB51.0 million in the
first half of the year.

Brand Upgrade: Xinladao continued to promote its new store layout and
launched new products to tap into the food delivery market. One of its
take-away products is a meal for one (i.e. cooked fish and vegetables
served with rice), targeting the fast food market. Another take-away
product is a fish pot. Hot pot products of the store will be packed in tinfoil
to preserve heat and delivered with a safe alcohol stove. It is suitable for
2 persons or above and targeting family and business gatherings.

Digitalization Upgrade: In 2020, Xinladao launched the “ordering- and
check-out-at-table” service after optimizing its menus, which enhanced
labour efficiency of its servers. Meanwhile, Xinladao opened a new Douyin
(Bl3Z) account to share its latest news with fans, at the same time
interacting with fans via its posts on WeChat public account.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEB WD (E)

Supply Chain: Through systematically organizing market-based bidding
for major raw materials and supplementary materials, raw material costs
were reduced. A supply chain system was established for major raw
materials and condiments. New products such as snakehead fin were
also launched with more new products to be rolled out successively in
the subsequent period.

Franchise Expansion: In 2020, Xinladao provided rental support to
franchisees in collaboration with external third parties. The successful
pilot operation of its first franchise store under such business model has
not only provided support for young entrepreneurs, but also driven the
franchise expansion. The first franchise store opened in Lanzhou region
filled the market gap in Gansu and reinforced its brand influence in the
northwest market, thereby reserving more strength for the brand to carry
out in-depth development in the northwest market. With the
establishment of a light store layout as the focus of its franchise
expansion, Xinladao has currently developed a small-scale business
model with low investment costs and small store layout, which are
designed primarily for franchise promotion in third- and fourth- tier cities.
Several partners expressed their interest in joining the Group’s franchise
program at the beginning of 2021.

Joint-Stock Brands

For the year ended 31 December 2020, benefited from the preliminary
results of the franchise expansion strategy and the quick rebound of the
direct operation business of various brands after the COVID-19
Pandemic, the number of direct owned and franchise stores of the overall
food and beverage business of the Group’s joint-stock brands exceeded
300 in total with a growth in system sales of 7.1% as compared to the
year ended 31 December 2019. As of 31 December 2020, the joint-stock
brands were under sound operation. The single-month sales revenue of
comparable stores recorded in December 2020 has rebounded to 83.0%
to 124.0% of such sales revenue recorded in the historical corresponding
period. Among the eight joint-stock brands, five brands recorded a
recovery rate of over 100%. The following is a summary of business data
of the investees of the Group in 2020:

In 2020, Yujian Xiaomian opened 48 new stores and recorded system
sales of approximately RMB289.6 million, representing an increase of
approximately 105.6% as compared to 2019. During the outbreak of the
COVID-19 Pandemic, Yujian Xiaomian recorded a growth despite the
adversity, which benefitted from the preliminary foundation work such as
proactive development and optimization of front-end stores and back
office information system of the headquarters, as well as continuous
exploration and optimization of store layout and product structure, and
the promotion of franchise business. In May 2020 when the COVID-19
Pandemic was relatively more serious in Beijing, Yujian Xiaomian opened
its first store in Beijing, marking the first step of its expansion in the
Northern China market. As of 31 December 2020, Yujian Xiaomian
opened eight stores in Beijing. At the beginning of 2020, Yujian Xiaomian
obtained new financing facilities from, among others, Jiumaojiu. At the
end of 2020, it attracted a new investor and commenced the negotiation
for another round of financing facilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEB WD (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020, as affected by the COVID-19
Pandemic, the system sales of West Master amounted to RMB145.3
million, representing a decrease of approximately 18.8% as compared to
the year ended 31 December 2019. At the beginning of 2020, the
management put forward the big supply chain strategy, pursuant to
which West Master had significantly reduced the cost of stores through
international cooperations along the supply chain. In order to expand the
franchise business, the management has proactively introduced external
resources and established a joint venture in 2019, which is principally
engaged in the franchise business in Beijing and Zhengzhou. In 2020, the
joint venture opened four franchise stores successfully. Since November
2020, West Master has developed the small store layout that is suitable
for third- and fourth-tier cities. As of 31 December 2020, West Master
entered into contracts with over 20 franchise stores in places such as
Shaanxi, Shanxi, Ningxia and Inner Mongolia, etc. for the small store
layout, while over 60 franchisees expressed their intention for cooperation
and seven stores commenced operation successfully.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the system sales of Sexy Salad
amounted to RMB20.7 million. It has enhanced its single-store profitability
by closing down loss-making stores, demonstrating edges in user
management and making use of online brand crossover joint promotion
campaigns. Meanwhile, it has developed new driver for business growth
by consistently providing customized catering services to major
customers. During the COVID-19 Pandemic, “Wonderlab” launched in
2019 recorded a rapid growth in sales and was favored by various
investors. It also launched new retail products such as plant-based soya
milk powder under “Oh Young Doudou” and healthy breakfast set in May
2020 with a view to building an integrated business.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the total system sales of “Pho
Nam” and “Muine”, both being brands under Yuepin, amounted to
RMB127.8 million, representing an increase of 15.5% as compared to
the year ended 31 December 2019 and realizing profits in the difficult
year of 2020. The growth amid adversity during the COVID-19 Pandemic
was attributable to the brand’s stringent control over quality and its
continuous pursuit of service standards.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the system sales of Dafulan
amounted to RMB51.6 million, which remained flat as compared with the
year ended 31 December 2019. New store layout was launched and rice
noodle were freshly made onsite, through which significant improvement
has been seen in various aspects such as store image, store area
efficiency and customer satisfaction. Dafulan has granted its franchise
rights to the subsidiaries of Best Food, and by leveraging the resources
of Best Food, it quickly opened two stores in Beijing since the end of
November 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, the system sales of Clay Pot
King amounted to RMB129.7 million. In the post-COVID-19 Pandemic
era, Clay Pot King continued to intensify its efforts and realised year-on-
year growth in the same-store sales of its direct-operated stores. While
promoting sales growth, it carried out management and control over its
expenses by implementing precise cost control and incentive strategy for
human resources, resulting in a year-on-year decrease in the proportion
of labour costs of 4 percentage points. With the preliminary effects of
various operation management strategies emerging, despite the
significant impact of the COVID-19 Pandemic, losses in 2020 still
decreased by 37.6% as compared to the year ended 31 December
2019. In order to accelerate the expansion of franchise business, Clay
Pot King introduced franchisee from Nanjing and cooperated with
developers of commercial properties, through which it has currently
successfully opened eight franchise stores in Nanjing and Hefei. These
stores were well-recognized by local consumers and more stores will be
launched in the subsequent period. Clay Pot King is currently carrying out
the negotiation for another round of financing facilities.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the system sales of Seesaw
Coffee amounted to RMB71.1 million, which remained basically flat as
compared with the year ended 31 December 2019. During the COVID-19
Pandemic, Seesaw Coffee opened the first local store in OaEli, an art
industrial park in Hangzhou, which has become an internet-famous shop
in the locality. Seesaw Coffee has adopted various marketing approaches
to increase customers’ loyalty, including communication via Douyin (£}%&),
interaction with fans via official WeChat account, launch of Seesaw x
Maison Margiela cross-over pop-up store, launch of Seesaw x Li Jiaqgi
Never’s family themed pop-up coffee shop and the Run-the-City activity
co-organized with NIKE. The Company also launched the “Easy Brew”
coffee powder, a new retail product, on its T-Mall online flagship store
under the slogan of “Cold brew for 8 hours; Hot brew for 5 minutes” to
further strengthen its online product pipeline. During the outbreak of the
COVID-19 Pandemic, the Company took advantage of the crisis to
optimize its management and strengthen the control over its costs and
expenses.

The open and customisable spicy hot pot offered by Foook was greatly
affected by the COVID-19 Pandemic. The sales revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2020 decreased as compared to that of 2019. Re-
adopting the “simplified and sophisticated” layout, Foook efficiently
consolidated its supply chain and optimized the finance model of its
stores. Foook also actively strengthened the systematic management of
stores and back office. Membership system was also launched and
accumulated a large number of fans over a short period of time. Efforts
have also been made to increase brand exposure through multiple
channels, such as launch of retail products on T-mall including instant
spicy hot pot products and sour-and-spicy noodle. On the basis of the
above, Foook opened the first single-store, which is a franchise store, in
Shenzhen in June 2020, and opened the first franchise store in
Nanchang, Jiangxi in October 2020. Foook has granted its franchise
rights to the subsidiaries of Best Food, and by leveraging the resources
of Best Food, it will complete its store layout in Northern China.

HE20200F12A831BIEFE  FEZESR
HEEABINTEETAREK - 2 KX 15K
R - FERBERH HEMEHEEHERE
BLLEREE RENECERBETERE
OB M A K AN AN B R R
ANKAELEBE L THRAUET DR #2E
EEHRBOBERRE ERBNEREEFE
T FEBEBDEEHE2019F12A318 1
FEERD376% BT INRMBFRSK
FERS ARG MEELEmEDE
MEEAFE BRIEKDEE R LA IEH
HEARMERE WESIEMHEEEY
A BEMEEERY - TERIEEETT
F—mmEAK-

B E2020F12A31B IEFE - & Mk
RAHEEBANMABBELARE HEZ
2019 12A31R EFEEARFE T EIF
HEEMMBENAE R XEERALEHE
B AEEIT RBLAE A MBERAZ
BEHEFR RIERNSERE BEMANGE
&) + # i Seesaw X Maison Margiela B & 1 B3
JE ¥ H Seesaw x Z (£ Never's family = 78
REIMILEE - ENKEAEETH T HERR
EBE EMTERSE R ERESLE
EEEEENTEERIEER MY
B AL FES)NE BasnE] 4
e rER REHEMNBBERELE
BN A BRAMEE -

EEHARAEBEEMERIBRBYERKA
B E2020F12A31THIEFEHEE KA
2019F TR - @R MENNMEIRE 5
WEBEASEERE  BPIEMEER - EiHH
BENEMERBEENRFLELERE  Lige
BEFWREHEEDH;G 2 REHLAER
BB ERRETE  HERRMEE -
BHEMNESEER  UAATIEAER
20206 A BRI FYIFE L E — K EJE N
BPFE - MN2020F 108 IEESME®
RMBE BEEELERTFLARETL
2R BEDEERNER  TRRBEILR
HFREMRD -

BRERERLR —ZT-ZFFR

17



18

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEE WD (&)

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

The total shareholders’ equity of the Group as at 31 December 2020 was
RMB1,000.7 million (31 December 2019: RMB985.0 million). As at 31
December 2020, the Group had current assets of RMB280.6 million (31
December 2019: RMB318.7 million) and current liabilities of RMB379.1
million (31 December 2019: RMB354.2 million). The current ratio was 0.74
as at 31 December 2020 as compared to 0.90 as at 31 December 2019.

The Group generally finances its operations and possible redemption with
internally generated cash flow and convertible bonds issued to
shareholder. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had outstanding bank
borrowings of RMB15.0 million (31 December 2019: 5.0 million). As at 31
December 2020, the Group maintained bank balances and cash of
RMB123.7 million (31 December 2019: RMB131.3 million). The Group’s
net cash-to-equity ratio (cash and cash equivalents net of total bank
borrowings over shareholders’ equity) was 0.11 as at 31 December 2020
(31 December 2019: 0.13).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had outstanding convertible bonds
of RMB439.6 million (31 December 2019: RMB448.4 million). Please
refer to note 23 to the consolidated financial results in this annual report
for further details.

On 13 January 2020, the Company and United Strength Victory Limited (the
“Investor”) entered into an investment agreement in relation to the
subscription of convertible bonds to be issued by the Company (the “2020
Investment Agreement”). Please refer to the sections headed “Connected
Transactions” and “Convertible Bonds” in the Directors’ Report contained
in this annual report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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The Group possesses sufficient cash and available financing facilities to
meet its commitments and working capital requirements. Considering the
Group’s ability to generate net cash inflows from its future operating
activities and the Investment Agreement, the Directors believe that
adequate funding is available to fulfil the Group’s debt obligations and
capital expenditure requirements during the 12-month period from 31
December 2020. Based on the above, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, the Company expects that it will be able to meet its redemption
obligations under the outstanding convertible bonds issued by the Company.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which include
convertible bonds, lease liabilities and borrowings, and equity attributable
to equity holders of the Company, comprising share capital and reserves.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of the property, plant and equipment improvement (31
December 2019: nil).

The Group has sufficient cash and ability to obtain banking facilities to
meet the Group’s capital and other commitments and working capital
requirements.

Significant Investments

During the year, the Company has no significant investment with a value
of 5% or more of the Company’s total assets.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of

Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures

The Group had no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Future Plans for Material Investments and
Capital Assets

Save as disclosed, the Group also did not have definite plans for material
investments and capital assets as at 31 December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2020, save for the Group’s buildings with net book
value of RMB23.6 million (831 December 2019: RMB24.1 million) were
pledged as securities for the Group’s borrowings, there was no other
charge over the assets of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (31 December 2019: nil).

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s gearing ratio was 27% (31
December 2019: 27%).

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group’s businesses are principally conducted in HK dollars, RMB
and US dollars which are exposed to foreign currency risk with respect to
transactions denominated in currencies other than HK dollars, RMB and
US dollars. Foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assets and
liabilities and net investments in foreign operations. The Group did not
enter into any forward contract to hedge its exposure to foreign currency
risk for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: nil).

Human Resources

At 31 December 2020, the Group had a workforce of about 3,352 people
(2019: about 4,090 people). The Group maintains a good relationship
with its employees, and provides them with proper training and
competitive compensation and incentives. The staff are remunerated
based on their work performance, professional experience and prevailing
market situation. Remuneration packages comprise salary and bonuses
based on individual merits. In addition, the Company has adopted a
share option scheme on 18 May 2011 and a share award scheme on 11
November 2019 to retain and provide incentives to its Directors,
employees and eligible persons, and to recognize their contributions to
the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANGE REPORT
TRERHRE

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. The Board believes that sound and reasonable corporate
governance practices are essential for the growth of the Group and for
safeguarding and maximizing Shareholders’ interests. The Company has
applied the principles and adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The Board is committed to
complying with the code provisions as stated in the CG code to the
extent that the Directors consider applicable and practical to the
Company.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2020.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as a code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. All the Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry
by the Company that they have complied with the required standard as
set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December
2020. The Model Code also applies to other specified senior
management of the Group.
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Board of Directors

Composition and role

The Board comprises:

Executive Director

Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman, re-elected at the
Annual General Meeting held on 28 May 2020 )

Mr. Wang Xiaolong (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Jing Shen

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei (re-elected at the Annual General Meeting
held on 28 May 2020)

Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence

As at 31 December 2020, the Board comprises three executive Directors
(one of whom is the chairman of the Board) and three independent non-
executive Directors. The three independent non-executive Directors
represent more than one-third of the Board. In addition, all the
independent non-executive Directors possess appropriate business,
professional accounting qualifications or legal expertise.

As at 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this annual report, there
were no relationship (including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship) between members of the Board.

The principal focus of the Board is on the overall strategic development
of the Group. The Board also monitors the financial performance, as well
as the risk management and the internal controls of the Group’s business
operations.

The Company has distinguished the roles of the chairman of the Board
and chief executive officer of the Company in accordance with code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code. The chairman of the Board and chief
executive officer of the Company are Mr. Zhao John Huan and Mr. Wang
Xiaolong respectively.

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2020

EEg

ZERAG

BFeaE:

HITESE

BB E(EE)(R2020F5 H28 H £ 77
CREBAFAXGEESBEFD)

TEESE (TTEARE)
REXE

BAFHTES

TR 4 55 A (R20204F5 F 28 H 877,27 IR &
BAFAXSESBE D)
BEXRLE

R2020F12A31H  EEE2BIE=-R 1T
EFEHFRRESFSEIR)IN=-FBL
FHMITEF - ZEBUNTESEHES
GRE=DZ Ao lkoh FTEBILIESR
TEESFAEBEZHE SEXSHMEAE
RIERER -

R2020F12ABIH R EEAFHKBH &
FeREBZHEMETCRNBER(DENE %
% Rk EMEA HBEBRER) -

EXgIZERNAEE BB RE K
R-BEFENEEAEEIUMBRARE
EEBZRBREERAMEE-

ARARERBELEREART AR EA2.1 K
HEEFSTFERARATHRAE ZBE N
KRy ARBREFEETRETHRAED
AIRBSEREERE/NRESLEE -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
J/J'_\\ A= \A$E¢ (n\ﬁ)

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and
Contributions of the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the businesses, strategic decisions and performance of the
Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising its affairs. Directors of the Board
take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

All Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company. The Directors may, upon request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held
by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution required from
each Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating
to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and coordinating the
daily operation and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.

The independent non-executive Directors also serve the important
function of ensuring and monitoring the basis for an effective corporate
governance framework. The Board considers that each independent
non-executive Director is independent in character and judgment and
that they all meet the specific independence criteria as required by the
Listing Rules. The Company has received from each independent non-
executive Director an annual confirmation or confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
independent non-executive Directors are explicitly identified in all of the
Company’s corporate communications.
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Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into an
appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, all Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meeting at least once every three years and any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold
office until the next following general meeting, as the case may be, of the
Company after his/her appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting.

The chairman of the Board is responsible for drawing up and approving
the agenda for each board meeting in consultation with all the Directors.
Notice of at least 14 days will be given to the Directors for all regular
board meetings and the Directors can include matters for discussion in
the agenda if necessary. Agenda and accompanying board papers in
respect of regular board meetings are sent out in full to all the Directors
within reasonable time and at least 3 days before the meeting. Draft
minutes of all board meetings are circulated to Directors for comment
within a reasonable time prior to confirmation.

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board committees are kept
by duly appointed secretaries of the respective meetings and all the
Directors have access to board papers and related materials, and are
provided with adequate information in a timely manner, which enable the
Board to make an informed decision on matters placed before it.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, four full board meetings and
two general meetings were held and the attendance of each Director is
set out below:

NEBEFER CANNAZBEEES
BRMABEAT & EEEEERH
mF -

Number of Annual Extraordinary

board meetings general meeting general meeting

attendance held on 28 May 2020 held on 28 May 2020

HEEES 7202055428 A 720205 5H 28 H

Name of Director BEENS ERRE BI2RRBFEAE BTz2BRRBIAS

Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman) SEEE (FE) 3/4MNete 1 11 1/1

CE

Mr. Wang Xiaolong ThgELE 4/4 11 1/1

Mr. Jing Shen SELE 4/4 1/1 11

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei TR 4 52 4 4/4 1/1 11

Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence BENLE 4/4 1/1 1/1

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei ;.7% EEEE 4/4 1/1 11
Notes : BfEr

1. To avoid conflict of interests, Mr. Zhao John Huan, as a connected person abstained 1. AR EFERE EAEEBEA LT BHOEAELER

from one Board meeting, which concerned the issue of convertible bonds under
specific mandate held on 13 January 2020 .

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on his appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Group
and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. There are
also arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing and
professional development to Directors at the Company’s expenses.

The Company provides regular updates and presentations on changes
and developments relating to the Group’s business and the legislative
and regulatory environments to the Directors at board meetings or
through emails.
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The Directors are committed to complying with code provision A.6.5 of
the CG Code on Directors’ training. All Directors have participated in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills and provided a record of training they received for
the year ended 31 December 2020 to the Company. The types of training
received are summarized below:

EFEAHBETLEERTAEBHESE
2 SF BIME ST EAB5K - # = 20204F 12 A 31
HIEFE 2BE=EHEL2EEREKEMN
BENBLREEZHBESERR YER
AARIREREMESIFINGLEE - AT
ZHEIMERBMnT

Reading Attending external
regulatory seminars/
updates programmes
HEEERTE SHEPREBENR
Name of Director EEns BEHER WmaE SER
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman) B BE L (F ) v v
Mr. Wang Xiaolong FARREE v v
Mr. Jing Shen =ELE v v
Independent non-executive Directors BIYKHITES
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei TR =R 4t 55 & v v
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence BXEE v v
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei REASLE v v
Audit Committee EXZES

The Company’s audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) was established
in 2011 and its current members include three independent non-
executive Directors:

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence

The Board considers that each Audit Committee member has broad
commercial experience and there is a suitable mix of expertise in the
fields of accounting, business and legal. The composition and members
of the Audit Committee satisfy the requirements under Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee were adopted in March

2012 and amended with effect from January 2019, a copy of which is
posted on the Company’s website.
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The Audit Committee meets regularly to review the Group’s financial
reporting and other information to Shareholders, the system of internal
controls, risk management and the effectiveness and objectiveness of the
audit process. The Audit Committee also provides an important link
between the Board and the Company’s auditors in matters coming within
the scope of its terms of reference and keeps under review the
independence and objectivity of the auditors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed risk
management, internal controls and financial reporting matters.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external
auditor.

During the year under review, two Audit Committee meetings were held.
The following matters were discussed and considered during the two
Audit Committee meetings:

(@  reviewed the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2019 and the interim report of the Company for the six

months ended 30 June 2020;

(b) discussed with the external auditor of the Company on the
independent auditor’s report;

(c) reviewed the Company’s internal control system and risk
management system and discussed with the management on the

effectiveness of these systems; and

(d)  reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function.

The individual attendance of each member is set out below:
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Number of attendance
Name of Director BEEMS R E
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei TR # % A& 2/2
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence BENEE 2/2
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei RERELE 2/2

BRERERLR —ZT-ZFFR

27



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
txRER®RE (B

Remuneration Committee

The Company’s remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established in 2011 and its current members include
one executive Director and two independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Wang Xiaolong
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei

The Remuneration Committee advises the Board on the Group’s overall
policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee ensures that no Director or
any of his associate is involved in deciding his own remuneration. The
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee were adopted in
March 2012 to conform with the code provisions of the CG Code, a copy
of which is posted on the Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the board on
the remuneration packages of individual executive directors and senior
management.

In determining the emolument payable to directors, the Remuneration
Committee takes into consideration factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and the
desirability of performance-based remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee has met during the year ended 31
December 2020 to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy for the remuneration of executive Directors, assess
performance of executive Directors and certain senior management and
approve the terms of executive Directors’ service contracts. During the
year under review, one Remuneration Committee meeting was held and
the individual attendance of each member is set out below:
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Number of attendance
Name of director EERSE HERE
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei TR 4 5 & 11
Mr. Wang Xiaolong FhERE 11
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei REHESLE 11
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Remuneration of Senior Management EREEENS M
The remuneration payable to the senior management of the Company, [ERN FAA R SR EEEBRHEREGETE
including those members of senior management who are also Directors EHSAETEEXENTMIZEL AT X

is shown in the following table by band: 5l

As at 31 December

W12 318

2020 2019
(members of senior (members of senior
(HKD) management of the Company) management of the Company)
(& 7T) (XAREREBERE) (ARFASHNEEEKE)
1-1,000,000 5
>1,000,000 4

Auditors’ Remuneration 8 GE A

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the fees payable to the RE E2020F12A31HIFEE  giAE B
Company’s external auditor in respect of audit and non-audit services — JE1E it 9 & 51 K& IF T 51 AR 75 (A1 AN 2 &) 4 B2

provided to the Group are set out below: ZYEIENNERENDOT -
RMB’000
FARY
Audit services Fi RS 2,300
Non-audit services (ESG Report Supporting) JEEIRTS (ESGHE HRT) 200
2,500
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Nomination Committee

The Company’s nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
was established according to code provision A.5 of the CG Code, and its
terms of reference were established in writing. The Nomination
Committee’s current members include one executive Director and two
independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman of the Nomination Committeg)
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
Board structure, size and composition, identifying individuals suitably
qualified to become Board members, making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee were adopted in
March 2012 and revised in August 2013, a copy of which is posted on
the Company’s website.

Nomination Policy

When making recommendations regarding the appointment of any
proposed candidate to the Board or re-appointment of any existing
member(s) of the Board, the Nomination Committee shall consider a
variety of factors including without limitation the following in assessing the
suitability of the proposed candidate:

(@  reputation for integrity;

(b) accomplishment, experience and reputation in the food and
beverage industry and other related industries;

(c) commitment in respect of sufficient time and attention to the
Company’s business;

(d) diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,

cultural and educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge;

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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(e)  the ability to assist and support management and make significant
contributions to the Company’s success;

® compliance with the criteria of independence as prescribed under
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the appointment of an
independent non-executive Director; and

(@  any other relevant factors as may be determined by the Nomination
Committee or the Board from time to time.

The appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board or re-
appointment of any existing member(s) of the Board shall be made in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association and other
applicable rules and regulations.

Nomination Procedure

The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall convene a meeting, and
invite nominations of candidates from Board members (if any), for
consideration by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee
may also nominate candidates for its consideration.

In the context of appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board,
the Nomination Committee shall undertake adequate due diligence in
respect of such individual and make recommendations for the Board’s
consideration and approval.

In the context of re-appointment of any existing member(s) of the Board,
the Nomination Committee shall make recommendations to the Board for
its consideration and recommendation, for the proposed candidates to
stand for re-election at a general meeting.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at a general meeting.

@ FBEIGBEIEEERE THAR
AR IEHERER

 FAELEMRRBEIAGEAETAREE
BUFATEFTZBLEREL R

0 REZEGHEFSIHETZMEM
Hib AR -

MEFFEFIZEEMERZAERENZ

EEHEEi%AWEMﬁﬁK A 48 &
SRR R EAEARR R R EETT

RERERF

REZBEGNWEEACHEHR AHFES
ERERBABWA)AHRRERZESR
BeolRRRBEMAERAARBNUEEE -

5% ZEETAREZAER RBA
\Qﬁﬁmﬁ&AiLﬁLQZi%%
YREFERHERAKEZTEEZR

mﬂ>
ﬂm f‘“

REHNEZEEMBELTEFENER RA
iEMﬁ%$AhhuﬁMT§$§%

T i D
F\?r

%&hﬁk ARMEEABRNRRERE
/ /\E
EXEeRAHEEREARRRRERG 28R

BIMBEERBREORTR

BRERERLR —ZT-ZFFR

31



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
txRER®RE (B

In recommending candidates for appointment to the Board, the
Nomination Committee will consider candidates objectively with due
regards to the diversity. Diversity of the Board will be considered from a
number of perspectives, including but not limited to age, gender, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, as well as other
attributes and strengths that relate to the Company’s business model
and specific needs from time to time. The recommendations of the
Nomination Committee will report formally to the Board for decision.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended 31
December 2020 and reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board, assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors, made recommendation to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors.

The individual attendance of each member is set out below:

REBABUZENAZESZSER BEZ
BEeREBEERAE LEEBRLKED
Zat-EF@XREBEZ LB EZETE
ETEE BREFSRRFR R XL
EBREER BELBUAREBRRRER
BEARTHOEEBRKAENEMBEE R
BN -REZEBQZERBILAREES
G LAVEIRGE -

REEZE€NEHE2020F 12 A31 BILF
BERIT—AXEZ BRITESTTNERE-
BMERAK FEBEIIENTESHE L
MM EZTSREEEZTRETZIYN
EEEZ-

ERERNKEOHFEBAHIET

Number of attendance
Name of Director BEEHR HERE
Mr. Zhao John Huan HESE LA 11
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei REESLE 11
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence EXEAE 11

Board Diversity

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company continued to
monitor the board composition with regard to its diversity policy which
requires appointments of Directors to be made based on merit and
candidates to be considered against objective criteria, including diversity
aspects such as gender, age, cultural and educational background and
professional experience. In order to maintain an appropriate mix and
balance of talent, skills, experience and background on the Board, the
Nomination Committee developed measurable objectives to implement
this policy and monitored progress towards achieving these objectives
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

The current board composition was also evaluated by reference to,
among other things, the age, gender, cultural and educational
background and professional experience of each Director, against the
Company’s business model and specific needs.
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The Directors believe diversity is important to enhance the Board’s
effectiveness by encouraging a diversity of perspectives and to maintain
high standards of corporate governance. The Directors will continue to
monitor and develop new objectives for implementing and achieving
improved diversity on the Board as and when it considers appropriate
with regard to the specific needs of the Company and the market from
time to time.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development of
directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of
the Model Code, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of risk management
and internal controls of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. The
Board is committed to implementing an effective and sound risk
management and internal controls system to safeguard the interest of
Shareholders and the Group’s assets. The Board has delegated to
executive management the implementation of the system of risk
management and internal controls and reviewing of all relevant financial,
operational, compliance controls and risk management function within an
established framework.

The system of risk management and internal controls of the Group
include a defined management structure and its limited licensing rights.
The purpose of the system is to assist the Group in identifying and
managing significant risks faced in achieving its business objectives,
safeguarding assets from unauthorized diversion or disposal, and
ensuring maintenance of proper accounting records to provide reliable
financial information for internal use or publication, and to ensure the
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The above monitoring
system is designed to manage rather than to eliminate the risks of the
operating systems failure of the Group or the failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable assurance against major
misrepresentation or loss, rather than absolute assurance.
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The Group has established an internal audit function to assist the Board
of Directors and the Audit Committee in continuously reviewing the
effectiveness of the system of risk management and internal controls of
the Group. The Group has integrated risk management into its core
business practices. The relevant operating units of the Group
continuously review and assess the potential risk conditions that may
affect their achievement of the business objectives of the unit and/or the
Group. The review process includes assessing whether the current
internal control system is still appropriate, whether the potential risks
have been adequately addressed, and/or whether it needs to be
updated.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, had conducted an annual
review of the effectiveness of the system of risk management and internal
controls of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020. Members
of the management team confirmed the effectiveness of the system of
risk management and internal controls of their responsible areas during
the year. The Board periodically receives (at least once a year) reports
from the Group’s management regarding financial, operational and
compliance controls, as well as the establishment, review and
assessment of the internal control and risk management functions of the
Group. The Board believes that, in the absence of any evidence to the
contrary, the system of risk management and internal controls maintained
by the Group throughout the year ended 31 December 2020, provided
reasonable assurance against material financial misstatements or loss,
including the safeguarding of assets, the maintenance of proper
accounting records, the reliability of financial information, compliance with
appropriate legislation and regulation, and the identification and
containment of business risks. The Board confirmed the effectiveness of
the system of risk management and internal controls, including sufficient
resources, appropriate qualifications and experience of employees, and
staff training courses, and adequate budget for accounting, internal
auditing and financial reporting functions. No significant areas of concern
have been identified, and the Board considered the system effective and
adequate.

The Group has formulated inside information policies and regularly
reminds directors and employees to properly comply with all policies
concerning inside information. In order to ensure sufficient attention for all
reports received, the Group has established a notification mechanism to
handle and discuss internal reports on financial, operational, internal
controls and fraud, etc. Major internal control deficiencies or reports will
be reported to the Audit Committee.
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Company Secretary

Mr. So Wai Yin has been engaged by the Company as its company
secretary. Mr. So confirmed that he had undertook no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training and relevant updates during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of accounts for each
financial period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing the
accounts for the year ended 31 December 2020, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;
adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
Hong Kong Accounting Standards; made adjustments and estimates that
are prudent and reasonable; and have prepared the accounts on the
going concern basis. The Directors are also responsible for keeping
proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the Group.

Shareholders’ Rights

The Company has only one class of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (the
“Shares”). All Shares have the same voting rights and are entitled to the
dividend declared. The rights of the Shareholders are set out in
Company’s articles of association.

Dividend Policy

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the Company has
adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”). Subject to the Companies
Act of the Cayman Islands and the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company, the Company may from time to time declare
dividends in any currency to be paid to the members of the Company but
no dividend shall be declared in excess of the amount recommended by
the Board. The Board may also from time to time pay to the members of
the Company such interim dividends as appear to the Board to be
justified by the profits of the Company. Declaration of dividends is subject
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to the discretion of the Board, taking into consideration of, among others,
(i) the Group’s financial performance; (i) the Group’s capital requirements
and debt level; (i) the Group’s liquidity position; (iv) retained earnings and
distributable reserves of the Group; (v) the Group’s business operations,
business strategies and future development needs; (vi) any contractual,
statutory and regulatory restrictions; and (vii) the general economic
conditions and other factors that may have an impact on the performance
and position of the Group. The Board will review the dividend policy from
time to time and may exercise at its sole and absolute discretion to
update, amend and/or modify the dividend policy at any time as it deems
fit and necessary.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting
by Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 64 of the articles of association of the Company,
extraordinary general meetings can be convened on the requisition of
one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be
made in writing to the Directors or the secretary of the Company for the
purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Directors for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Directors
fail to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Directors
shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions in the articles of association of the Company or
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for Shareholders to move
new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who wish to move a
resolution may request the Company to convene a general meeting in
accordance with the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company. The Company
will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.
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Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above
to the following:

Address: Suite 11, 70/F, Two International Finance Centre, No. 8 Finance
Street Central , Hong Kong (For the attention of the Company Secretary)

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as
the case may be) to the above address and provide their full name,
contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

Investor Relations and Communication

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information about the
Group’s performance to the Shareholders through the publication of
interim results and annual results in a timely manner. In addition to
dispatching circulars, notices and financial reports to the Shareholders,
additional information is also available to the Shareholders on the website
of the Company.

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a useful platform for the
Shareholders to raise comments and exchange views with the Board.
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the Company’s annual general
meetings for which the Company gives notice of not less than 21 clear
days and not less than 20 clear business days. The chairman of the
Board and Directors and external auditors are available to answer
questions on the Company’s businesses at such meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the Company’s annual general
meeting on each substantially separate issue, including the election of
individual Directors. In addition, the procedures of voting by poll are
included in the annual general meeting circular to be despatched to the
Shareholders.

Constitutional Documents

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Executive Director

Mr. ZHAO John Huan, aged 58, an executive Director and the chairman
of the Company. Mr. Zhao is currently the chairman and chief executive
officer of Hony Capital. Mr. Zhao also serves as a non-executive director
of Legend Holdings Corporation (HKSE:3396) , non-executive director of
Lenovo Group Limited (HKSE: 992),non-executive director of China Glass
Holdings Limited (HKSE: 3300), chairman and executive director of
Goldstream Investment Limited (HKSE: 1328), non-executive director of
ENN Ecological Holdings Co., Ltd (SSE: 600803), non-executive director
of Shanghai Jin Jiang International Hotels Development Co., Ltd
(SSE:600754) and non-executive director of Zoomlion Heavy Industry
Science and Technology Co., Ltd (HKSE: 1157; SZSE: 000157). Mr.
Zhao has served as a non-executive director of Simcere Pharmaceutical
Group Limited (HKSE: 2096), non-executive director of Eros STX Global
Corporation (NYSE: ESGC) and ceased to be the chairman and non-
executive director of Hospital Corporation of China Limited (HKSE: 3869)
since 2020. Mr. Zhao has also served as an executive director and the
executive vice president of Legend Holdings Corporation (HKSE: 3396)
from January 2013 to December 2019; a director of Shanghai
Environment Group Co, Ltd (SSE: 601200) from February 2017 to June
2018.

Mr. Zhao holds an MBA degree from the Kellogg School of Management
at Northwestern University, Master’s degrees in Electronic Engineering
and Physics from Northern lllinois University, and a Bachelor’'s degree in
Physics from Nanjing University.

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2020

HITES

BHMESBEE 58 ARARATESHE
FeoBAERITIILRREESTRE  BH-
HMAEETNETHBERBRMHDBER AR (E
EHE ST SR : 3396) FEHITEE - BEE
EARQE(H B RS 002) IEH
TEE TEEBEERERAR(FEHR
FrA5% : 3300) FEHITES - ©BIREFR
ARE(BEB AR 1328 EE G EXFE
NWITESE FRERERBOER QG
(EBEHRZSATRAD K5 : 600803) IE #
TEE FERTIEBRBEEEERG AR
NA(EBFEHZ SR MH RS 600754)
ERTEERPHERNBOBERAR(E
BEE SRS 1157 RINBEXFHR
5% 1 000157) JEFNITE F © 1A 20204 B 18 5
EEATEEESEBR AR (BB M
R 5% 1 2006) JE # 7T = =F - Eros STX Global
Corporation (4 498 % X % FT X 5% : ESGC)
ERITES UTBETLMCEEERS
EAERAQR (BB 3869) £ /F
MIEBRITE S HEENE R2013F1 A
FE2019F 12 AETBBIEREHER A A
POTEERPHEREH(FBH IR
3396) : 20172 A £20184F6 A # T £ &8
BEEERNDER AT (LEELFLHHR
5 : 601200) E = o

BAEEEXETEIL ARSI EEBHER TR
EEBELTEM XEUEFNHEFMNAZRE
FIRRYBESELEMURERAREYE
KRBT B -



PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
EERSREEER (A

Mr. WANG Xiaolong, aged 45, an executive Director of the Company,
has joined the Group since 9 August 2016, and has served as the chief
executive officer of the Company since 26 August 2019. Mr. Wang also
served as the chairman of Beijing New Spicy Way Catering Management
Ltd* (EmmBEsREEAMRAR) ("New Spicy Way”) since 8 May
2019. Mr. Wang is currently the managing director of Hony Capital, and
joined Hony Capital in 2003 and has been consistently focusing on
investment in the consumer and retail sector during the past 16 years,
with a particular emphasis on subsectors of retail, fast-moving consumer
goods (FMCG), catering and fast food franchise. Prior to joining Hony
Capital, Mr. Wang served in Lenovo Group Limited. Mr. Wang holds a
master of business administration degree from Tsinghua University
School of Economics and Management in collaboration with
Massachusetts Institute of Technology, and a Bachelor of Engineering
degree from Shanghai Jiao Tong University, Youth Talented Program.

Mr. JING Shen, aged 41, an executive Director and chief financial officer
of the Company, joined the Group in November 2016. Mr. Jing has over
10 years of experience in the consumer and retail business. He is
responsible for managing the company’s finances, including financial
planning, management of financial risks, record-keeping, and reporting.
Mr. Jing has also served as an executive director of Beiing HHG
Restaurant Management Co. Ltd* Jt R FI&E AZRE IR BR A7) (‘HHG”)
since 7 November 2017, executive director of New Spicy Way since 30
October 2018, executive director of Tianjin Hanfangweiye Food Limited* (k
EEHE¥RRAMRAQT) since 30 June 2017, and the general manager
of Hongfu Restaurant Management (Shenzhen) Co.,Ltd* (7248 &80 & 12 (%
JI)E R A 7)) since 10 April 2017, each being a subsidiary of the Group.
From April 2014 to October 2016, Mr. Jing held the position of chief
executive officer at Beijing Niologie Commercial and Trading Co.,Ltd. In
2008, Mr. Jing joined Hony Capital and was eventually promoted to vice
president. Mr. Jing obtained a Master’s degree in business administration
from China Europe International Business School in February 2008 and a
bachelor’s degree from Beijing Foreign Studies University in July 2002.
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Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. LEUNG Kwai Kei, aged 59, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director since 4 January 2017. Mr. Leung has over 30
years of work experience in the food and beverage industry and retail
industry in Hong Kong and China. Mr. Leung worked in McDonald’s
Restaurants (HK) Limited and McDonald’s China Company Limited from
1988 and used to play managerial roles in various departments for more
than 20 years. Mr. Leung also held executive positions in other
multinationals including Walmart China Company Limited as the Senior
Vice President of business development and as country manager for
Regus Property (Shanghai) Company Limited. Mr. Leung currently works
in Mei-Xin Food (Guangzhou) Company Limited as general manager for
their China headquarters and Japanese restaurant business. Mr. Leung
holds a master of management degree from Macquarie University and a
bachelor of economics degree from the University of Sydney.

Mr. HENG Victor Ja Wei, aged 43, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since 18 May 2011.
Mr. Heng is a partner of Morison Heng, Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Heng holds a master of science degree of the Imperial College of
Science, Technology and Medicine, the University of London. Mr. Heng is
a fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Heng serves as an independent non-executive director in Matrix Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1005), Veson Holdings Limited (formerly known as
SCUD Group Limited) (Stock Code: 1399) and Lee & Man Chemical
Company Limited (Stock Code: 0746). Mr. Heng also serves as the
company secretary and authorized representative of China Life Insurance
Company Limited (Stock Code: 2628).

Mr. TSANG Hin Man Terence, aged 58, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since 18 May 2011. Mr. Tsang was
admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1993 and is currently the sole
proprietor of Tsang & Co., H.M. Mr. Tsang obtained a bachelor’s degree
in science from the University College London, the University of London.
Mr. Tsang also holds a bachelor’s degree in law from the University of
Westminster, United Kingdom.
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Senior Management

Mr. XIAN Shunxiang, aged 55, chief operating officer of the Company,
joined the Group in August 2016. Mr. Xian was an independent non-
executive director of the Company since 9 August 2016, and resigned as
a director and reappointed as the chief operating officer of the Company
since 4 January 2017. Mr. Xian was the vice president of Cosmo Lady
(China) Holdings Company Limited (HKSE: 2298) and responsible for
their retail operations. From May 2008 to October 2011, Mr. Xian held
the position of chief operating officer at Real Kung Fu Catering
Management Co.,Ltd.. In 1990, Mr. Xian joined McDonald’s (Shenzhen)
Limited as one of the trainee managers and was eventually promoted to
operations director. Mr. Xian graduated from China Europe International
Business School, Shanghai, upon finishing the China Europe Leadership
Development of Senior Level Programme in January 2010. He obtained a
college degree in Chinese from Shenzhen Institute of Education,
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province in July 1988.

Mr. So Wai Yin, aged 46, company secretary of the Company, has over
19 year experience in financial reporting, management accounting,
auditing, tax planning and regulatory compliance, treasury, corporate
finance and company secretarial practice of listed companies. Mr. So has
been appointed as the company secretary of the Company since 9
August 2016. Prior to joining Hony Capital in September 2008, Mr. So
worked as the qualified accountant and company secretary at Golden
Resorts Group Limited (now known as Kingston Securities Limited,
HKSE: 1031) where he was overseeing overall financial control and
reporting functions, treasury, corporate finance, and regulatory
compliance matters. Before joining Kingston, Mr. So worked in Deloitte
where he engaged in audit assignments for various public/private
companies and leading several initial public offer (IPO) projects. Mr. So is
a certified public accountant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountant and a fellow member of Association of Chartered Certified
Accountant.
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Mr. Zhao Shen, aged 71, chairman of HHG, joined the Group in 25
October 2016. In 1968, Zhao Shen had been to the Great Northern
Wilderness, stationed troops and reclaimed and safeguarded the border
regions for more than ten years; in 1982 entered the Beijing Second Steel
Rolling Mil. In February 1988, Zhao Shen took up the post of elevator
factory director in Shougang Group. On 1 July 1996, Zhao Shen took up
the post of general manager of Beijing Yoshinoya Fast Food Co.,Ltd. In
2003, Zhao Shen founded Beijing HHG Restaurant Management
Co.,Ltd., determined to inherit traditional Chinese food culture, and
explore the model of double-kitchen, to achieve the standardization of
“Chinese People Fast Food”. He has successively won the titles of
“Shougang Labor Model”, “Top Ten Factory Director of Beijing”, “Labor
Medal of National May 1”7, “Beijing Excellent Socialism Constructor of
Chinese Characteristics”, “Beijing Outstanding Communist”, “Chinese
Catering Industry Outstanding Entrepreneur”, “Chinese Restaurant
Industry Annual Top Ten Figures”, “Outstanding Entrepreneur in Chinese
Catering Industry for the 40th Anniversary of the Reform and Opening
Up” and other honors. Nowadays, Zhao Shen is the vice president of
China Cuisine Association, the Chairman of the Professional Committee
of Chinese Cuisine Fast Food, and the Chairman of Beijing HHG
Restaurant Management Co.,Ltd..

Mr. Zhao Jingjing, aged 39, Chief Manager of HHG, joined the Group in
25 October 2016. Zhao Jingjing joined HHG in 2007, and started at the
bottom. He has been working in marketing, operation, R&D department
successively, and accumulated Plentiful experience of marketing,
operation management, product design and development,
informationization construction, establishing new model etc. In October
2015, Zhao Jingjing was appointed chief manager of HHG. He has been
rated as “Excellent Friends of Workers”, “The Best Emerging Enterpriser
of Chinese Food Industry”, “Top Ten Catering Entrepreneur of Beijing”
and “Outstanding Party Member in Community Field of Beijing”. He is
also a member of the 14th session of Central Peoples’ Political
Consultative Conference of Xicheng District, Beijing.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
EERSREEER (A

Mr. Li Jian, aged 46, is the co-founder and the vice chairman of the
board of New Spicy Way, and joined the Group since 30 November
2018. Mr. Li is primarily responsible for the strategic developments and
monitoring budgets of New Spicy Way, and is involved in major decisions
of New Spicy Way, including the appointment of executives of New Spicy
Way. Mr. Li has been appointed as the chairman of New Spicy Way,
being responsible for overall development of New Spicy Way since its
establishment, and was involved in the business operation of the New
Spicy Way until 2015. Mr. Li has over 16 years in the food and beverage
industry as well as catering industry and restaurant operation business.
Prior to establishing New Spicy Way, Mr. Li established his own
restaurant business under the name Beijing Yuanpin Catering Co.,Ltd in
2000 to provide catering services. Mr. Li has successively won the titles
of, among others, “Outstanding Figure of Chinese Catering Industry for
30 years” in May 2017 awarded by China Cuisine Association, “Outstanding
Entrepreneur of Chinese Catering Industry” in November 2016 awarded
by China Hospitality Association and “The Most Influential Entrepreneur
of Chinese Hotpot Industry” in 2015 awarded by China Cuisine
Association. Mr. Li has been the president of China Crayfish Association
since April 2018. Mr. Li completed a secretarial program at Linyi Teacher
Training College (currently known as Linyi University) in July 1995.

Mr. Zhou Penghui, aged 45, is the chief Executive officer of New Spicy
Way, and joined the Group since 30 November 2018. Mr. Zhou is
responsible for overseeing the overall management and the day-to-day
operation of New Spicy Way. Prior to being appointed as chief executive
officer of New Spicy Way in January 2017, Mr. Zhou joined New Spicy
Way in December 2011 as an optimization specialist, mainly responsible
for formulating internal system and providing training to the employees of
New Spicy Way. Mr. Zhou was then promoted as an operation manager
in October 2012 managing the operations of restaurants of New Spicy
Way, and in March 2014, he was promoted as the northern China market
manager, and in June 2014, Mr. Zhou managed the overall operation of
the restaurants of New Spicy Way in China. Mr. Zhou has over 6 years of
experience in restaurant operations, supply chain management and food
quality control. Mr. Zhou graduated with a diploma in physical and
chemical testing and separation technology from North China University
of Technology in July 1996.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EEEHG

The Directors hereby present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages

73-75 of this annual report.

The Board resolved not to declare final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2020.

As at the date of this annual report, there was no arrangement under
which a Shareholder had waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

Tax Relief and Exemption

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.
Management Contract

No contracts concemning the management and administration of the
whole or substantial part of the business of the Company were entered
into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2020.
Equity-Linked Agreements

Save for the share option scheme as set out below, the Company has

not entered into any equity-linked agreement during the year ended 31
December 2020.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserve available for
distribution to shareholders represented the accumulated deficit of
RMB116,541,000 (2019: accumulated deficit of RMB95,280,000).

Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 208 of this annual report.

Directors

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the
date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Xiaolong
Mr. Jing Shen

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei

The term of office of each of the independent non-executive Directors is
the period up to his retirement as required by the Company’s articles of
Association.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors offering for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company has a service contract with the
Company which is not terminable within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.
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Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
Chief Executives

At 31 December 2020, the interests of the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of part
XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFQ”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock

Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:
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R2020F 12 A31H ARRIZEERBH
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BRETHESTANEARTALRETERS
RXPHABRAR(BERAT]) 2T

Number of
Shares
(including Approximate
Number of issued Shares percentage of
Name of Director/ Number of underlying and underlying interest in the
chief executive Capacity issued Shares Shares Shares) Company
(Note 1) (Note 2)
g7l 4=
(BEC BT BERE
B2 BRTHRAE BRTRSG HERH BRORERE ‘EOHL
e &4 #A oA B 14) BOL
(BMt&E1) (Mt&xr2)
Mr. Zhao John Huan Interest in controlled 1,183,998,000 (L) 517,522,440 (L) 1,701,520,440 (L) 107.78%
corporation (Note 3)
HLB S E RyEEEER (H53)
Mr. Wang Xiaolong Beneficial owner — 43,413,260 (1) 43,413,260 (L) 2.75%
(Note 4)
TERE EnlEAA (Pt 5 4)
Mr. Jing Shen Beneficial owner — 15,786,640 () 15,786,640 (L) 1.00%
(Note 5)
REXAE EREAA (Pt 55)
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Notes:
1. The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such Shares.

2. Based on 1,578,664,000 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2020.

3. Sonic Tycoon Limited is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Fortune Eight Alps Limited,
which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Hony Capital Fund VIII (Cayman), L.P., an
exempted limited partnership managed by Hony Capital Fund VIIl GP (Cayman), L.P. (as
sole general partner), which is managed by its sole general partner, Hony Capital Fund
VIl GP (Cayman) Limited. Hony Capital Fund VIIl GP (Cayman) Limited is wholly owned
by Hony Group Management Limited, which is in tumn owned as to 80% by Hony
Managing Partners Limited, which is wholly owned by Exponential Fortune Group
Limited. Mr. Zhao John Huan owns 49% of Exponential Fortune Group Limited. As at
31 December 2020, Sonic Tycoon Limited held 1,183,998,000 shares in the Company
and was beneficially interested in convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$610,676,480 which is convertible into 517,522,440 Shares at the initial conversion
price of HK$1.18 per Share.

4. These underlying shares represent the 27,626,620 awarded shares and the shares
underlying the 15,786,640 share options that the Board resolved to grant to Mr. Wang
Xiaolong pursuant to the share award scheme adopted by the Board on 11 November
2019 and the Company’s share option scheme adopted on 18 May 2011.

5. These underlying shares represent the 7,893,320 awarded shares and the shares
underlying the 7,893,320 share options that the Board resolved to grant to Mr. Jing
Shen pursuant to the share award scheme by the Board adopted on 11 November
2019 and the Company’s share option scheme adopted on 18 May 2011.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed below and note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report, during the year ended 31 December
2020, neither the Company, its holding company nor any of its
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.
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(@) Employee Share Option Scheme

On 18 May 2011, the Company has adopted a share option
scheme (the “Employee Share Option Scheme”) in which the
Company’s directors and employees are entitled to participate.
Details of the Employee Share Option Scheme are set out in note
32 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
Certain share options were granted under the Employee Share
Option Scheme since its inception during the year ended 31
December 2020. As at the date of this report, the remaining life of
the Employee Share Option Scheme is approximately two months.

On 11 November 2019, share options carrying the rights to
subscribe for up to a total of 31,573,280 new Shares (the “Options”)
were offered to be granted to three grantees (collectively, the
“Grantees”, and each a “Grantee”) under the Employee Share
Option Scheme with an exercise price of HK$1.08 per Share which
shall be vested in the following vesting schedule: (i) 20% shall be
vested from 31 December 2019 to 30 December 2024; (i) 20%
shall be vested from 31 December 2020 to 30 December 2025; (i)
20% shall be vested from 31 December 2021 to 30 December
2026; (iv) 20% shall be vested from 31 December 2022 to 30
December 2027; and (v) the remaining 20% shall be vested from
31 December 2023 to 30 December 2028. The Options shall be
valid from the date of offer (i.e. 11 November 2019) up to 30
December 2028, both dates inclusive.

Details of the Options granted under the Employee Share Option
Scheme are set out below:
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Changes during the year ended 31 December

2020
HZ2020F 12831 ALEEZ2H
Outstanding Outstanding
Options as at Options as at
Name of Grantee Date of grant 1 January 2020 Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 31 December 2020
BZ2020% BZ20205
1A18 128310
i RAT R 2 HARTREZ
ZEAER il BRE gl BTE BEH  BAX R
Directors EZ
Mr. Wang Xiaolong ThEERAE 11 November 2019 15,786,640 - - - - 15,786,640
2019F11 A11RH
Mr. Jing Shen SERE 11 November 2019 7,893,320 - - - - 7,893,320
2019F11 A11RH
Employees of the Group ~ Z£[EES
Mr. Xian Shunxiang WEIBR S 11 November 2019 7,893,320 - - - - 7,893,320
2019F11 A11R
31,573,280 - - - - 31,573,280
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(b) Share Award Scheme (b) BD B2

On 11 November, 2019, the Company adopted a share award
scheme (the “Share Award Scheme” or the “Scheme”), to attract
new and motivate existing talents and retaining both. The Board
shall not make any further award under the Share Award Scheme
which will result in the total number of Shares awarded by the
Board under the Share Award Scheme exceeding 4% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time.

Subject to the Share Award Scheme Rules, the Board may select
the employee to participate in the Scheme (the “Selected
Employee(s)”) and determine the number of shares to be awarded (the
“Awarded Shares”) to the respective Selected Employee(s), the
applicable vesting date and make an award out of the pool of
issued Shares held by a professional trustee (the “Trustee”) to be
appointed to administer the Scheme to any Selected Employee.
The Awarded Shares will only comprise existing Shares which are
purchased from the open market by the Trustee out of cash
contributed by the Company. The Awarded Shares do not
comprise any issuance and allotment of new Shares.

In respect of a Selected Employee’s employment or service with
the Company or any member of the Group is terminated for cause
or due to resignation at any time prior to or on the vesting date, all
the Awarded Shares that have not yet been vested of the relevant
Selected Employee shall become returned shares for the purposes
of the Share Award Scheme.

The Scheme shall terminate on the earlier of (i) the 5th anniversary
date of the adoption date of the Scheme (i.e. 11 November 2019);
and (i) such date of early termination as determined by the Board
provided that such termination shall not affect any subsisting rights
of any selected grantee under the Scheme.

Details of the Share Award Scheme are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 11 November 2019 and
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.
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On 11 November 2019, the Board resolved to grant an aggregate
of 43,413,260 Awarded Shares (representing approximately 2.75%
of the total issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December
2020) to three Selected Employees (the “Awardees”), pursuant to
the Share Award Scheme Rules set out below:

R2019F 11 A11H EE2F RIE
BEROEBEFERIMN=-RETRES
([E® A) & 1% 143,413,260 % 42
B A% 5 (M8 & 7 A 2 51 7R 2020F 12 B
S1THE BT ABEE 2 42.75%) & 5
LU

Number of
Awardee Position held within the Group Awarded Shares
BEA RAEE BB REBROHE
Mr. Wang Xiaolong executive Director 27,626,620
TSRS WITES
Mr. Jing Shen executive Director 7,893,320
REXE HITES
Mr. Xian Shunxiang director of certain subsidiaries of the Company 7,893,320
B HE 5 A4 RARABETHEARIZES
Total: e 43,413,260

The amount of contribution by Awardee for the Awarded Shares
shall be HK$0.54 per Awarded Share, being 50% of the average
closing price per Share of approximately HK$1.08 for 20 business
days immediately preceding the grant of the Awarded Shares.

Assuming all the vesting criteria and conditions have been fulfilled,
the Awarded Shares granted shall be vested in the respective
Awardees in five equal tranches on 31 December 2019, 2020,
2021, 2022 and 2023 respectively. As at the date of this report, no
Awarded Shares have been vested. As at the date of this report,
the remaining life of the Share Award Scheme is approximately 3
years and 7 months.
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders

At 31 December 2020, as far as the Directors were aware, persons (other
than directors or chief executive of the Company) who had interests and
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

S
<

TERRZEZRKA

R2020F12A31H HBESHMA LT A
T(RARREELASRITEHABBRIN AR
ARAIZROXEERODP  BEELHR
RIEFHREEENFEI6HEBERARRT

7=

EvERMzERARARWT

S
ADFGROAOE T 2 HiBAR

Number of
Shares (including  Approximate
Number of issued Shares percentage of

Number of underlying and underlying interest in the
Name of Shareholder Capacity Issued Shares Shares Shares Company
R&H&E
BT HERG (BEESRTRE HEAQXAESR
RERERB 51 RHBBE B REERS) WHBIEIL
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(B&E1) (BfE2)
Exponential Fortune Interest in controlled corporation (Note 3)  1,183,998,000 (L) 517,522,440 (L) 1,701,520,440 (L) 107.78%
Group Limited
Exponential Fortune ZEEEE R (M 5E8)
Group Limited
Hony Managing Interest in controlled corporation (Note 3)  1,183,998,000 (L) 517,522,440 (L) 1,701,520,440 (L) 107.78%
Partners Limited
Hony Managing EEEEE R (FT3E3)
Partners Limited
Hony Group Management  Interest in controlled corporation (Note 3)  1,183,998,000 (L) 517,522,440 (L) 1,701,520,440 (L) 107.78%
Limited
Hony Group Management 5% 22 B # 25 (P 3£ 3)
Limited
Hong Capital Fund VIII Interest in controlled corporation (Note 3)  1,183,998,000 (L) 517,522,440 (L) 1,701,520,440 (L) 107.78%
GP (Cayman) Limited
Hong Capital Fund VIl ZPEE R (M5E3)
GP (Cayman) Limited
Hony Capital Fund VIl Interest in controlled corporation (Note 3)  1,183,998,000 (L) 517,522,440 (L) 1,701,520,440 (L) 107.78%
GP (Cayman), L.P.
Hony Capital Fund VIl ZEEEE R (M 5E8)

GP (Cayman), L.P.
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Number of

Shares (including  Approximate

Number of issued Shares percentage of
Number of underlying and underlying interest in the
Name of Shareholder Capacity Issued Shares Shares Shares Company
K& 8E
BT HERG (BEESBTRE HEAQXAESR
RERER 51 RH#BE A REBRS) HHAEIH
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(BF&E1) GEY))
Hony Capital Fund VIII Interest in controlled corporation (Note 3)  1,183,998,000 (L) 517,522,440 (L) 1,701,520,440 (L) 107.78%
(Cayman), L.P.
Hony Capital Fund VIl REEEE R (FT3E3)
(Cayman), L.P.
Fortune Eight Alps Limited  Interest in controlled corporation (Note 3)  1,183,998,000 (L) 517,522,440 (L) 1,701,520,440 (L) 107.78%
Fortune Eight Alps Limited 5 43 3 [ # 25 (H 5£3)
Sonic Tycoon Limited Interest in controlled corporation (Note 3)  1,183,998,000 (L) 517,522,440 (L) 1,701,520,440 (L) 107.78%

RFARAT

Notes:

1.

2.

A E s (M EE3)

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such Shares.

Based on 1,578,664,000 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2020.

Sonic Tycoon Limited is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Fortune Eight Alps Limited,
which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Hony Capital Fund VIII (Cayman), L.P., an
exempted limited partnership managed by Hony Capital Fund VIIl GP (Cayman), L.P. (as
sole general partner), which is managed by its sole general partner, Hony Capital Fund
VIl GP (Cayman) Limited, Hony Capital Fund VIIl GP (Cayman) Limited is wholly owned
by Hony Group Management Limited, which is in turn owned as to 80% by Hony
Managing Partners Limited, which is wholly owned by Exponential Fortune Group
Limited. Mr. Zhao John Huan owns 49% of Exponential Fortune Group Limited. As at
31 December 2020, Sonic Tycoon Limited held 1,183,998,000 shares in the Company
and was beneficially interested in convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$610,676,840 which is convertible into 517,522,440 Shares at the initial conversion
price of HK$1.18 per Share.
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Connected Transactions

The following transactions were conducted between the Company with
its connected person(s) (as defined in the Listing Rules) during the year
ended 31 December 2020 which constitute connected transactions that
are not exempt from annual reporting requirement under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules:

On 13 January 2020, the Company and the Investor entered into the
2020 Investment Agreement. Please refer to the section headed
“Convertible Bonds” below for details.

The Investor is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hony Capital Group Limited,
which is in turn wholly-owned by Hony Capital Group, L.P.. Hony Capital
Group, L.P. is indirectly controlled by Hony Managing Partners Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Exponential Fortune Group Limited, a
controlling shareholder of the Company which is ultimately controlled by
Mr. Zhao John Huan, the chairman of the Board and an executive
Director. The Investor is thus an associate of the controlling shareholder
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and a connected
person of the Company.

BEXZ

REE20200F12A831HIEFE A2 A B
HEBEALZ(EER EWAR)ETTS
R HERAERRET EMHUNE14AE
FERERTHEER S :

R2020F1A183H AR Al B EEHF L
2020F W EMZ - HFIBEBLE T XA
BEE]—5-

# & #& A Hony Capital Group Limited 2 &
& [t B A 7+ M Hony Capital Group Limited
8] B Hony Capital Group, LP. & & ## A& -
Hony Capital Group, L.P. 1 7% & &) %2 A% A% 3
Exponential Fortune Group Limited 2 2 & Hf B
A 7] Hony Managing Partners Limited & £ 5
%I+ T Exponential Fortune Group Limited 8I] F
EEEIRERNTESHIBREERKRIE
Bl o Bk RIBEETRAUFIAE  REE
BARNTEBRBRRZBEARKRRRZHE
EAL
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Continuing Connected Transactions

The following transactions were conducted between the Company with
its connected person(s) (as defined in the Listing Rules) during the year
ended 31 December 2020 which constitute continuing connected
transactions that are not exempt from annual reporting requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(1) Food Ingredients Purchase Agreement

Certain members of New Spicy Way, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company (“New Spicy Way Group”) and XLJ Food
Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd (“XLJ”), a company controlled by non-
controlling interests of New Spicy Way (a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company) entered into a food ingredients
purchase agreement dated 19 June 2018 (as amended by an
amendment agreement dated 2 October 2018) (collectively, the “Food
Ingredients Purchase Agreement”), to enable New Spicy Way
Group to continue to be supplied with food ingredients after
completion of the acquisition of equity interest in New Spicy Way
by the Group (the “New Spicy Way Completion”). Pursuant to the
Food Ingredients Purchase Agreement, New Spicy Way Group can
purchase food ingredients, including fresh fish, processed fish,
spices, sauce ingredients, garlic flavored and pickled vegetable
hotpot condiments from XLJ. For further details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 19 June 2018 and 27
September 2018, and circular dated 2 October 2018.

The annual caps for the maximum aggregate amount payable for
the goods to be supplied under the Food Ingredients Purchase
Agreement are RMB60,000,000, RMB69,000,000 and
RMB79,350,000 for the years ended 31 December 2018, 2019
and 2020, respectively. The actual transaction amount under the
Food Ingredients Purchase Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2020 amounted to approximately RMB19,146,000,
which did not exceed the relevant annual cap.
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HEBEXS

HE2020F12A31HEFE  ARAEE
EALT(EERL EMBADETUTEK
ITHREBFUAZEBE NHEBRER S  HET
ERABTFEREATHRS :

(1) BE#EKRBEHZR

KARFEEEMNBARTHREZSRT
KRE(FRESE]) BERLEREmME
FUtR) BRAF(ERED (—RHA
ARABFEEWB AR THEZ
B HE S H) 2 A R)) RT3 B 8 £2018
FOAOAZEMREEHZE (KL HH
A2018F10 A28 2 BRI W& B &)
(ZBURMEBEHBH]D  USFH
EEBERAEEERKENRE R
BBrEEREHERM (A ETKSE
EHD - REBMRERS  FTRES
ErmERERKBERA MITAA-
8 -ER mERBEXABARSE
BRM-BHRE—FTHE FL2EAL
7 B #i A£2018F6 A19H K&201849
RorHzR%E - LA K AHA2018410
B2HZBK °

BMEBEHZEE T H E20184F + 2019
F 2020412 A31H It F [Z /& 1+ i
EERAEaRENTFE LR DA
60,000,0007T A & # + 69,000,0007C A
R ¥ }.79,350,0007C A B ¥ o & # %
BEipaIE T H 220205612 A31 B IL4F
BEZEBR S ©E4 519,146,000 7T
ARE  WARBEHEBFE LR -



DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

EESEHRE (&

(2) Hotpot Condiment and Crawfish Seasoning
Supply Agreement

On 19 June 2018, the New Spicy Way Group and XLJ also entered
into a hotpot condiment and crawfish seasoning supply agreement
(the “Hotpot Condiment and Crawfish Seasoning Supply
Agreement”), pursuant to which the New Spicy Way Group will
continue to supply spicy condiment, pickled flavoring ingredients
and crawfish seasoning to XLJ. The annual caps for the maximum
aggregate amount receivable for the goods to be supplied under
the Hotpot Condiment and Crawfish Seasoning Supply Agreement
are RMB40,000,000, RMB48,000,000 and RMB57,600,000 for the
years ended 31 December 2018, 2019 and 2020, respectively. For
further details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 19 June 2018 and 27 September 2018, and the circular of
the Company dated 2 October 2018. There was no transaction
amount under the Hotpot Condiment and Crawfish Seasoning
Supply Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this annual report, XLJ is
majority-controlled by, together with their affiliates, Mr. Li Jian and Mr. Xu
Bochun (the “Remaining Shareholders”), each of whom remains to be a
shareholder of New Spicy Way upon New Spicy Way Completion. The
Remaining Shareholders are therefore connected persons of the
Company at the subsidiary level and XLJ is an associate of the Remaining
Shareholders. Accordingly, the Food Ingredients Purchase Agreement
and the Hotpot Condiment and Crawfish Seasoning Supply Agreement,
and the respective transactions contemplated thereunder constitute
continuing connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
upon New Spicy Way Completion.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing connected
transactions of the Company and confirmed that such continuing
connected transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i)~ on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
respective transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

2 XBAMRPERABMHE
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued its unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange.

Related Party Transactions and Connected
Transactions

Related party transactions entered into by the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020 are disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Company in accordance with the applicable accounting
standards adopted for preparing the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Connected Transactions” and
“Continuing Connected Transactions” above, as at 31 December 2020,
there were no other transactions which fall under the definition of
“connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Interest in Contracts of
Significance

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected Transactions”
in this report, no contracts of significance to which the Company, its
holding company or any of its fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly and indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Controlling Shareholders’ Interest in
Contracts of Significance

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, no contract of
significance was entered into between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and the Company’s controlling shareholders or any of its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Business Review and Performance

A review and outlook of the business of the Company, a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key performance
indicators during the year ended 31 December 2020 and the material
factors underlying its results and financial position, an indication of likely
future development in the Company’s business and events occurred after
the reporting period are provided in the Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis respectively from pages 5 to 7 and
pages 9 to 20 of this annual report.

Details of principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company are set out
in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

A review of the Company’s environmental policies and performance, the
Company’s compliance with relevant laws and regulations, and an
account of the Company’s key relationship with its employees,
customers, and suppliers and others that have a significant impact on the
Company and on which the Company’s success depends on are
provided in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report and the
Corporate Governance Report from pages 209 to pages 268 and pages
21 to pages 37 respectively of this annual report.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers were less 30% of the Group’s total sales.

During the year, the aggregate purchases during the year attributable to
the Group’s five largest suppliers were less 30% of the Group’s total
purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or any Shareholders which, to the knowledge of the Directors,
owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any
interest in the share capital of any of the five largest customers or
suppliers of the Group.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2020, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.

Convertible Bonds

The HK$1,500,000,000 Convertible Bonds

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 18
September 2016, 10 October 2016, 13 November 2016, 22 September
2017 and 22 March 2019, and the circular of the Company dated 29
October 2016 in relation to the convertible bonds with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$1,500,000,000 (the “Convertible Bonds”) issued
by the Company under a specific mandate (the “Specific Mandate”)
pursuant to the investment agreement dated 18 September 2016 entered
into between the Company and Sonic Tycoon Limited. As at 31
December 2020, the proceeds from issuing the Convertible Bonds had
been fully utilised in accordance with the intended use.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, none of the Convertible
Bonds was converted. The issued share capital of the Company were
1,578,664,000 Shares. The Investor holds an aggregate of 1,183,998,000
Shares, representing approximately 75.00% of the number of issued
Share as enlarged by the allotment and issue of Conversion Shares. The
Company is able to, and will ensure to, comply with the public float
requirement under Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules.

The 2020 Investment Agreement

On 13 January 2020, the Company and the Investor entered into the
Investment Agreement. Subject to the fulfiment or, if applicable, waiver of
the conditions precedent under the Investment Agreement, the Company
agreed to issue and the Investor agreed to subscribe for the convertible
bonds in the aggregate principal amount of up to HK$780,000,000 (the
“Subscription”) at an issue price which equals to 100% of the principal
amount. The convertible bonds do not carry any interest.
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Unless previously redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled, the
Company shall repay to the holders of the convertible bonds an amount
equal to the principal amount on the fifth anniversary of the issue date of
the convertible bonds, or, subject to the agreement of the holders of the
convertible bonds, the seventh anniversary of such issue date.

Assuming there is no change in the issued share capital of the Company
and the convertible bonds are subscribed in full, and assuming full
conversion of the convertible bonds at the initial conversion price of
HK$1.18 per ordinary share with a par value of HK$0.10 each in the
capital of the Company, the convertible bonds will be convertible into
661,016,949 conversion shares.

Subject to completion of the Subscription of the convertible bonds in full,
the aggregate gross proceeds from the Subscription will be HK$780
million, and the aggregate net proceeds from the Subscription, after
deduction of all the relevant costs and expenses, are estimated to be
approximately HK$779.3 million. Based on such estimated net proceeds
and the total number of conversion shares (assuming conversion of the
convertible bonds in full at the initial conversion price of HK$1.18 per
conversion share), the net price received by the Company for each
conversion share is approximately HK$1.1789.

The Company intends to apply the net proceeds arising from the issue of
the convertible bonds in the following manner:

() approximately HK$500 million for funding potential acquisitions of
branded chain restaurants;

(o) approximately HK$50 million for expanding store network by
establishment of direct stores and franchise. The Group currently
targets to open or decorate more than 20 direct stores and open
more than 50 franchise stores in the year 2020;

()  approximately HK$15 million for upgrading digital operation system
and the development of the central kitchen in Tianjin, including
upgrading hardware system of the Group, purchase of new
machinery and software, recruitment of professionals, and also
purchase of new equipment, renovation of the building and
enlargement of the warehouses;

(d) approximately HK$74.3 milion for general working capital of the
Group and financing operating costs including administrative
expenses and distribution expenses; and
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(e) approximately HK$140 million for the payment in relation to the put
right of non-controlling interests of Beijing New Spicy Way Catering
Management Ltd. (if applicable).

The Company has been considering and exploring appropriate business
development by acquisitions and/or expansion of existing business. The
Directors consider that it is in the interests of the Company to raise funds
for long-term development and strengthen the financial position of the
Group, such that the Company will have available funds to capture
business opportunities and develop its existing businesses.

As at the date of this report, completion of the Subscription pursuant to
the 2020 Investment Agreement had not taken place and the Group had
not issue any convertible bond under the 2020 Investment Agreement.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 13 January 2020, the circular of the Company dated 27 April 2020
and the poll results of the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
dated 28 May 2020.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

Appointment of Independent Non-Executive
Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

Emolument Policy
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the

Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.
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The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme and a share award
scheme as an incentive to Directors and eligible employees. Details of the
schemes are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements
in this annual report.

Pension Scheme

Details of the Group’s pension scheme are set out in note 2.22(b) to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report. No forfeited
contributions are available to reduce the contribution payable by the
Group in the future years.

Sufficiency of Public Float

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
a sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31 December 2020
and up to the date of this annual report.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted
indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required
by the provisions of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong).

Competing Business

Save as disclosed below, during the year ended 31 December 2020 and
up to the date of this report, none of the Directors had any interest in any
business (apart from the Group’s business) which competes or may
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group,
as defined in the Listing Rules.
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Mr. Leung Kwai Kei, an independent non-executive Director, is currently
the General Manager of Mei-Xin Food (Guangzhou) Company Limited
(“Mei-Xin”), responsible for their China headquarters and Japanese
restaurant business.

Although the business carried out by Mei-Xin is of a similar nature as that
carried out by the Group, Mr. Leung does not hold other positions in the
Company apart from being an independent non-executive Director, and
Mr. Leung also does not control the Board. The Board therefore is of the
view that the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from the business carried out by
Mei-Xin.

Charitable Donations
The donations made by the Group during the year ended 31 December

2020 amounted to RMBO.1 million.

Changes in Director’s and Chief Executive’s
Biographical Details under Rule 13.51B(1) of
the Listing Rules

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior
Management”, there is no other change in Directors’ biographical details
which is required to be disclosed pursuant to rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules since the date of the 2019 annual report of the Company.

Events after the Reporting Period
Save for the events as disclosed in Note 40 to the consolidated financial

statements, no other significant event affecting the Group took place
after 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this annual report.

Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Zhao John Huan
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 25 March 2021
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To the Shareholders of Best Food Holding Company Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Best Food Holding Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 73 to 207, which comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2020;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year

then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended; and

BERERERQARRK
(RAESBHSEMA LB R E])

R

EAEETHARAR

BREBRAERAAATEHEIEAA]D X
EMBARATHBEIEEEDIERE
TBETEMZEAMBHRE - B

o  R2020FE12A3MENMEAEERAE
%

s HBEZRIFENHFAaZHKERK:

s HEZRLFENHFAEZEHR:

.:|

s BEZRLFENGABATSRER:
&

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a o 4 AMERRWT BT EE K
summary of significant accounting policies. KIE -
PricewaterhouseCoopers AR K 28 B 71l T
22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong FBP IR T AE
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2289 9888 Haf : +852 2289 8888 » fHE : +852 2289 9888
www.pwchk.com www.pwchk.com
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

° Impairment assessment of goodwill and trademarks with indefinite
useful life
° Impairment assessment of investments in associates

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2020

EMWER

BRRE ZEHEVBRERERERE
gitMAg((HEESMAE)BEHH(E
BHBHmE LI (KEBMHREERD])
EEMPRHMRIRT BHEEN2020412
ABNEMERAMBRAREBREZALLF
ENEAMBRALGERERE A
ERBB(RAHEPDO R EREZ R ERE

RRE®

BRMEREFESAMAGRMN(EES
FHEAD(KEBEED)) ETER - R
MEZSFENTERENRTIEEARE X
PR BA G AV BHRRAZENEEIH D
REE— M -

BFBEE RMMESHNETREELTE
FEEWSRPINETERLIRMAER -

B

REZEEEAMIASRMO(EXSIM
BESTADATHBEISTRD  RMAB
R EEE YEETTHTHEMER
BREME-

FERETER

BREFFTEERBERMANEXHE R
REARGEAMBHRRNBAZA/EEN
FH ELFHERMEAEERREAVS
BEAMHABREBRE - LM T @HEL
EHERHEENER -

BMESTREROBEEETFER RN
T

o« EERALEBREREHOEEHE
S

s BMERRRERENG
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Key Audit Matter
BAEETTEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNEFOMEERBRENSHE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and trademarks with indefinite useful life

BERAREREAFHNERRETGE

Refer to notes 19 to the consolidated financial statements.
FLHERETHEREWE19-

The Group has a significant balance of goodwill and
trademarks with indefinite useful life arising primarily from the
acquisition of Beijing HHG Restaurant Management Co., Ltd. (the
“HHG Group”) in 2016 and the acquisition of Beijing New
Spicy Way Catering Management Ltd. (the “New Spicy Way
Group”) in 2018. As at 31 December 2020, goodwill
amounted to RMB580,931,000 and trademarks with indefinite
useful life amounted to RMB499,346,000.
EEENRERAEERCRAFHOBEREERER
mMEGEREAFHAOEIEREE E KRB R2016F WL
RMEAERERARAA(MNEAEE]) RN20184F
WHBIEtRHTREEREBERABA(FREEE]D - ©
20204F 12 A31H + 7 & /580,931,000t AR - AR
IR 5 3 F 23 00 P 1R /8 499,346,000 T A R o

Goodwill and trademarks with indefinite useful life are subject
to impairment assessment annually and when there is an
indication of impairment.
HELEEEREAFHNAZRASF REFERERN
R EITRE R

In carrying out the impairment assessment, significant
judgements are required to estimate the future cash flows of
the cash generating units (“CGUs”) of the relevant group of
restaurants and to determine the assumptions, including the
revenue growth rates, gross margin and long term growth rate
used in the cash flow projections and the discount rate
applied to bring the future cash flows back to their present
values.

EETRETGER  FEFLERABAGAEERE
SENREeEABEN(ReELELDNRRRER
B VTEETRE EREASRERAFEANBKAER
EENERRAERE URAERKBESRERR
ZHREEMEANFTERE -

In response to this key audit matter, we have performed
the following procedures:
REHZBAREAEFE  HASRTATRERF

° Evaluating the management’s process in performing
impairment assessment of goodwill and trademarks
with indefinite useful life, including the assessment
as to whether any indication of impairment exists
during the year ended 31 December 2020;

e HAEEEEYRERAFERCAFHNAR
B BT EE - BIERT hE20206F12 A 31 H
LTFERAFEEMABETR

° Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent valuer engaged by the
Group to determine the recoverable amounts, based
on value-in-use method, of the CGUs;

e IfH ESEERAMNBUMGEANER- 8
LEBEM IRTRAEELIETCREELSN
#)A] U [Bl & %8

° Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology used;
e IEFMAMERENEE I
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Key Audit Matter
BAEETTEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNEFOMEERBRENSHE

Based on the results of the impairment assessment conducted
by the Group, it is determined that there is no impairment of
goodwill and trademarks with indefinite useful life as at 31
December 2020. This conclusion is based on recoverable
amount, which is determined based on value in use,
exceeding the respective carrying amounts of the CGUs
including goodwill, trademarks with indefinite useful life and
operating assets as at 31 December 2020.

BiE ESEEETHRETHER BETHERAAE
RAEAFHAEENR2020F12 4318 I & F E - Z 4
RIBEA KN E S EEE - 7T W E © & T R2020F 12 A
SIAZHABESE TEBELEERE ABERER
FHAREREEAELANB SELAEMLSENERE
B
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Evaluating the reasonableness of the key
assumptions used by management and the
independent valuer in the determination of value in
use of the CGUs, mainly in relation to:
AEERERBE Y EMEEEReEAEN
FTHRHEERCEANFERRNGEN FEY
Ko

— the forecasted sales and gross margin, by
comparing them with actual historical financial
data;

— %W%%ﬁ%ﬂ$ 7% H B PR S B R
BREITH R

— the long term growth rate, by comparing it with
the relevant economic forecasts; and

— RESEX BHEEMB@ELSEEINETL
B Rk

— the discount rate, by comparing the rate used
by the Group to those of comparable
companies;

- FHRE- B E%l%ﬁﬁ Rt R A & It
BARM L REITHE

Testing the numerical accuracy of the calculations in
the recoverable amounts of the CGUs and the
relevant carrying amounts, including goodwill,
trademarks with indefinite useful life and operating
assets as at 31 December 2020; and

Bl A FFE R2020F12A31HB @ EE BN
AlEeEREEEE AEEREAFHN
BMEREEEELANNEHKREENSFTER
M &

Evaluating management’s sensitivity calculation over
the recoverable amount of the CGUs, focusing on
those key assumptions to which the calculation was
most sensitive.

?ﬁ*@ﬁﬁﬁé?iﬁﬁ%ﬂ%@%%mﬁ
RE WHKEEMEFEZSEHFBROHEER

Based on the procedures performed, we found the key
assumptions adopted in relation to the impairment
assessment to be consistent with the available evidence.
BBERTORF  BMBEEBRRETEAEANEE
BRBAEAK -
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Key Audit Matter
BAEETTEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNEFOMEERBRENSHE

Impairment assessment of investments in associates

BEQARARERMENG

Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
FLHRETHREWE18-

The Group has significant investments in associates, which
are accounted for under the equity method. As at 31
December 2020, investments in associates amounted to
RMB220,026,000.

EEEHBEATNRESEERN UHAERERZ
H o 2020512 431 A - B & A Al 1% & /220,026,000 7T
ARE -

Investments in associates are subject to impairment
assessment when there is an indication of impairment.

BEARREAEFERETREETREN G -

In carrying out the impairment assessment, significant
judgements are required to estimate the Group’s share of the
future cash flows of the associates and to determine the
assumptions, such as the revenue growth rates, gross margin
and long term growth rate used to prepare the cash flow
projections of the associates, and the discount rates applied
to bring the future cash flows back to their present values.
FRITHET G FEEHEAAMU GG BEE
EREEE RRIRRBRRE - WETERRK - Ol A RH
BiERAREeRERAEANKRAERE  EF XK
REPRERE - ULKRERAKRRERENREALREME
AR X -

In response to this key audit matter, we have performed
the following procedures:
REHZBARESER  HMABSRTATERF:

Evaluating the Group’s assessment as to whether
any indication of impairment exist during the year
ended 31 December 2020, including:

T BEEEREZE2020F12A31ALEFER
BREEEABEDTRNTE 21

— significant adverse changes in the market or
economic environment in which the associates
operates;

— BMEQARKEMENTSALBEREES

BEATHEL

— significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the associates below their costs;

- BERFAREBEABIEREEZENE
PR

Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent valuer engaged by the
Group to determine the recoverable amounts, based
on value-in-use method, of the investments in
associates;

I EEEERANBEUEEMNERS - 82
REGE NRECABBEELIEEH 2 AFRKRE
BRI el & &8

Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology used;

AHEFTRMAETZNEE T
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Key Audit Matter
BAEETTEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNEFOMEERBRENSHE

Based on the results of the impairment assessment conducted
by the Group, it is determined that an impairment of
RMB24,625,000 was made against the investment in an
associate as at 31 December 2020. For the investments in
other associates, it's determined that there is no impairment
as at 31 December 2020. This conclusion is based on
recoverable amounts, which are calculated based on value in
use, exceeding the respective carrying amounts as at 31
December 2020.

BE BEEBEETHRENGHER  #EN2020F 12
A31 8 %8 & R R &R E /24,625,0007T A R o 1
2020F12 A1 B st AL fth Bt &8 A RV IR & W MR (B © & A
BB KBS FEEE - AT W E © #E TR 202012 A
STAZERAEBEESH THBHEEMNEREE -
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Evaluating the reasonableness of the key
assumptions used by management in the
determination of value in use of investment in
associates, mainly in relation to:
THERECECTHEAAREGCAEERE
ANEZEBREMNEEE FEH R

— the forecasted sales and gross margin, by
comparing them with actual historical financial
data;

— BRAHEENMEMNX BHEEHRELNK
HIBETHR

— thelong term growth rate, by comparing it with
the relevant economic forecasts; and

— RHEERE BHEBBAKLERIETL
8 &

— the discount rates, by comparing the rates
used by the Group to those of comparable
companies;

— WHRX - SEERANLXEAEL
BRARIME EEITHER

Testing the numerical accuracy of the calculations in
the recoverable amount of the investments in
associates.

BB EBMERRRENATIRE &M B FAE
T -

Based on the procedures performed, we found the key
assumptions adopted in relation to the impairment
assessment to be consistent with the available evidence.
BERTHER BMBRBRETEAERANEE
BREBEAMK-.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Hon Chong Heng.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALLEE
2020 2019
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M & FAR% FARM
Continuing operations BEREER
Revenue A 5 650,691 998,250
Cost of sales 55 KA 8 (299,174) (407,912)
Gross profit E 351,517 590,338
Distribution and selling expenses 788 M HE 2 8 (361,873) (491,179)
General and administrative expenses —BERITHEA 8 (96,236) (109,581)
Reversal of/(provision for) expected credit £ B EEMNTEHE A B K&
loss allowance for financial assets, net () FRE 3.1(b) 450 (2,849)
Other income H b A 6 12,730 19,622
Other gains, net H Az 5 58 7 (5,030) 968
Operating (loss)/profit K (BR), B (98,442) 7,319
Finance income B 35 U A 9 221 258
Finance expenses Bi%5eE R 9 (17,332) (24,754)
Interest on convertible bonds AR ESF B 9,23 (35,214) (35,920)
Finance expenses — net BB RFEE 9 (52,325) (60,416)
Gain on fair value change on derivative TTESMTAAREBEEH
financial instrument W 20 29,262 —
Share of loss of associates JEALEE & R RESIE 18 (14,559) (11,189
Impairment losses on investments in B N R E B R EE 18
associates 18 (24,625) (14,971)
Loss before taxation BREAEE (160,689) (79,257)
Income tax credit/(expense) FrigfiE e, (X4H) 10 9,693 (7,013)

Loss for the year from continuing
operations

FRABELSEELER
(150,996) (86,270)

BREBRBERAT —E-_ZFER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)
mEEERaER(E)

Year ended 31 December
HBZ128318LLEE

2020
Note RMB’000
HY 5 FTAR®

Discontinued operations:

Profit for the year

Loss on disposal of equity interest in
discontinued operations before
reclassification of foreign currency

BERIEREXK:
F Ak A 35
EFBINEREREEALE
EREREXBBEER G
B P15 H)

translation reserve, net of income tax 35
Reclassification of foreign currency REEREFTHPHEERIEKEE
translation reserve on discontinued BTG 2 INEE IR E G
operations upon disposal 35
Loss for the year from discontinued FRORIEREEBER
operations
Loss for the year FRAEE (150,996)
Loss for the year attributable to: FABEBEN:
Equity holders of the Company RARERITEA (140,938)
Non-controlling interest FE 5 A% (10,058)
(150,996)
Other comprehensive income Hiat 2wk
ltem that may be reclassified subsequentlyto E & Al @ EFH D B2 EH 2
profit or loss: HA -
Exchange differences arising on translation BMEEINERMESE ZIE
of foreign operations HZEH
Exchange differences arising on translation K & 0 48 || & & ¥ 5 M &
of discontinued operations BN EE
Reclassification of foreign currency REEBREFDECKRIEL
translation reserve on discontinued BEIEZIINEBRE FE
operations upon disposal 35
Other comprehensive income for the year FREMEERE

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2020

2019
RMB’000
TAR®

12,614

(39,994)

(7,637)

(35,117)

(121,387)

(121,634)
247

(121,387)

(7,790)

11,295

7,637

11,142



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)
mEEERaER(E)

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALEE
2020 2019
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 FTARY FARM
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREHEEGERSE (142,048) (110,245)
Total comprehensive loss fortheyear ER2HEEGELERBER
attributable to:
— Equity holders of the Company —ARAFEREFEA (131,990) (110,492)
— Non-controlling interests — IR (10,058) 247
(142,048) (110,245)
Total comprehensive loss fortheyear SREBERAQATAEZBEAZE
attributable to equity holders of the AZHEEBEARE
Company
— Continuing operations — B EKEEK (131,990) (94,307)
— Discontinued operations — BRI EER = (16,185)
(131,990) (110,492)
Loss per share for loss from continuing S3EBRAQATEBZFEAZE
operations attributable to equity BEREEKEBECEBREE:
holders of the Company:
Loss per share (RMB cents) — basic BREBE(DARE) — &K 12 (5.56)
Loss per share (RMB cents) — diluted BREE(DARE) —WHE 12 (5.56)
Loss per share for loss attributableto SEBEREAATEREBEEAZE
equity holders of the Company: BE8RERE:
Loss per share (RMB cents) — basic FREE(DARE) —HEK 12 (7.81)
Loss per share (RMB cents) — diluted BREBODARE) —RE 12 (7.81)
BERRERAT —B-BEER
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
REEERER

Note
B 5

Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WERE 15
Right-of-use-assets FREEE 16
Investments in associates E N AR E 18
Goodwill FEES 19
Intangible assets BmEAE 19
Derivative financial instrument TESmIA 20
Deferred tax assets EER 18 & B 28
Trade and other receivables B E 5 & H b 58 21
Financial assets at fair value through BRAABEFEEHEEHTA

other comprehensive income HihrmElmremEE 22
Other non-current assets HEfIERBEE 26
Current assets REBEE
Inventories VEN=Y 17
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 K H 58 21
Other current assets Hith B & E 26
Financial assets at fair value through BEARBEFESEEESHTA

profit or loss B omEE 25
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 24
Total Assets EEHE
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 & H MR 27
Contract liabilities AHatE 30
Lease liabilities HEAaE 16
Borrowings & 3 29
Tax payable JERT IR
Convertible bonds — interest payable AREES — EARE 23

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2020

As at 31 December

M2A31H

2020
RMB’000
TAR®

124,832
304,244
220,026
580,931
505,763
72,226
33,560
29,213

5,000
1,284

1,877,079

32,338
39,320
57,302

27,931
123,741

280,632

2,157,711

150,223
59,144
102,771
16,200
4,926
45,837

379,101

2019
RMB’000
TAR®

151,830
372,944
273,054
580,931
507,468

25,205

43,116

5,000
2,075

1,961,623

35,935
29,338
59,392

62,792
131,285

318,742

2,280,365

129,060
61,746
116,709
5,000
7,495
34,183

354,193



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
HEEEREBEREAE

As at 31 December
M12H31H

2020

Note RMB’000
HY 5 FTAR®

439,588
213,394
121,790

3,167

777,939

1,157,040

133,023
791,093

Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Payable in relation to put right of FE TR FEFE AR AE 2SR OA

non-controlling interests EHEEE 36
Convertible bonds Bk ES 23
Lease liabilities HEAE 16
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEAE 28
Borrowings &= 29
Deferred government grants iR AE BT 4 B 31
Total liabilities =gk
Capital and reserves EXRGE
Share capital [N 34
Reserves 8
Equity attributable to equity holders of SEBRARREERFEA

the Company P& Lo
Non-controlling interests FE A fE

924,116
76,555

Total equity

EmAE

1,000,671

Total liabilities and equity

EERESAR

2,157,711

The consolidated financial statements on pages 73 to 207 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2021

and are signed on its behalf by:

Zhao John Huan
HIE
CHAIRMAN
FE

2019
RMB’000
TAR®

99,024
448,380
263,580
123,579

1,200
5,443

941,206

1,295,399

133,023
766,427

899,450
85,516

984,966

2,280,365

BN BIBE07TEMNGATERERKCESS
R2021F3 A25 AL fE R IRBETIE - Wi A
TATREZRE:

Wang Xiaolong

EEE
DIRECTOR
EF

BREERERAH

—ECEFFR
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o/
CONSOLIDATED STATEME\I\/IT*OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
MEEZEHR

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
SERANAERBEA

Non- Asset Non-
Share Share  distributable revaluation  Translation Special  Retained controliing
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  eamings Sub-Total  interests Total
TRk BEEMR FEiRME
A Bl EE @ #E ERREHB BHEE REERA NE Ex Eh

NOTES RMB'000 RMB'000 ~ RMB000 RMB'O00  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
M TARE TARE TARE TARE TARE TARE TARE TARE TAR%E TARE

At 1 January 2019 R201951818 122,949 582,056 929 9,248 205 (17,883) 201,673 899,077 84,219 983,296

(Loss)profit for the year 4 7 (B518) /& 7l - - - - - — (121,634 (121,634 247 (121,387)

Other comprehensive FREMZEKE:

income for the year:
Currency translation ERRhEEE -

differences-associates NG| 18 - - - - 6,239 - - 6,239 - 6,239
Currengy translation EHBEEE -

differences-discontinued B & [F & 275

operations 35 - - - - 18,932 - - 18,932 - 18,932
Currency translation EHAEES -

differences-others Hit — - — - (14,029) - - (14,029) - (14,029)
Total comprehensive FREE(HR)/

(loss)/income for WHBE

the year - - - - 1,142 — (121,634)  (110492) 247 (110,245)
Non-controlling interests ~ #TA LI B2 B E £

arising on newly ZHERER

established subsidiaries - - - — — — - - 1,050 1,050
Change in fair value of ERMEERERR

payable in relation to EEBEBAR

put right of non- EEZY

controlling interests 36 - — - — — 5,072 - 5,072 — 5,072
Shares converted from ARkEFERY

convertible bonds Pign) 23 10,074 111,332 - — - (23,794) — 97,612 — 97,612
Value of services provided & IR # 5t &I 2 i 17 12

under share option Bt BB T AR

scheme and share "%z EE

award scheme 32 - — - — — 8,181 - 8,181 — 8,181
At 31 December 2019 R2019% 124318 133,023 693,388 929 9,248 11,347 (28,424) 79,939 899,450 85,516 984,966

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2020



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
mERm 2R (HE)

At 1 January 2020 R202051 818
Loss for the year FRER
Other comprehensive ~ FRHE M2 E 3 :
income for the year:
Currency translation EWBEEE -
differences-associates 2N 18
Currency translation ERBREEE -
differences-others Hith
Total comprehensive FRE2AFELE
loss for the year
Non-controlling interests 75X 32 Ii B 22 7l & £
arising on newly ZHEERER
established subsidiaries
Change in fair value of EREFEERERR
payable in relation to HREEEEAR
put right of non- BEZY
controlling interests 36
Deemed contrioution from R E R EE
shareholder 20
Value of services provided & AR # 21 &) T2 JL {7 48
under share option BEtEIET AR
scheme and share H“RH2EE
award scheme 32
At31December 2020  R2020F125318

Share
capital

IS

NOTES | ;LK)
LR TARY

133,023

133,023

premium

K it e
RMB’000
TAR®

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BEREQRERBEA

Non- Asset
Share distributable revaluation Translation
reserve

A2 K

reserve

BEET

reserve

EXRE
RMB'000
TAR®

RMB’000
TARH

RMB’000
FTARH

693,388 9,248 11,347

(18,325)

27,273

693,388 20,295

Retained
earnings Sub-Total

REEF et
RMB’000
TAR®

RMB’000
TARH

79939 899,450
(140,038)  (140,938)

(18,325)

27,273

(140,938)  (131,990)

97,778

46,631

12,247

(60,999)

924,116

BREERERAH

in

RMB’000

?

Non-

controlling

terests Total
FER

£ aF
RMB’000
TARH

AR
85,516 984,966

(10,058)  (150,996)

(10,058)  (142,048)

1,007

97,778

46,631

12,247

76,555 1,000,671
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i

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AERERER

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2020 2019
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 FTARY FAR®
Cash flows from operating activities RETBHEBEERE
Cash generated from operations IR B EEIE TS IH & 33 116,356 192,283
Interest paid 2 F B (662) (332)
Interest received 2 U F B 221 259
Income taxes refund FT8BR 152 1,970
Income taxes paid B ATER (3,169) (1,085)
Net cash generated from operating RETHFREBELSFEHE
activities 112,898 193,115
Cash flows from investing activities RETEMBRERE
Investment in an associate HEERARIKRE (4,481) -
Payment of consideration payable for THRWERE AR EMARE
acquisition of subsidiaries (139,500)
Cash outflows from disposal of subsidiaries, 1 & i & 2 a]I8 & /& B
net of cash disposed (MBrEEERSE) = (7,240)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B E Y% - = L& (32,744) (59,766)
Purchase of financial asset at fair value BERAABEFTEAHES
through profit or loss FFABSCERMEE (111,780) (138,707)
Proceeds from redemption of financial asset fEE iz A 1 BETE A H&§)
at fair value through profit or loss FFABSCEMEEMS
RIH 146,922 90,101
Purchase of intangible assets BEEVAE (35) (1,422)
Government grants received 2 WA 4 B 530 6,246
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEYWE BMENMREMS
and equipment A 347 3,101
Investment in financial assets at fair value BEAREBEMFSAEZSHTA
through other comprehensive income EthermlimzceméEE
®E& = (3,000)
Loans granted to related parties ) A B 5 B 3K (2,140) (600)
Repayment of loans by third parties F-HEEER 1,130 1,111
Repayment of loans by related parties R H(EEE X 2,200 12,000
Interest received on financial assets at far AR EETEEHZ 8 A
value through profit or loss Bm 2o/ EEmERF S 1,694 1,205
Interest received on loans to related parties A B8 B 75 & 5% BT U FI & 403 941
Net cash generated from/(used in) BRETEHFRE(FFA)
investing activities ReFEHE (235,530)

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2020



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

GERETRER(E)

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALEE
2020 2019
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M 3 FAR% FAR®
Cash flows from financing activities REZTHMEBEERE
Capital injection from non-controlling JEEREREE
interests 1,097 1,050
Dividends paid to shareholders TABREZEE = (363)
Repayment of borrowings BEBER (5,000) (5,000)
Proceeds from borrowings B8 kA 15,000 5,000
Payment of lease liabilities THHEEERE (134,458) (127,660)
Net cash used in from financing MEITBMAESTE
activities (123,361) (126,973)
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRESESEYRLDFE
equivalents (8,417) (169,388)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginningof RFEHZIRESNHEESEED
year 131,285 302,277
Exchange gains/(losses) on cash and cash R4 NI S ZEWE KW~
equivalents (EB#) 873 (1,604)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of REXRZEEeRESEEY
year 123,741 131,285
BRERERART —ZTE_ZFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 12 A31H IFF &

General information

Best Food Holding Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
operation of chain restaurants.

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong (the “Stock Exchange”). Its parent
company is Sonic Tycoon Limited, a company incorporated in
British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and its ultimate holding company is
Exponential Fortune Group Limited (“Exponential Fortune”), a
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The ultimate
controlling shareholder of Exponential Fortune is Zhao John Huan,
who is also the Chairman of the Company. The addresses of the
registered office of the Company is Hutchins Drive P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman, KY1-111 Cayman Islands.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong dollars (“HK
dollars” or “HK$”), while the consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), unless otherwise stated.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the temporary
suspension of the restaurants and the dampening of consumer
sentiment due to the global COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in a
significant decrease in the Group’s revenue in 2020, and
constituted to a triggering event of impairment tests of investments
in certain associates of the Group. It brought additional challenge
to the overall operating environment of the industry and the Group.

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
rE W Rk MY a (48D

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F €

Summary of significant accounting
policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for the following:

° Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
payable in relation to put right of non-controlling interests and
derivative financial instrument — measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

2.1.1 Going concern

As of 31 December 2020, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by RMB98,469,000. The liquidity of the Group is
primarily dependent on its ability to maintain adequate cash inflows
from operations and sufficient financing to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due. Considering the Group’s
ability to generate net cash inflows from its future operating
activities and the investment agreement entered into with a related
party controlled by Exponential Fortune (the ultimate holding
company of the Company) in relation to the issuance of convertible
bonds by the Company (Note 20), the directors of the Company
believe that adequate funding is available to fuffill the Group’s debt
obligations and capital expenditure requirements during the 12
months period from 31 December 2020. Therefore, the financial
statements have been prepared on the going concern basis.

2 EXETHREE

REZEEEMBRRAEANEE
SEHEHEINWOT BB BHBI
BEERR —BEEARMERENS

{/\ °

21 RRER

AEENGEEMBHRREREETLSS
AR AERANMEERNEEY
BHRELEN(TEER KRS EL DR
o REMBRRTVRE LKA ED
e HET P EHERRID -

« BAREENEARZHIHAK
ek EzSREE BAR
EEGEERSDHABELS
BRAFE 81 H) 3 1 BR AR 28 RO
MWEERTESRIA — &
AR EEGE -

BEGERAEY B REERNY R
FEGCRETHREHGA TE
KEREETRAASESTEENA
BROEEHAEBE D A ERBRESEEH
ek BB SRR E G
ZERAVMBREMEBEANE
B R E4RIEE -
211 FERKE
H Z2020F12A31H A& B 2 &
E) B F BB H R ) & & 98,469,000 7T
AR KEB s RBESTERT
HEE S BFA T2 ERERAREN
BMENBTHIB L UBEE - BE
AAEBEBENBERREEETH
BEHE IR ® 0 AT 58 & B i Exponential
Fortune (AN 2 81 ) S8R ¥ IR 2 &) 128 4
RBAE A AR R BT A R E H AT
Y2 EHE(WF20)  ARAFES
RE ARREBRHNESUEITA
£ #2020 12 A31 A€ 1218 A Hi 4
L EBEBRERNZTHESR Bl
PHERERCBBEFECEEERE -

BRERERLR —ZT-ZFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has applied the following standards and amendments

for the first time for their annual reporting period commencing 1

January 2020:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8

Definition of Material

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments to HKFRS 7, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 Reform

Revised Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting

The Group also elected to adopt the following amendments early:
Amendment to HKFRS 16

COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions

The amendments stated above did not have any impact on the
amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to
significantly affect the current or future periods, except for the
amendment to IFRS 16 on COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
as set out in Note 2.2 below.

2.1.3 New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been
published but are not mandatory for 31 December 2020 reporting
period and have not been early adopted by the Group. These
standards are not expected to have a material impact on the Group
in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 12 A31H IFF &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures

The Group has early adopted the amendment to HKFRS 16 on
COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions retrospectively from 1
January 2020. The amendment provides an optional practical
expedient allowing lessees to elect not to assess whether a rent
concession related to COVID-19 is a lease modification. Lessees
can elect to account for rent concessions in the same way as they
would if they were not lease modifications.

The practical expedient only applies to rent concessions occurring
as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and only if all
of the following conditions are met:

o the change in lease payments results in revised consideration
for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less than,
the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the
change;

° any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

° there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions
of the lease.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to all rent
concessions that meet the above conditions in respect of lease
arrangements for which lease liabilities are recognised. During the
year ended 31 December 2020, rent concessions totalling
RMB15,990,000 have been recognised in profit or loss as negative
variable lease payments with a corresponding adjustment to the
lease liabilities. There is no impact on the opening balance of equity
at 1 January 2020.

BEASTHEBE @

22 EFFBEREEZL

KB H2020F1A1H #£iI2F B W
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e HMENFZAMRBEZEZERER
202146 A30H =k 2 A B #7 2 1+
Rk

e MEZHMEARKHYEERD

AEEEHEEREEAGECAESR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 12 A31H IFF &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries

2.3.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the
Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(a) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are
shown separately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes
in equity and balance sheet respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
rE W Rk MY a (48D

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 12 A31H IFF &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a) Business combinations (Continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date fair
value, unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the acquiree’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date;
any gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance with
HKIFRS 39 in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwiill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of
a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the
statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued)
(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without
change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is,
as transactions with the owners of the subsidiary in their capacity
as owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

2.3.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwiill.

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2020

EXETHRBME @

2.3 i B 2 8 (\)

231 & ptuE)
(b) FTEBHZEHESRZHNE A
AEEARERE

TEE kR EERERR
SABDERZERS — BABEES
BEAZIHENBRRNEE AR
2RG HAMENRER R EMEER
WEKHBAT SEER®mEY =8
A HEFTRBERZRERE
BINE AR

232 BB ®REK

W B R R 2 18 & Ty B AN 0 B R (B
BIBE - A BIEIR B BRI A -
ENGIE Y kA= 8
FUNX

WRMBAR ZREELEZ RS BB
MBRARARERKREHHE 2 2mK R
RELAMZREREBYBRERAL
FHEBBREHREEFHR(ER
BE)RNFaPBRERAZEKREE Al
RKEZEREHAHZEFRELTT

R AR o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
rE W Rk MY a (48D

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F €

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.4 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss of
the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group’s investments
in associates include goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, any difference
between the cost of the associate and the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
accounted for as goodwiill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is
recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired.
If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment
as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate
and its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to 'share
of profit of investments accounted for using equity method’ in the
statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 12 A31H IFF &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.4 Associates (Continued)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are recognised
in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

2.5 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive director of the
company that makes strategic decisions.

2.6 Foreign currency translation

(@ Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB, which
is the Group’s presentation currency. The Company’s functional
currency is HKD.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, except
when deferred in other comprehensive income as qualifying cash
flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b) Transactions and balances (Continued)
All the foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
statement of comprehensive income within “other gains — net”.

() Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive
income comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions);
and

(i) all resulting currency translation differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise mainly factories and offices. Leasehold land
classified as finance lease and all other property, plant and
equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of
comprehensive income during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B HRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation on assets is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

— Buildings
— Leasehold improvement

40-50 years

Shorter of remaining lease
term or useful life

— Fumniture, fixtures and equipment 3-10 years

— Motor vehicles 4-10 years

— Plant and machinery 5-10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within “Other
gains/(losses) — net” in the statement of comprehensive income.

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of construction for
production or administrative purposes, are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes all
construction expenditure, professional fees, borrowing costs
capitalized and other relevant expenses directly attributable to such
projects. No provision for depreciation is made on construction in
progress until such time when construction work is complete and
the costs of construction are transferred to the appropriate
category of fixed assets when available for use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
rE W Rk MY a (48D

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 12 A31H IFF &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.8 Intangible assets
(@ Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs”), or Groups of CGUSs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or Group of units to
which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within
the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwiill
is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of
value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.

(b) Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are shown at historical cost.
Trademarks acquired in a business combination are recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. Trademarks have an indefinite
useful life. Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful lives are
reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets that are acquired separately. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment loss (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
losses on non-financial assets (Note 2.9)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e TR R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.8 Intangible assets (continued)

(¢) Software
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful
lives of five years.

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible
assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are Grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.

2.10 Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business,
the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly distinguished
from the rest of the Group and which represents a separate major
line of business or geographic area of operations, or is part of a
single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or is a subsidiary
acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount is
presented in the statement of comprehensive income, which
comprises the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation
and the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement to
fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the disposal group
constituting the discontinued operation. Comparatives figures are
reclassified for consistent presentation purpose.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets

() Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through OCI or through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be
recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of
initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

(i) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely
payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other
gains/(losses) together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item
in the statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 12 A31H IFF &

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit or
loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/(losses).
Interest income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate method.
Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other
gains/(losses) and impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of comprehensive income.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost
or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other
gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair
value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or
loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from
such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised
in other gains/(losses) in the statement of comprehensive income
as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

(iv) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit
losses associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised
cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent
on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of
the company or the counterparty.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 12 A31H IFF &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress comprises design costs,
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses. Costs of inventories include the transfer
from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges for
purchases of raw materials.

2.14 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. They are generally due for settlement within 180 days
and therefore are all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. See Note 21
for further information about the Group’s accounting for trade
receivables and Note 3.1 for a description of the Group’s policies
for expected credit loss allowance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks
and other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less. In the consolidated balance
sheet, bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities.

2.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.17 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.18 Borrowings (Continued)

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as
other income or finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the end of the reporting period.

2.19 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

BEASTHEBE @

2.18 & X (&)

EANTHREZETERR  BUBSE
i BEREEERBRTIHEG B
HHRIBETS - HZEMABEZR
HEEZEXNREEREACEE
ZHBEEEIMALZEZEE) 2M
LEB CEEATHERISHEMBAK

BROEREEEREFRMTBERBER
REBREHRERRRED12A &
AR BRRBEE-

2.19 f& FRBL A
EERBRKRE EEbERE
REEELEKR—BEHEBENAER
HBREMABRHEEZEE) 2 — KRR
FEMEFRE  MARFEEZKAE
N BEEEEARLEHEBRTERE

PREEMERKAEELEHAZ RS
RERR o

BREERERAT —ZE-FEER

101



102

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 12 A31H IFF &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.20 Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the Group comprise
convertible bonds that can be converted to share capital at the
option of the holder, and the number of shares to be issued does
not vary with changes in their fair value.

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is
recognised initially at the fair value of a similar liability that does not
have an equity conversion option. The equity component is
recognised initially at the difference between the fair value of the
compound financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the
liability component, which is included in shareholders’ equity in
other reserves. Any directly attributable transaction costs are
allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to
their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a
compound financial instrument is measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity component of a
compound financial instrument is not re-measured subsequent to
initial recognition except on conversion or expiry.

If the convertible financial instrument is converted, the respective
equity component of the compound financial instrument, together
with the carrying value of the liability component at the time of
conversion, are transferred to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued.

The liability component of a convertible instrument is classified as
current unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 12 A31H IFF &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

(@ Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in
the countries where the company’s subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable to control the
reversal of the temporary difference for associates. Only when there
is an agreement in place that gives the Group the ability to control
the reversal of the temporary difference in the foreseeable future,
deferred tax liability in relation to taxable temporary differences
arising from the associate’s undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint arrangements only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future and
there is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits

The Group operates short-term employee benefits and post-
employment schemes.

(@ Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits include wages or salaries, bonus,
allowances and subsidies, staff welfare, premiums or contributions
on medical insurance, work injury insurance and maternity
insurance, housing funds, union running costs and employee
education costs, short-term paid absences and etc. The short-term
employee benefits actually occurred are recognised as a liability in
the accounting period in which the service is rendered by the
employees, with a corresponding charge to the profit or loss for the
current period or the cost of relevant assets. Non-monetary benefits
are measured at fair value.

(b) Post-employment benefits

The Group classifies post-employment benefit plans as either
defined contribution plans or defined benefit plans. Defined
contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate fund and will
have no obligation to pay further contributions. During the year, the
Group’s post-employment benefits that are defined contribution
plans mainly include the premiums or contributions on basic
pensions and unemployment insurance. A defined benefit plan is a
pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan. Typically
defined benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit that an
employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or
more factors such as age, years of service and compensation.
During the year, the Group does not have post-employment
benefits that are defined benefit plans.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M B RRMNE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 12 A31H IFF &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Post-employment benefits (Continued)

Basic pensions

The Group’s employees participate in the basic pension plan set up
and administered by local authorities of Ministry of Human
Resource and Social Security. Monthly payments of premiums on
the basic pensions are calculated according to the bases and
percentage prescribed by the relevant local authorities. When
employees retire, the relevant local authorities are obliged to pay
the basic pensions to them. The amounts based on the above
calculations are recognised as liabilities in the accounting period in
which the service has been rendered by the employees, with a
corresponding charge to the profit or loss for the current period or
the cost of relevant assets.

(c) Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans. These plans comprise a share option scheme
and a share award scheme. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options or shares is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of the options or shares
granted as at date of grant, including any market performance
conditions and excluding the impacts of any non-market service
and performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales
growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period) as well as any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees to save). Non-market
vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number
of options or shares that are expected to vest. The total amount
expensed is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period
over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options and shares that are expected to vest
based on the non-marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

() Share-based compensation (Continued)

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium when the options are exercised.

2.23 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods
supplied, stated net of discounts, and the relevant business taxes
on value added taxes.

(@ Revenue from food and beverage business

The Group operates chain restaurants for selling fast food and hot
pot food. Sales of goods are recognised when a restaurant of the
Group passes the food to the customer. Retail sales are usually in
cash, by credit card or by online payment platforms.

Prepaid cards issued for which the services have not been
rendered are recognised as contract liabilities until the relevant
services are performed.

The Group operates customer loyalty programme for its restaurant
operations where customers accumulate points for purchases
made which entitle them to discounts on future purchases. The
Group accounts for award credits as a separately identifiable
component of the sales transactions in which they are granted (the
“initial sale”). The fair value of the consideration received or
receivable in respect of the initial sale is allocated between the
award credits (based on fair value), which is credited to contract
liabilities and the other components of the sales. Revenue from the
award points is recognised when the points are redeemed. The
amount of revenue is based on the number of reward points
redeemed relative to the total number expected to be redeemed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(@ Revenue from food and beverage business
(Continued)
Sales of finished goods are recognised when control of the
products has transferred, being when the products are delivered to
the franchisee and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect
the franchisee’s acceptance of the products. The franchisee does
not have a right of return upon receipt of the products. The Group
does not operate any loyalty programmes for its franchisees.

(b) Revenue from manufacturing and sales of
handbags business

Revenue from the sales of goods are recognised when control of
the products has transferred, being when the products are
delivered to the buyer, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that
could affect the buyer’'s acceptance of the products. Delivery
occurs when the products have been shipped to the specified
location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred
to the buyer, and either the buyer has accepted the products in
accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions
have lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

(¢) Franchise income
Franchise income is recognised on an accrual basis over the period
in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements.

(d) Management and service fee income
Management service fee income is recognised over the time when
services are rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.24 Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income as part of other income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is earned
from financial assets that are held for cash management purposes.
Any other interest income is included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial
assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-
impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the
loss allowance).

2.25 Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

2.26 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.
However, for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lesses, it
has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a
wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements
do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in
the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may
not be used as security for borrowing purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.26 Leases (Continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivable

o variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee
would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 12 A31H IFF &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.26 Leases (Continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by
the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third party financing
was received

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest
rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Company,
which does not have recent third party financing, and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term, country,
currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the
individual lessee (through recent financing or market data) which
has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the group entities
use that rate as a starting point to determine the incremental
borrowing rate.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease
payments based on an index or rate, which are not included in the
lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease
payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is
reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B HRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.26 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

° any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received

° any initial direct costs, and
o restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the
right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful
life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised on a straight- line basis as an expense
in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of
12 months or less without a purchase option.

2.27 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders
or directors, where appropriate.

2.28 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.28 Government grants (Continued)

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred government grants
and are credited to the statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

2.29 Earning per share

(@) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

° the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary
shares

o by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during the year and
excluding treasury shares.

(b) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

° the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing
costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

° the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares
that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 12 A31H IFF &

Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including currency risk and cash flow interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Group’s finance department
under policies approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.
The Company’s finance department identifies, evaluates financial
risks in close co-operation with the Group’s operating units. The
Board of Directors of the Company provides written principles for
overall risk management, as well as written policies covering
specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, credit risk, use of
derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial
instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.

(@ Market risk

(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s businesses are principally conducted in HK dollars,
US dollars and RMB, which is exposed to foreign currency risk with
respect to transactions denominated in currencies other than HK
dollars, RMB and US dollars. Foreign exchange risk arises from
recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations. The Group did not enter into any forward contract to
hedge its exposure to foreign currency risk for the year ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRMNE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@ Market risk (Continued)

(i)  Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of the Group’s
monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in currency
other than functional currencies of the respective group entities are
as follows:
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of non-controlling interests EEE - - 99,024

As at 31 December 2020, if RMB had weakened/strengthened by 5%
(2019: 5%) with all other variables held constant, pre-tax loss for
the year would have been RMB2,513,000 lower/higher (2019:
RMB3,833,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of HK dollar and US dollar-denominated
cash and bank balances, trade and other receivables and trade
and other payables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 12 A31H IFF &

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@ Market risk (Continued)

(i)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings. Borrowings
obtained at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk which is partially offset by cash held at variable rates. As at
each balance sheet date, substantially all of the Group’s borrowings
were carried at a fixed rate.

Based on the simulations performed by the Group, the impact on
post-tax profit of a 1% shift of interest rates for borrowings with
floating interest rates would be a maximum increase or decrease of
RMB12,000 for the year ended as 31 December 2020 (2019:
RMB9,000). The simulation is done on an annually basis to verify
that the maximum loss potential is within the limit given by the
management.

(b) Credit risk
The Group has two types of financial assets that are subject to the
expected credit loss model:

o trade receivables, and
o other receivables.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties provided by
the Group is arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated balance
sheet. Sales to retail customers are required to be settled in cash
or using major credit cards, mitigating credit risk. There are no
significant concentrations of credit risk, whether through exposure
to individual customers, specific industry sectors and/or regions.

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, no impairment loss was identified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MBRERME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables from initial recognition. To
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales
over corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this
period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information on factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables.

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December 2020 and
2019 was determined as follows for trade receivables:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
rE W Rk MY a (48D

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Other receivables

Other receivables mainly include deposits for lease, amounts due
from related parties, loans receivables and others. The management
of the Group makes periodic collective assessments as well as
individual assessment on the recoverability of other receivables
based on historical settlement records and past experiences. The
Group measures credit risk using Probability of Default (“PD”),
Exposure at Default (“EAD”) and Loss Given Default (“LGD”). This is
similar to the approach used for the purposes of measuring
Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) under IFRS 9.

o Other receivables that are not credit-impaired on initial
recognition are classified in ‘Stage 1’ and have their credit
risk continuously monitored by the Group. The expected
credit loss is measured on a 12-month basis.

o If a significant increase in credit risk (specifically, when the
debtor is more than 1 day past due on its contractual
payments) since initial recognition is identified, the financial
instrument is moved to ‘Stage 2’ but is not yet deemed to be
credit-impaired. The expected credit loss is measured on
lifetime basis.

o If the financial instrument is credit-impaired (specifically, when
the debtor is more than 90 days past due on its contractual
payments), the financial instrument is then moved to ‘Stage 3’.
The expected credit loss is measured on lifetime basis.

In view of the history of cooperation with the debtors and collection
from them, the management of the Group believes that all of the
Group’s other receivables excluding due from related parties and
loans receivables are classified in Stage 1 as at 31 December 2020
and 2019, and the credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding
other receivables is not significant. The average loss rate applied as
at the 31 December 2020 and 2019 were 1.37% and 1.63%
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRMNE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 12 A31H IFF &

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Other receivables (Continued)

During the year, the following amounts were recognised in profit or
loss:

Bt 7% B B B B )

31 B¥EKREZR @

(b) 1A=k @)
B b fE 4 378 (4)
ER THSEDERAES

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31ALEE

Provision for expected credit loss allowance for fE UL & 5 3118 2 F8 Hi{= FH 1B %k

trade receivables B #

Reversal of/(provision for) expected credit loss ) fE U 5 18 2 T8 HA13 R 18 2k
BEER R, (B

allowance for other receivables

Reversal of/(provision for) expected credit loss % &t & & 2 T H(Z BB L B

Bm (B

allowance for financial assets

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TAR®

226
2,623
2,849

(c) Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuation in cash flows. The Group also has available
banking facilities to meet its short-term working capital
requirements. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensure compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The maturity dates for non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent the
interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived
from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

) RBEZREMRE
EEERBDERARE TEEER
REFHEeRASEFEVRERER
J%E%’JE’J7}<¥ NEEXAREELE
THEBRESRERDNFTE - REE
7_FEIHX RITRELNMEEEREE
ﬁé*ﬁ°*ﬁi@@ﬁ*%ifﬁ TEREA
BN WHERREEFTEREH -

TRAJNAEEFTECRABZH
HERIBE - ZRDBEBEAEEA
MRz&FAHPZEREBERTRE
TRERHE FBEAMIIEITESHE
ﬁZﬂ%EE%FW&@mE%ﬁ

CRREAENBEATHEZRE -
{Ifﬂﬂ,%\fﬁﬁumitj&ibﬂ E'Jﬂiﬁ'
BeBmIONBEMROMEPESL -

BRERERAT —Z-Z2FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e TR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Financial risk management (continued)

Within 1 year
1F R
RMB’000
FARY

B 7% & b2 B 1 )

31 BEEREZR @

Between 1
and 2 years
1FEZE2F
RMB’000
TARY

LA

) REEZRER

AR

Between 2
and 5 years
2 B55F
RMB’000
FARY

(%)

Over 5 years
BiB5F
RMB’000
TARM

As at 31 December 2020 4202012831 H

Trade payables B E 5508 70,865
Other payables and E b B B K

accruals TEIRE A 42,220 = =
Borrowings TEE 16,514 - -
Convertible bonds AR ES 45,837 15,418 527,716
Lease liabilities HEAaE 115,394 86,713 131,396
Total &=t 290,830 102,131 659,112

Between 1 Between 2
Within 1 year and 2 years and 5years  Over 5 years
1F R 1FE2F 2FEESF BiA5F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARY FARM FARE
As at 31 December 2019 20194128318
Trade payables &8 5 5 IE 50,915 — - -
Other payables and Hih e IE R TE
accruals RER 94,599 — — —
Borrowings EE 5,215 1,238 — —
Convertible bonds AR &S 34,183 16,457 581,485 -
Lease liabilities HEaE 120,811 97,798 140,337 27,821
Payable in relation to put  J& < 9 JE 42 BEAE 5
right of non-controlling ROLEBEE
interests — — 123,500 —
Total = 305,723 115,493 845,322 27,821
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
rE W Rk MY a (48D

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital
on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings
(including 'current and non-current borrowings’ and convertible
bonds as shown in the consolidated balance sheet) less cash and
cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as ’equity’ as shown in
the consolidated balance sheet plus net debt. As at 31 December
2020, the Group’s gearing ratio was 27% (2019: 27%).

3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments carried
at fair value as at 31 December 2020 by level of the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs are
categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

B E T E )

32 EXER

AEEEREARERERAEHRF
Birge ) UAKRREHOBRE
A S HRE T BIER 2 WREEE
REBAREE KA o

REFHNABELRNERE  AEE 4
EHREBEXNTRRZEKESHE K&
AORE TR - BT SR A
EEE UWRLAE-

AEENEEBBLRAREERE
A -BHEMERNALT—H-BEBE
LEETDIZER FEBRAE RN BB
H-BEEFHENDZEBEERLRHE(BERE
BEBEBERAMTIZIRB RIEREE
FIARTBRRESF) BB EREF
EMitE -BRBENIEREGEER
BERATZ s MEBFETE -
R2020F 12 A31H AEBEEEE
bR E27% (20194F : 27%) ©

3.3 A AEEMF

TRIERX R EE =G E M E A
EER DM AEBER2020F 12 A31 H
LARBEFENESRITAE - B
ABEHBSAUNTAABEERA 2 =@
H A

e HAEEXABEERMSRE
(RAE) (B14) °

s BEXBEHABBERAUEERS
1RASN RAE - TimE & (ANE
) & (AR ERIKE) (F2
) e

s EBEXBRENBABEBTIEEAR

ABEmEREEITIRESR
ABUR) (B3R -

BRERERLR —ZT-ZFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e TR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 12 A31H ILF &

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 XEREE@m
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 33 2 AEEME @
The following table presents the Group’s assets that are measured TRIRAEBR2020F12 A31 HIA
at fair value at 31 December 2020. AREEFEZEE-

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1R 24 KT &%

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

FAR% FARY FARY TAR®

Assets EE
Financial assets at fair RAAEBESEAH
value through other EBEHAEMEE

comprehensive WEze@MEE
income
Unlisted investment FEETEE

Financial assets atfair RAAEEIELEH
value through profitor @B ABEZ £

loss MEE
Investment in unlisted RIELTEMER

wealth management ®E

products 27,931 27,931
Derivative financial PTESBIT A

instrument 72,226 72,226
Total 43t 105,157 105,157
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &

Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HMBEEKEEm@m
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 D AEEME @)
The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that TEIRAEBR2019F12 A31 B A
are measured at fair value at 31 December 2019. AREEFEZEERAE-
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EAHR EF E3M CE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

TAR® TAR® TARE TAR®

Assets BE
Financial assets atfair R QX AEEIERH
value through other SETTAHEMEME
comprehensive income KEzeMEE
Unlisted investment ELEMIRE — - 5,000 5,000
Financial assets atfair EAABEFEAEH
value through profitor #Eit ABEF &

loss MmEE
Investment in unlisted RIELETIEYE®
wealth management ®E
products — — 62,792 62,792
Total &5t — — 67,792 67,792
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ER N E2M FE3 =X
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FARE FARE FARE
Financial liabilities ot =R

Consideration payable in  3F 1% f% # 25 22 05 48
relation to the put right of & B B 89 f& 1 (B
non-controlling interest (Mf7E36)
(Note 36) — — 99,024 99,024
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e TR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 12 A31H ILF &

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 BEEREEG@
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 33 2 AEEME @
Financial instruments in level 3 E3REFM T E
The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for TR REZE20204F & 2019F 12 A 31
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. BItFEEZE3MIT A -
2020
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARY SN TARY TARY
Payable in
Financial assets relation to
at fair value Financial the put right
through other  assets at fair Derivative of non-
comprehensive value through financial controlling
income  profit or loss instrument interests
BAREE BEAREE
FEEHSEH SEEHSEH FE £ Y 3E 42 B
sFAHEM2E KRS fTESR EERLEER
ZEMEE I& BE
Opening balance B 5,000 - (99,024)
Addition NE - 111,780 46,631
Redemption BE [ (146,922) -
Change in fair value NABEEZE 281 29,262

Exchange difference fE =% = (3,667)

Closing balance HREH 72,226
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBRRME (R

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

Financial instruments in level 3 (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 12 A31H IFF &

3 BHKERERE @
3.3 A AEBEME @

E3RERE T A @@

2019

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

FARYK FTARYK FTARY FTARY

Payable in

Financial assets relation to

at fair value Financial the put right

through other assets at fair Derivative of non-

comprehensive  value through financial controlling

income profit or loss instrument interests

BRAREE BAREE

FFERHEH FEAHEH R0 FEFR IR

FAE fh 2 W FABRE TTHEER BIADLEER

JERMEE ZEmEE IA BEfE

Opening balance B 2,000 42,194 — (103,496)

Addition NE 3,000 138,707 — -

Redemption LEgEl — (90,101) - -

Change in fair value NHEBEE — 992 - 5,072

Disposal of subsidiaries HEWEB QA — (29,000) - —
Currency translation EBmE =R

difference — — — (600)

Closing balance HREH 5,000 62,792 — (99,024)

BRERERBRAE ZZEZZFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

Financial instruments in level 3 (Continued)

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value

The Group has a team that manages the valuation of level 3
instruments for financial reporting purposes. The team manages
the valuation exercise of the investments on a case by case basis.
At least once every year, the team would use valuation techniques
to determine the fair value of the Group’s level 3 instruments.
External valuation experts will be involved when necessary.

(@  For unlisted investment, as the investment is not traded in an
active market, its fair value is determined by using valuation
techniques and is within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The
unlisted investment is primarily valued based on the available
transaction price of the latest round of financing of the
investees. Where such information is not available, other
valuation techniques are used, such as the discounted cash
flows method.
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e TR R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

Financial instruments in level 3 (Continued)
Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value (Continued)

(b)

All of these unlisted wealth management products are
sponsored and managed by state-owned or reputable
national commercial banks in the PRC. These unlisted wealth
management products are short-term investments which are
denominated in RMB and redeemable on demand. The
expected rate of return of the unlisted wealth management
products range from 2.8% to 3.7% and range from 3.2% to
3.6% per annum as at 31 December 2020 and 2019, which
are updated by the banks periodically on a quarterly or more
frequent basis. Management uses the expected rate of return
for approximation for both cash flow assessment and the
discount rate in evaluating the fair values of the unlisted
wealth management products. Increased or decreased
expected rate of return by 1% would increase or decrease FV
by RMB279,000 (2019: RMB628,000).

The fair value of the derivative financial instrument is
determined using the binomial valuation model and the
significant unobservable inputs applied in the valuation
technique mainly include the expected volatility rate and risk-
free interest rate (Note 20).

The market price of the Company’s share was HK$0.75 as at
31 December 2020, if the market price of the Company’s
share had been HK$0.05 higher/lower than that at 31
December 2020, the fair value of the derivative financial
instrument would have decreased/increased by approximately
RMB7,680,000 and RMB12,010,000, respectively. If the
expected volatility rate had been 10% higher/lower than
management’s estimates at 31 December 2020, it would
have increased/decreased the fair value of the derivative
financial instrument by RMB6,280,000 and RMB6,300,000,
respectively. The risk-free interest rate adopted by
management is 0.08% as at 31 December 2020,
management is of the view that a reasonable change in the
risk-free interest rate will not have a significant impact on the
fair value of the derivative financial instrument.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B E T E )

3.3

A REEMEFT @

E3RETHMITE @
RAEBEREZBAZBEREBF

(4)
(b)

FTEZEILLMEMERTIABT
B AXBEERIT IR
RITREREE - 2SI LHE
MERARBRE  UARB
BN Al iE EKE B - R 2020F &
201912 A31 8 » 3E - HIEBI &
W2 EEFERES BN T2.8%
E37% M N F32%E3.6% ° %
ERHERBITERZRETEXE
Em B EEERFIAIELT
BHERZAREBER RE&R
EFHETBREEYERBESHD
REAEBFLUE - TEH O 3R & 14
Mo D 1% 18 8 B A o B 1EE
R > A R 279,000 (2019
F . AR#628,0007T) °

TEERMTAEZARBEINS
BAGEENET - mEARHG
BT 2 BN A B 8 A BUE
FTEQRFRBEEE R K ERRF
& (K 5E20) o

R2020%F12 8318 KA 7 &
B THERTSHE T WAR R
B & R2020F12 A31H 2
B® EHTB0.05% Tt AIFT
SR TEZRAARBESES IR
LN A R #7,680,0007T &
A R #12,010,000 7T © fit 78 57 5%
) K5 E 1P E 120204 12 A 31
H 2 fl &t 58 00, 2 10% » B 6T
EFeBMITEZAREBEEGD G
o A A R % 6,280,000 7T A A
K #6,300,0007T °© #2020 4F 12
A31H EEEHEMNZ ERARF
R 50.08%  BIEER EERF
R ABEEHBETTEHTES R
TAZAREBEERERTE-
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Critical accounting estimates and

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &

4 BERIEEFRHE

judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are addressed below.

(@ Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful life

The Group tests annually whether goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful life have suffered any impairment, in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note 2.9. The
recoverable amounts of groups of cash-generating units (the “CGUS”)
have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates (Note 19).

As of 31 December 2020, as the recoverable amounts of the CGUs
that contain goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful life
were higher than their carrying amounts, there was no impairment
of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful life.

(b) Impairment of interests in associates

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for interests in associates at the end of each reporting period in
accordance with the accounting policies stated in Note 2.9.
Interests in associates are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of interests in an
associate exceeds its recoverable amount, which is determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates. Further details are given in Note 18.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

(¢) Intangible assets with an indefinite useful lives

Management of the Group determines the estimated useful lives for
intangible assets based on their historical experience in the industry
and various studies and market research performed by them, which
support that the trademark may have no foreseeable limit to the
period over which the trademarked products are expected to
generate net cash flows for the Group. It is possible that future
results of operation could be affected by changes in this estimate.
A change of useful lives of the trademarks from indefinite to finite
would increase amortisation charges and decrease non-current
assets.

(d) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Judgement is required in determining the provision for income
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

(e) Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets have been determined based on the higher of fair
value and value in-use calculations. These calculations require the
use of judgment and estimates.

B & & 5t 8 51 & H B )

41 BREESTEHFTRBR @
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 12 A31H IFF &

4 Critical accounting estimates and

judgements (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

() Fair value of the derivative financial instrument
The fair value of the derivative financial instrument is determined
using valuation techniques, specifically, the binomial model. The
key assumptions and estimates used in the valuation mainly
included share price, expected volatility rate and risk-free interest
rate. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgement is required in establishing fair values. Details of the
assumptions used in determining the fair values of the derivative
financial instrument are set out in Note 20.

5. Revenue and Segment information

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:

RS RAEH @

41 BREFEHEFTREBR@®

H TTEEMIBEZARERE
MEESRMTAZAABEDERGE
RiftEEx - A B —EARE - ff
BRMAZEERELGFEEBRREK
B BHRSHERERBRANE -ZEFR
2B ABBEAERBLTAIERE
MEME  EETAITZERT - BB
REEAABEREL -—EREZH
- FREETEASRMIAZAARE
B8 P A R AR Z FFIE B £ 20 ©

WA K7 & E#
AEBRENZBADFMT :

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31ALEE

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR® FARM
Continuing operations: FBICEETS
Revenue from food and beverage business BEREBRA 650,691 998,250
Discontinued operations: B IERREET :
Revenue from manufacturing and sales of R NHEFREBWA
handbags business 444,751

The Company’s executive directors are the chief operating decision
maker (the “CODM”). The CODM periodically reviews the Group’s
internal report, which focus on types of goods or services delivered
or provided, in order to assess performance and allocate resources.
The CODM has determined the operating segments based on
these reports.

The Group’s principal market is the PRC and its sales to overseas
customers contributed to less than 10% of revenue. Also, none of
the Group’s non-current assets is located outside the PRC.
Accordingly, no geographical information is presented.

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2020

ARBAMITEERIBERERRE
([EEBEERRE]) - TBREREKE
EHEHASEZFAHES UEFD
R RN REREW R IRG 2B
CmMABRBARIEER - TELE
REECRBZSREETLZEDH -

AEBHEETHATE  EMRE
ShE P B 2 I A LE T R 10% - Ut
oh + A% 4 B 3 4 £ 7] 36 7o B 4 2E 7 4
B B o It 3F 4 2 514 1 4
B R o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MBRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

Revenue and Segment information (continued)y 5 U A & 2 3 E ¥l @)

Segment revenues and results TEWAREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by LTAAEEZRRED B2 WA RE
reportable segment: EDHNT
Continuing Discontinued
operations operations
HERSEER CRIERKEER
Manufacturing
Food and and sales of
beverage handbags
business business* Total
BERHE
BREK FREK i
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARY FAR®

Year ended 31 December 2020 # £2020F12H31H

LtFE

Total revenue W A 4858 650,691
Inter-segment revenue 7 EBEUA =
Revenue from external customers 3K 5485 % B 2 WA 650,691
Segment gross profit 7 #E A 351,517
Segment operating loss D E L 1R (98,442)
Distribution and selling expenses 9 5 R 5 E M (361,873)
General and administrative —BRITHRER

expenses (96,236)
Other information: Hi&ER

Significant non-cash expenses BEXRIFBEIH

Depreciation and amortisation HTE M 167,189
As at 31 December 2020 4202012831 H
Total assets BERE 2,157,711
Including: BE

Investments in associates Bk 48\ T 45 8 220,026

Total liabilities BERE 1,157,040

BREERERAH

650,691

650,691

351,517
(98,442)

(361,873)

(96,236)

167,189

2,157,711

220,026
1,157,040

TEFEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &

5 Revenue and Segment information (Continued)

5 WARDIBER @

Segment revenues and results (Continued) pals 1 ON S E S C )
Continuing Discontinued
operations operations
BELEER PRIEKEER
Manufacturing
Food and and sales of
beverage handbags
business business* Total
FERHEE
BEREB FREBK A&
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARM FARM FAR®
Year ended 31 December 2019 #EH Z£20194F12H31H
IEFE
Total revenue PN L 998,250 444,751 1,443,001
Inter-segment revenue 7 BB & U A — - -
Revenue from external customers R B N EBEF 2 I A 998,250 444,751 1,443,001
Segment gross profit 7 H5BEF 590,338 119,562 709,900
Segment operating profit BB AL T 7,319 15,594 22,913
Distribution and selling expenses DHEEEERX (491,179) (19,477) (510,656)
General and administrative —EITHRER
expenses (109,581) (89,341) (198,922)
Other information: Hi&ER
Significant non-cash expenses BRIFBREXH
Depreciation and amortisation e K Y 164,995 12,255 177,250
As at 31 December 2019 7A2019F12831H
Total assets BELHE 2,280,365 — 2,280,365
Including: B
Investments in associates BN EIRE 273,054 — 273,054
Total liabilities BEEE 1,295,399 — 1,295,399

The manufacturing and sales of Handbags business has been disposed during
the year ended 31 December 2019 (Note 35) and therefore it is no longer a
reportable segment of the Group. As a result, the related revenue, expenses
and income tax are presented as a single amount in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income under “profit for the year from
discontinued operations” during the years ended 31 December 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HRRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

Revenue and Segment information (continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated
from external customers. There were no inter-segment sales during
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

For continuing operations, no revenue derived from transactions
with a single external customer represented 10% or more of the
Group’s total revenue during the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019. For discontinued operations, revenue of approximately
RMB191,935,000 was derived from a single external customer of
the manufacturing and sales of handbags segment for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

A reconciliation of operating (loss)/profit to loss before taxation is
provided as follows:

WARDEHER @

DU AR EE @

EXREZ DU AIERGINIEF
FrEE 4 2 WA o & & 20205 K 20194
12A3M B IEFEBES BEEE -

MEFEELEEBEME  MERGE—
N EFZ2RGBAGAREBREZE
20204 N 2019F 12 A31 B IEFE W A
BEEI0% A - LE R IEEEET
Mms &BE2019F 128318 IEFE
#9191,935,000C AR ¥ 2 AR B &
BERHEEFROBLE—INIERF -

BRELATAS 2 (B1R), s M2 HIR T

Year ended 31 December

HZEZ12A31BLEE

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARY FARM
Operating (losses)/profit from continuing operations 3 B 45 45 48 & ¥ 7& 7 48 %

(E518),/ & 7 (98,442) 7,319
Finance income B BUA 221 258
Finance expenses &R (17,332) (24,754)
Interest on convertible bonds AREEFFB (35,214) (35,920

Gain on fair value change on derivative MTESBRIANAEBEEZY RS
financial instrument 29,262 —
Share of loss of associates LB 2 N R E1E (14,559) (11,189)
Impairment losses on investments in associates g ARREREERE (24,625) (14,971)
Loss before taxation bR 5% Al 5 18 (160,689) (79,257)
Operating profit from discontinued operations REDKIEEEER 2 85T 15,594
Finance expenses HBER (89)
Profit before taxation B 3 A& 7 15,505
BRERERART —ZTE_ZFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRMNE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

H s Y A

Year ended 31 December
BZE12ABLEE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FAR®

6 Otherincome 6
Government grants X T 4 B
Franchise income FERF A IR
Investment income on wealth management BEEMRIEERA ()

products (b)

Management service income (a) BEERBEA @)
Interest income on loans BHF B WA
Others Hity

5,381 4,704
2,022 7,640

1,975 2,197
958 2,500
926 732

1,468 1,849

12,730 19,622

(@ Management service income mainly includes service
fees received by the Group in relation to the provision of
commercial, management and administrative support services.

(b)  For the year ended 31 December 2020, investment income
on wealth management products includes realised gains of
RMB1,694,000 (2019: RMB1,205,000) and unrealised gains
of RMB281,000 (2019: RMB992,000), both of which are
recorded as “other income” in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income.

@ EERBUATIZEEAEEH
REBE EERTBRIERS
A4 E 2z R 75 & -

(b) & 2020128318 Ik F & -
BUMEGRKREKABEEZRIK
7 1,694,0007T A & ¥ (20194 -
1,205,0007C A R ) K R # 1R I
#281,0007t A R ¥ (20194 :
992,000t AR ¥) - MW=
RiFea2ERERANARYME
[H AU AL ©

7 Other (losses)/gains, net 7 Hib(EE) WEFE
Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEEE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARY FARM

Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEYE MELREER

equipment (8,408) (1,266)
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets HEFRAEEENRS 5,128 1,340
Net exchange (loss)/gain PE X (&518) ks F 5 (1,958) 913
Loss on closure of restaurants — net BEAEFETH (108) (122)
Others Hib 316 103

(5,030) 968
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRMNE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

Expenses by nature 8 BMESEZXH

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A1BLEE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARY FAR®

Raw material used and changes in inventories  $f% §a 2 AT A R ¥ 8 &

of finished goods GFEZE 277,306 383,131
Employee benefit expense (Note 14) EEEF M (KsE14) 200,243 279,024
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 123,101 115,187
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #2% - &&= MR EITE 42,723 47,748
Water, electricity and fuel IKE KRk 25,671 38,827
Property management fee MEEEEMR 20,988 25,265
Advertising costs B &R 13,538 22,719
Transportation expenses RBER 11,631 16,107
Impairment of property, plant and equipment  ¥1% « = & & &R E 8,688 3,192
Expenses relating to short-term lease and TrAHEBBERNZEBRE

variable lease payments not included in lease HATEE R A A SR 2 H
liabilities, deducting COVID-19-Related rent 3% » 14 2 W ER 31 78 52 15 1B 3

concessions received (Note 16) HeEEME16) (11,344) 23,690
Office expenses /N Y 3,084 4,765
Auditors’ remuneration % AN B &

— Audit service — B IR 2,300 2,400

— Non-audit services — B R 200 176
Amortisation of intangible assets M AEEN 1,365 2,060
Other expenses H i 37,789 44,381

Total cost of sales, distribution and selling HERKRK - DHEHLEERI N
expenses and general and administrative F—MEITHRERBRE
expenses 757,283 1,008,672
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e TR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

9 Finance income and expenses

9

Finance income
Interest income on bank deposits

BB A
RITIF A B UA

Finance expenses

Interest on convertible bonds (Note 23)
Interest on lease liabilities

Interest on bank borrowings

Interest on loan from third parties
Others

B 15 & A

AR E S F B (M FE23)
HEaEMNE

RITE A B
EZHERFE

Hth

Finance expense, net

M5 ERFE
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BHEBARER

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31ALEE

2020
RMB’000
TAR®

(35,214)
(16,670)
(241)
(115)
(306)

(52,546)

(52,325)

2019

RMB’000
TARE

258

(35,920)
(18,702)

(5,925)
(127)

(60,674)

(60,416)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e TR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

10 Income tax (credit)/expense

10 FIBB(ER), X

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31ALEE

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® FARM
Current income tax BN EFT 15 1
Hong Kong profits tax BBENEH 1,345
PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT”) PR EMER
(TEZEmBRD 451 3,439
451 4,784
Deferred tax IEER I8 (10,144) 5,220
(9,693) 10,004
Income tax expense is attributable to: THSBRENAEHZ L
— Continuing operations —FHEREEY (9,693) 7,013
— Discontinued operations — BRI EEET = 2,991
(9,693) 10,004

BREBRBERAT —E-_ZFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRMNE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

10 Income tax (credit)/expense (Continued) 10 FAIBEH ER) X Hwm

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARY FARM
Loss from continuing operations before BRI ELCEEK BB
income tax (160,689) (79,257)
Loss from discontinued operations before BRAIERIEEEERE 2 EE
income tax (32,126)
(160,689) (111,383)
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 25% 12 25% B R 5T (20194 : 25%)
(2019: 25%) (40,172) (27,846)
Tax effects of: ITIEB 2 BBEE:
— Associates’ results RN 3,640 2,797
— Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries ~ — Fft B & 5] TR & 7 22 7,754 25,427
— Expenses not deductible for tax purposes ~ — EH R AT IR 2 X H 526
— Utilisation of previously unrecognised —ERARRBER G
tax losses E5 18 (200)
— Income not subject to tax — BEHBBIWA (1,018)
— Tax losses for which no deferred income — RKEREBELFBREE
tax asset was recognised 2T E R 18,780 10,324
Tax charge Hi%sE R (9,693) 10,004

Cayman Islands

The Company is incorporated in Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law of Cayman
Islands and accordingly, is exempted from Cayman Islands income
tax.

Hong Kong

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million
of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profit above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of
group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5% (2019:
16.5%).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRMNE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

10 Income tax (credit)/expense (Continued)

11

12

The PRC

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

Dividends

The Board resolved not to declare any dividend for the year ended
31 December 2020 (2019: nil).

Loss per share

10 FiBH (BR) X H @

& &
REFBEEEMGRAEREEMABR
EEEERD - BN E QR 2B E S
200841 A1 HE %25% °

11 RE

EEgROATHMEZ=2020F 12 A31 H
IFFETIREMR S (20194 : ) -

12 BREE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2020 2019
RMB cents RMB cents
AR D AR
Basic loss per share (a) FREKREE @
From continuing operations attributable to FERARNRERIEBEAZE
equity holders of the Company BICE TS (5.56)
From discontinued operations REERIECEER (2.25)
Total basic loss per share attributable to equity 5FEBR AR alEHEE A TR
holders of the Company AXEEEE (7.81)
Diluted loss per share (b) T 18 (o)
From continuing operations attributable to BERARAIEZHAEAZE
equity holders of the Company BREER (5.56)
From discontinued operations REERIEEEER (2.25)
Total diluted loss per share attributable to FEBRAAREERAAGR
equity holders of the Company WEFEBRTE (7.81)

BREBRBERAT —E-_ZFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MBRERME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

12 Loss per share (Continued)

(a) Basic loss per share

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

12 SREB @

() BREAXERE

BREAEBERINEFBR AR
BaBBAZEBERRIAFACH
TEBBRINEFIHETE -

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31ALEFEE

Loss attributable to equity holders of
the Company used in calculating basic
loss per share:

From continuing operations (RMB’000)

From discontinued operations (RMB’000)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue (thousands)

2019
FEEREAREIERTA
SEBRARQ GRS
BAZEE:
(FAR®) (140,938) (86,517)
KEERIEELEER
(FARE) (35,117)
(140,938) (121,634)
BEITE BN T8
(F&) 1,578,664 1,556,787

(b) Diluted loss per share

Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of shares in issue to assume conversion of
all dilutive potential shares. The Company’s dilutive potential
shares comprise shares to be issued under convertible
bonds, share option scheme and share award scheme. In
relation to shares issued under share option schemes, a
calculation is done to determine the number of shares that
could have been acquired at fair value (determined as the
average market share price of the Company’s shares during
the year) based on the monetary value of the subscription
rights attached to outstanding share options. The number of
shares calculated as above is compared with the number of
shares that would have been issued assuming the exercise of

the share options.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e TR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 12 A31H ILF &

Loss per share (Continued)

The computation of diluted loss per share for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019 did not assume the issuance of any
dilutive potential ordinary share since they are antidilutive, which
would decrease loss per share.

RMB’000
TAR%

Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the applicable Listing Rule and Companies Ordinance,
is as follows:
Salaries
we e
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY TAR®
2020 2020
Executive directors HITEE
Zhao John Huan BB (FE)
(Chairman)
Wang Xiaolong (i) TBE()
(Chief Executive) (T1B %)
Jing Shen (i) = 18 (i)
Independent non- BUHNTEE
executive directors
Heng Victor JaWei  TBR #
Tsang Hin Man BEX
Terrence
Leung Kwai Kei 2EH
Total FEEA

12 SREE @

sHEH £ 2020 2 2019F 12 A31H 1t
FEZORWEBER BRI BE
BELTBREAERWEREN RIS
REE MU EBRRBETEMNARE

BT B -

13

EERTHAENE

REBER 2 LR RRRGE - F
NEERTRESEZMSIWENT

Contributions
relating to social
insurance,
housing fund
and retirement

scheme
HitgRR -
EFEAEER
EBHRhEHEER
2
RMB’000
TARH

FEAL

BREERERAH

Other Benefit

Hi g
RMB’000
TARHE

— = —

—_=

2t

RMB’000
TARY

SEEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

13 Directors’ and chief executive’s

emoluments (Continued)

e IR R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 12 A31H IFF &

13 ESRITHARME @

Contributions
relating to social

insurance,

housing fund and

Fees Salaries Bonus retirement scheme  Other Benefit Total
Bt g R
FEAESR
BRhestEEH
we k) B4 2R H 38 7 =
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FARE FARE FARE FARE FARE
2019 2019%
Executive directors HITEF
Zhao John Huan WIE(FE)

(Chairman) — — — — — —
Wang Xiaolong (i) T/BE()

(Chief Executive) (1T %) - 771 300 52 4,827 5,950
Jing Shen (i) 2 1 (i) - 1,200 200 126 1,677 3,203
Wang Yuanzheng (i) T &1 (iii) — — — - — -
Independent non- BUNTEF

executive directors
Heng Victor Ja Wei R4 141 - - - - 141
Tsang Hin Man -9

Terrence 141 — — — — 141
Leung Kwai Kei Z2EE 141 — - - — 141
Total @z 423 1,971 500 178 6,504 9,576
Notes: Bt e -

0] Mr. Wang Xiaolong was appointed as the chief executive officer on 26 August 0] T/ Bk ER2019F8 26 B EZ T AT
2019. BARE -
(ii) Mr. Jing Shen was appointed as executive director on 30 April 2019. (ii) SEEEN2019F4A30H EZ T AT

(iii) Mr. Wang Yuanzheng resigned as executive director on 30 April 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e IR R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

13 Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

The executive directors’ and independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were paid for their services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group
and for their services as directors of the Company respectively.

The bonus paid to the directors are fixed in amount.

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to the directors or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
a compensation for a loss of office. No directors waived any
emoluments during these years.

14 Employees benefit expenses

13 ESRITHARME @

EXFRZATESTRBIIFATE
EME AR BEABEEEARF
RAREEEHBARBEEETARAE
FZRBMSAS

MEEXNZEARBEESHE -

H E2020F M2019F12 8318 It F
B AEBUYERESI AL &S H
A TZ R ERMESERMAEREE
SN AR B SBE) S A B
B BEEERNZEFENRERM

14 EER/ABEX

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE

Wages and salaries TITENHS

Social security costs and housing fund

Share-based compensation expenses
(Note 32)

Staff benefit and welfare

(Pt 5£32)
BERA M@

HEREXETREFAESR
PARSC 4 70 25 T8 0 385 B A 2

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TAR®

157,203 225,044
23,443 34,290
12,247 8,181

7,350 11,509
200,243 279,024

Two (2019: Two) of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group were directors of the Company whose emoluments
are included in Note 13 above. The aggregate emoluments of the
remaining three (2019: three) highest paid individuals, were as
follows:

AREBRERSFHALTHIRAE
(2019F - MB)AALAIESE  H
FWEER EXHEI18- B T = £
(2019%F : = &) &= H BN A L 2 48 B
Er N

BEEBRERAT —Z-Z5EER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRMNE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

14 Employees benefit expenses (Continued) 14 EEBABE XX w
Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR% FARE
Salaries and other benefits FeRkEMEF 3,912 3,828
Shared-based compensation expense LA RS 1 A5 LB 9 3 BN B 2 2,529 1,677
Discretionary bonus payments (SRR AR D 300
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes & 4k 18 FI| 5 21 4 2¢ 293
Other benefits H fth 48 310
6,408

Discretionary bonus was determined with reference to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no remuneration was
paid by the Group to the highest paid employees as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office.

The emoluments were within the following band:

BBEANK2EASBERLEEE
BARRRAELRT S EEM
BE-

BE2020F12A31AIEFE A& H
3 4 [7) £ = #r BB B S A 1E (T Bl 2 1F
BIMARE B H AR KB 2 5E)
HAERBEBA(E -

e FTIEE :

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31ALEE

2020 2019

Number of Number of

employees employees

EE®AR EE&R

Not exceeding HK$1,000,000 A~ 48 1,000,000/% 7T 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 % 7T % 2,500,000% 7T 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 % 7T & 4,500,000% 7T 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBRRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 12 A31H IFF &

15 Property, plant and equipment

15 % -BERRE

Furniture
Plantand  fixtures and Leasehold  Construction
Machinery  equipment ~ Motor Vehicles Buildings  improvements in progress Total
BER & %8
% P HE BF HEHR ERIR Ch
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
TAR® TARE FTARE  TARE TARE TARE TARE
Year ended 31 December 2019 % Z2019%£ 128311
LLFE
Opening net book amount FEREFE 28,233 30,784 1,503 70,951 110,287 6,290 248,048
Currency translation differences ~ &Mk E =5 1,708 87 12 2,506 243 - 4,556
Additions NE 2,891 14,551 38 1,665 21,406 9,234 49,785
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBLA
(Note 35(b)) (B3 5E35(0)) (21,621) (1,592) (314) (47,994) (10,562) (1,361) (83,444)
Disposals HE (291) (2,517) (135) - (2,037) - (4,980)
Transfer upon completion A R - - - 997 12,740 (13,737) -
Depreciation charge TEZH (6,997) (9,595) (499) (3,980) (37,872) - (58,943)
Impairment charge (Note 8) BEZ W (Es) (94) (374) ®) - 2,716) - (3,192)
Closing net book amount FREERE 3,829 31,344 597 24,145 91,489 426 151,830
At 31 December 2019 R2019612A31H
Cost A 32,724 108,587 10,077 109,482 252,268 426 513,564
Accumulated depreciationand Rt E R E
impairment (28,895) (77,243 (9,480) (85,337) (160,779) - (361,734)
Net Book Amount BEEE 3,829 31,344 597 24,145 91,489 426 151,830
HEZRARAT —B-BEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e TR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 12 A31H ILF &

15 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 15 ¥ BERKRE@

Furniture
Plantand fixtures and Leasehold Construction
Machinery  equipment Motor Vehicles Buildings improvements in progress Total
BER &# %E
B ES ] AE BF HEHR ERIR CH
RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000
TARYE TAR® TARY® TAR® TAR® TAR® TAR®

Year ended 31 December 2020 # 2020128318

LEE
Opening net book amount FENREFE 31,344 597 91,489 151,830
Additions nE 5,540 105 18,215 33,168
Disposals HeE (1,429) (59) (7,139) (8,755)
Transfer upon completion RS R = = 5,213 =
Depreciation charge FEXH (8,532) (102) (32,325) (42,729)
Impairment charge (Note 8) B (HEE8) (1,681) (] (6,854) (8,688)
Closing net book amount EREEEE 25,242 68,599 124,832
At 31 December 2020 R2020512A31H
Cost [N 33,631 112,698 10,123 109,809 268,557 537,977
Accumulated depreciationand R E RFE
impairment (29,945) (87,456) (9,589) (86,197) (199,958) (413,145)
Net Book Amount REFE 3,686 25,242 534 23,612 68,599 124,832
(a) The carrying value of the Group’s property interests comprises buildings on (@) AEBYEEZ 2 EEEEEPERERNZ
land under medium-term land use rights in the PRC. FRE T AL E 2T
(o) Depreciation expenses of RMB6,024,000 (2019: RMB5,089,000 (excluding the (o) WESH(TEERERERIEEEEK
portion attributable to discontinued operations)) has been charged to cost of Z B9 ) /6,024,0007T A R # (20194 :
sales, RMB33,924,000 (2019: RMB40,562,000 (excluding the portion 5,089,000t ARB)B st AER A M
attributable to discontinued operations)) to distribution and selling expenses 33,924,0007T A & # (20194 : 40,562,000
and RMB2,775,000 (2019: RMB2,097,000 (excluding the portion attributable TARB)(TEREBERERIEKEEE
to discontinued operations)) to general and administrative expenses. BZHWP)BEAADELBEERST &
2,775,0007C A B # (20194 : 2,097,000 7T
ARE)(TRERBRERILESEBZ
H)BEHA—MRRITHER -
() As at 31 December 2020, buildings with net book value of RMB23,612,000 (2019: () MR2020F 128318 & @ F B A
RMB24,145,000) were pledged as securities for the Group’s borrowings. 23,612,0007C A & # (20194 : 24,145,000
TARB)ZEFERREAEEBERZE
e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRMNE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

16 Leases 16 #HE
() Amounts recognised in the balance sheet (i) REEEBRAERZ
The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to EEABEEZYIUTHEESH
leases: ZEE
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
20204 20194
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
SN FAR®
Right-of-use assets FEHEEE
Properties " 372,944
Lease liabilities HEEE
Current i) 102,771 116,709
Non-current FERH 213,394 263,580
316,165 380,289
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2020 financial B REEEN20208 R EE N
year were RMB111,806,000 (2019: RMB132,702,000). 111,806,0007T A R ¥ (2019

£ 1 132,702,000 A RHEE) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEUBRRME (B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

16 Leases (Continued)

16 HE @)

(i) Amounts recognised in the statement of i) REEKRERABERZ
comprehensive income £ %
For the year ended 31 December
BZ201912831H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARE
Depreciation charge of right-of-use FRAEEEZINEXY
assets
Properties LYES 123,101 115,187
Interest expense (included in finance MEREGIATBER)
expenses) 16,670 18,702
Expense relating to short-term leases (included %2 HATE S8 & B (5t A5
in distribution and selling expenses and HEEERST AR —RK &
general and administrative expenses) THER) 2,175 19,183
Expense relating to variable lease payments it AR E & &2 A &7
not included in lease liabilities (included in ~ Ef ZMEEE R Gt A D
distribution and selling expenses) HREER ) 2,471 4,507
Negative variable lease payments B W B S & 5 e R AR
recognised in respect of COVID-19- TEEBRANEIHHEE
Related rent concession received (Note 2.2) {5k (M 5£2.2) (15,990) -

The total cash outflow for leases in 2020 was
RMB134,458,000 (2019: RMB127,660,000).

(iii)

The Group’s leasing activities and how
these are accounted for

The Group leases various offices, warehouses and
restaurants. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed
periods of 2 years to 10 years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.
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(iii)

R2020F HEBR S REAREA
134,458,000t A R ¥(2019
£ 1 127,660,0007C A R H#E) o

AEBE2HERHRA
AfRA R

rEBHEZEARRAE BER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEUBRRME (B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

16 Leases (Continued)

(iv) Variable lease payments

Some property leases contain variable payment terms that
are linked to sales generated from a restaurant. For individual
restaurants, up to 100% of lease payments are on the basis
of variable payment terms with percentages ranging from 6%
to 283% of sales. Variable payment terms are used for a
variety of reasons, including minimising the fixed costs base
for newly established restaurants. Variable lease payments
that depend on sales are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which the condition that triggers those payments
occurs.

A 10% increase in sales across all restaurants in the Group
with such variable lease contracts would increase total lease
payments for the year ended 31 December 2020 by
approximately RMB800,000.

17 Inventories

18

16 HE @)
(ivy T2 HEENK

MoMEHERFREREHEH
8 7 R] B A AR o BLE B & BB
ms ERAEMNRERZEE
5 & = Al #100% @ B $H &
BT F6%E23% © Al # 55K
FERENTEREMER - 218
175 e AR B BB 2 B E K AN PR = &%
Re-RFHERMELAEHE
NREBENFEFLRFERE
HIIB s FERR

HE2020F 12 A1 H IELFE i
AEBAEZEUBEHESN
FrEEEEEREENI0%n  HE
- 5% 48 %8 1% 18 0 #9800,0007T A
R#E -

17 &

Raw Materials ERR S
Finished goods BIRK o

As at 31 December
M12831H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR¥ FARE
18,808 20,105
13,530 15,830
32,338 35,935

Investments in associates

18 Bi&E N FIIRE

As at 31 December

A12831H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARH FARY
At 1 January »1A1H 273,054 292 975
Additions RE 4,481 —
Share of losses for the year iR FAEE (14,559) (11,189
Impairment BB (24,625) (14,971)
Currency translation differences ERBREER (18,325) 6,239
At 31 December W12 A31H 220,026 273,054

BEEBRERAT —Z-Z5EER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HRRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

18 Investments in associates (Continued)

Details of the Group’s associates as at 31 December 2020 are as

follows:

Name of entity
EREB

Place of business/

country of incorporation
A i B R LB R

18 Bt&E A TRE @

R E E S N RN2020F12 A31 B 2
E3=p NN

Measurement
% of ownership interest method
BREDL FEAFX

2019

Qidiantongzhou Restaurant Management (Beijing) The PRC
Co., Ltd. (“Qidiantongzhou”) (Note 1)

FHEABRERCGER)BERABD(FHAL]D)  +
(fF3EET)

Guangzhou yujian xiaomian catering Management The PRC
Company Limited (“Yujian Xiaomian”) (Note 1)
BMERNEEREBERAR (BRI H
(B &E1)

Shenzhen Love’s Kitchen Internet and Technology The PRC
Limited Company

R AFEFABREBRA A I
Jiezhi Restaurant Management Limited The PRC
AT REERERBRAA H Bl

Yuepin Restaurant Management Limited (“Yuepin”) The PRC
ARNTHEREREERRAA(H®S]) H B

Tianshuilai (Beijing) Catering Trade Management  The PRC
Co. Ltd (“Tianshuilai”)

IERRKEERERBBR AR ([RAKK]) B B

Shanghai Seesaw Coffee Company Limited The PRC
(“Seesaw”)

FaAsmsEER AR (EE]) H Bl

Xinyi Technology (Beijing) Company Limited The PRC

BHRHUER)BRAA H Bl

Shenzhen SpicyFoook Food Chain Service Co., The PRC
Ltd. (“SpicyFoook”)
AYITMREEEREHERBER A A
(TinEREE )

Note 1:

Although the Group’s shareholding in Qidiantongzhou and Yujian Xiaomian
is less than 20%, the Group is able to exercise significant influence over
Qidiantongzhou and Yujian Xiaomian, because it has the power to appoint
director to the board of directors of the investees under the Articles of
Association of the investees.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
rE W Rk MY a (48D

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &

18 Investments in associates (Continued)

The Group determines whether interests in the investments
accounted for using the equity method are impaired by regularly
reviewing whether there are any indications of impairment in
accordance with relevant accounting standards.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the global COVID-19
pandemic imposed negative and persistent impact on the catering
industry, resulting in temporary suspension of the restaurants and
the dampening of consumer sentiment. This has adversely affected
the operations and performance of the Group’s associates.
Management believed that there were indications of impairment for
certain investments as at 31 December 2020.

When impairment indicators of the investments accounted for using
the equity method were identified, management determined the
recoverable amounts, which was the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposals and its value in use. When value in use
calculations were undertaken, management estimated the present
value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from their
businesses.

The recoverable amount was determined with reference to the
value in use assessment result. The estimated cash flows used in
the assessments were based on assumptions, such as pre-tax
discount rates, long-term growth rates, forecasted revenue, gross
margin and working capital turnover rates, with reference to the
business plans and prevailing market conditions.

Based on the assessment results, the Company recognised an
impairment loss of RMB24,625,000 for the investments in certain
associates for the year ended 31 December 2020.

18 BEE N FIIRE @)

AEBRBEABE S ER - @
KA AREZRERSFERE
Bg - NETHEDSZEME-

REZE2020F12A31BHIEFE B2
K EREBEHEREENSEARY
2 BHEREEMEEERIDHE
BEN HAEBBERNRZEER
KEERTHNZE - EBEMEE K
202012 A31H  HETREFHERE
R o

WE BRI KA EREREZRE ZH
ENR ERENEAABERLE
RABRERBEZREEEE TR
THE-NAHEREER BHER
AEEBEBRELACAKRRERER
B-

ANEeEI2EEREENGEER
MEE - FEAAGEARERENZ
EEBAERRTIMBBERMIEL 2
R PIBRB AR E REER
E-FRARA ENEREEETH
ERo

RBEFEE R 2 22020F12A31H

IHFE ARARETHELQRRE
1% 3224,625,0007T A RE R EEIE ©

BRERERLR —ZT-ZFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e TR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

18 Investments in associates (Continued) 18 BE RN RREmW
(@) Tne following table illustrates the summarised financial (@) TERIFFHAMA BRNER
information of Qidiantongzhou, Yujian Xiaomian, and Yuepin BR(REYHAEEMEBEAN)
that are individually material to the Group: M BERBE -
Qidiantongzhou Yujian Xiaomian Yuepin
FHE BE/NE &

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
GG RMB'000 [GLUERIIE RMB'000 |FGLIEERIE RMB'000
TARS BN TAKE BN TAKE BN

Current assets TEEE 51,770 39,777 58,254 , 40,022
Non-current assets FEREEE 195,295 206,968 101,506 , 72,101 19,475
Current liabilities REERE (35,197) [Nl  (26,651) ALk (10,622)
Non-current liabilities ErRBERE (45,606) EENCYAIAN  (27,033) LS 425) AlasEl (18,650)
Net assets BEFHE 166,262 EERFCN(OCEN 106,076 80,116 74,034
Revenue WA el 173,015 | kRl 131,773 | kpekl 110,883

(Loss)/profit for the year & 41 (548) /% F el (8,569) 966 2,203 1,337 (1,600)

Total comprehensive loss 2 E 1B 45 (21,809) (8,569) 966 2,203 1,337 (1,600)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information F3EF B E ﬂ BMEHENGE S
to the carrying amount of the interest in associate recognised WMEANBBRREE R ER 2R
in the consolidated financial statements: HE ¥k
Qidiantongzhou Yujian Xiaomian Yuepin
TEHRA BR/NE i

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
SIS RMB000 |G LIS RMB'000 | LIRS RMB'000
NN TARE BESSLE TARK BPNSLE TARE

Net assets of the associates B4 A 8] 7 & &
HE 166,262 [ERVEN(OCE 106,076

Proportion of the Group’s 7 & B A Bt & 1 7)
direct ownership interests 7 B £ B #E

in the associates B 18.92% 18.92% 19.50% 19.50% 20.00% 20.00%

Net assets of interest in YN % B fE(hH 2

associate attributable to A EER 2 B E

the Group FE : , 20,685
Goodwil RS ; , 9,571
Effect on foreign currency M= 2 &

difference , (2,042)

Carrying amount of the AEEREE AT
Group’s interest in the BaREE
associate
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRMNE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

18 Investments in associates (continued)

(b) Individually immaterial associates (b)

In addition to the interests in associates disclosed above, the
Group also has interests in a number of individually immaterial
associates that are accounted for using the equity method.

18 Bt&E A TRE @

ERGFAERZHERT
W b SCRT B BB A A
5N A LB E TR REA
REEBY TEAZMENTE
B o

As at 31 December
M2A31H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARY

Aggregate carrying amount of individually
immaterial associates

BBEYAERZBZERT
Z BREARE

112,643 159,014

(10,912) (9,102)

Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share of:  SRBNAREE Z LA T
4 EE
Share of loss of associates JEEEE & ARSI
Total comprehensive loss 2HBEERE

(10,912) (9,102)

BREBRBERAT —E-_ZFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B HRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 12 A31H IFF &

19 Goodwill and intangible assets 19 BB REFEE
Computer
Goodwill software Trademark Total
BE BTN [EE: ast

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
TAR®E TAR® TARE TARE

At 1 January 2019 20191 81H
Cost [DiN 583,931 10,019 499,346 1,093,296
Accumulated amortisation and REEH RRE

impairment — (1,259) — (1,259)
Net book amount BRENEE 583,931 8,760 499,346 1,092,037

Year ended 31 December 2019 # £2019%4 12831 H

ILFE
Opening net book amount FYER®FE 583,931 8,760 499,346 1,092,037
Additions NE — 1,422 — 1,422
Measurement period adjustment =t £ Hi [ 3 &

(Note 36) (H$3£36) (3,000) - - (3,000)
Amortisation charge ¥y — (2,060) — (2,060)
Closing net book amount EXREREFEE 580,931 8,122 499,346 1,088,399
At 31 December 2019 A2019F12A31H
Cost B AN 580,931 11,441 499,346 1,091,718
Accumulated amortisation and 25t MORE

impairment — (8,319) - (3,319)
Net book amount BREFE 580,931 8,122 499,346 1,088,399

Year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020512H31H

IEFEE

Opening net book amount FYEREFE 580,931 8,122 499,346 1,088,399
Additions NE — 35 — 35
Disposal & — (875) - 375)
Amortisation charge Y H — (1,365) — (1,365)
Closing net book amount EXREREFE 580,931 6,417 499,346 1,086,694
At 31 December 2020 720206128 31H
Cost X 7 580,931 11,101 499,346 1,091,378
Accumulated amortisation and RET#ELRE

impairment — (4,684) — (4,684)
Net book amount EREEE 580,931 6,417 499,346 1,086,694
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5 %5 ¥ &k Y o (48D

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F €

19 Goodwill and intangible assets (continued)

(a)

(b)

Useful life of intangible assets

Computer software is amortised on a straight-line basis over
the expected useful life of 5 years.

The trademarks have a legal life of 10 years and is renewable
every 10 years at minimal cost. The directors of the Company
are of the opinion that the Group would renew the trademark
continuously and has the ability to do so. Various studies
including product life cycle studies, market, competitive and
environmental trends and brand extension opportunities have
been performed by management of the Group, which support
that the trademarks have no foreseeable limit to the period
over which the trademarked products are expected to
generate net cash flows for the Group.

As a result, the trademarks are considered by the
management of the Group as having an indefinite useful life.
The trademarks will not be amortised until the useful life is
determined to be finite. Instead they will be tested for
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that
they may be impaired.

Impairment tests for goodwill and
trademarks

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill and
trademarks with indefinite useful life have been allocated to
groups of CGUs in the food and beverage business segment,
which comprise: (1) Beijing HHG Restaurant Management
Co., Ltd. (“HHG”) and its subsidiaries (the “HHG Group”); and
(2) Beijing Xinladao Catering Management Ltd. (“Xinladao”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Xinladao Group”).

For the HHG Group, the recoverable amount of the CGUs
has been determined based on a value in use calculation.
The calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
forecast approved by management covering a five-year
period, and pre-tax discount rate of 16.3% (2019: 16.1%).
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using a steady 3% growth rate. This growth rate is based on
the relevant industry growth forecasts and does not exceed
the average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. If
the pre-tax discount rate had increased by 3.5%, it would
have decreased by 18% for the VIU of the CGU, which would

approximate its carrying amount.

10 BEREFLEE @

(a)

(b)

BEVEEAEAFH

B R AT AT R F HISHF
WME&&%%

BEiZZ A EFHA10F - WA LA
MFTEBMZKAAFI0FELE —
Ko RKPNAEERE AEEE

M7 - AEBEEREECETT
ZIEM R BIEEMS BT
K-mE BFRREBEUAR
BRMEES - ZFWRA R

BELEERRERBYAASE
BEAFREREZHHELE
8RR

At AEBERERRBERA
BERAERFH - 1R a7 A
ETAAERFHML TS %

e RS EETFERMENR
Ko 3R A] E/WEZEJT%H 178
BRI -

%%&% T\/Jﬁﬁ//\uﬂﬁ
SREANANES  HERARE

RAUERFH AR LIOERE
’éﬁk%ﬁﬁ%ﬁzfﬁéﬁiﬁﬁ
el B ()IERMERERK

ERERAB(ME @J)&EW
Bom(Mmeas®d]): kit

REREEREEARAG(H
wEDREWB AR ([FRES
EHDR
RMEREENST BHeELE
fUzaE&ENREFERER
FTEMEE ZAENREBEER
[ 3t /R E R F M 2 B 757808
Ko B B A HT 3R K /316.3% (2019
F:161%) AR K= A
igﬁ_' ﬂﬁzﬁﬂﬁﬁziﬁiuwgﬂlr/(
3% BEREHEH -ZER

EPEREEITEEEERNG
- B A EBEEBETE Y
RHEIE R % o fd BR B A0 47 3R X0
m3sn ReEFEEM2FER
EEB R L 18% B H iR M (8 /8
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Eo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
rE W Rk MY a (48D

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &

19 Goodwill and intangible assets (continued)

(b) Impairment tests for goodwill and

trademarks (Continued)

For the Xinladao Group, the recoverable amount of the CGUs
has been determined based on a value in use calculation.
The calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
forecast approved by management covering an eight-year
period, and pre-tax discount rate of 15.6% (2019: 15.9%).
Management considers it appropriate to apply a financial
forecast covering an eight-year period in the VIU calculation
of the Xinladao Group, based on the factors including: (i)
predictability of the trend of operating scale in the chained
hotpot restaurant industry; (i) expected sustainability of
business growth; and (jii) length of period to achieve business
targets. Cash flows beyond the eight-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 3% growth rate. This growth rate
is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts and does
not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
industry. If the pre-tax discount rate had increased by 1.5%
or the expected revenue growth rate had been 1.8% lower
than management’s estimates for each of the eight years
during the forecast period, it would have decreased by 16%
for the VIU of the CGU, which would approximate its carrying
amount.

Cash flow projections during the forecast period for the HHG
Group and the Xinladao Group are based on the expected
revenue growth rates and gross margins during the respective
forecast period. Forecasted revenue growth rates and gross
margins were determined based on past performance and
the management’s expectations for the market development.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change in
any of these assumptions would not cause the carrying
amounts of the CGUs to exceed their recoverable amounts.

Based on above assessment, management of the Company
are of the view that there is no impairment of goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful life as at 31 December
2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 12 A31H IFF &

20 Derivative financial instrument

20 fTHEERTIA

During the year ended

31 December 2020

RE Z2020F

12A31BLEFE

RMB’000

FAR®

As at 1 January R1A1H —
Addition NE 46,631
Fair value change AABEEZD 29,262
Exchange difference bE H Z5E (3,667)
As at 31 December W12 A31H 72,226

On 13 January 2020, the Company and United Strength Victory
Limited (“Investor”, a related party of the Company) entered into an
agreement (the “2020 Investment Agreement”) in relation to the
issuance of convertible bonds in the aggregate principal amount up
to HK$780,000,000 for a total consideration equal to the principal
amount of the convertible bonds. The 2020 Investment Agreement
was approved by the Company’s shareholders on 28 May 2020.

Pursuant to the 2020 Investment Agreement, at any time during the
2 years commencing from 29 May 2020 the Company may deliver
subscription request(s) to the Investor requesting the Investor to
subscribe for convertible bonds in the principal amount as specified
in such subscription request(s). As a result, the directors of the
Company are of the view that the above put option constituted a
derivative financial instrument for the Company and should be
accounted for as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

202041 H13H © AN A & B United
Strength Victory Limited ([ #% & & |+ &
NElZBBMA) BT A RETE
i##780,000,000/% 7T 2 Al 2 IR & 5 5T L
g ([2020F R E Wl REBLSE
HERAIBKRES 2 A S - 2020F
HEWZE R2020%5 A28 E AR
AIAR LA ©

RIE2020F B ARA AR
2020F 5 420 H M MM F N B B
MREEERERERI R BRKE
ERZERBBHRERZASER
BoBRBRES Al A2aEER
A Pl ROEHEERARR ZITE
TRTA EAREARAABENE
BEHEEZHFABEZEMEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B HRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &

20 Derivative financial instrument (Continued) 20 fTE ST A
The initial fair value of the derivative financial instrument at the RERBE ZITEER T A 26
recognition date which amounted to RMB46,631,000 was NI E{EA46,631,000 AR - B
recognised as a deemed contribution from shareholder and REBIEREHE  WRERFEEF
recorded in shareholder’s equity on special reserve. Subsequent AR EETAN - HEZITES2 R
change in fair value of the derivative financial instrument is TEZRAAEBEEZHNEBETPER-
recognised in profit or loss. As at 28 May 2020 and 31 December 7202045 A28 H 202012 4318 -
2020, the fair values of the derivative financial instrument were ZPTESMIAZARBEIIA-ZE
determined using the binomial valuation model, and the key inputs AHEELIEFT MRS BHEHAZER
into the model at the respective dates were as follows: FEHABBEAT
As at As at
31 December 28 May
R12H31H MN5H28H
2020 2020
Conversion price B HK$1.180 HK$1.180
1.180/% 7T 118078 T
Share price A% (B HK$0.750 HK$0.900
0.7507% 7T 0.900/7T
Expected volatility LN S 20.5% 17.6%
Remaining life T 64 F 28 1.41 years 2.00 years
1.414F 2.004F
Risk-free rate E Y e 0.08% 0.61%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e TR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

21 Trade and other receivables

21 BIWE S RHEMAKE

As at 31 December

A12A31H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARY
Trade receivables (a) W E Z A () 14,460 14,142
Other receivables (b) H {th B W 3B (b) 55,999 61,161
Total trade and other receivables FEUWE 5 & H fth X IE 42 58 70,459 75,303
Less: provision for expected credit loss B EWE S FIENTERER
allowance for trade receivables B (309) (226)
provision for expected credit loss Hfth FE U FRIB R TE BAE
allowance for other receivables BRBE (1,617) (2,623
Trade and other receivables — net EWE 5 R EMRIE — F8E 68,533 72,454
Less: Non-current portion B JEBNEREE (29,213) (43,116)
Trade and other receivables — current portion JEUL B 5 & H {th 7k 18 — BN Hj
=i 29,338
(a) Trade receivables (@) EWEZRE
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARE
Related parties (Note 37) B 5 (fT3E37) 68 83
Third parties F=F 14,059
Subtotal INEF 14142
Less: provision for expected credit B TBHIE BB AR
loss allowance (226)
Trade receivables — net JEWE S HIE — F8 13,916
BEERERLAT ZZ-ZFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

21 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(a) Trade receivables (Continued)

The aging analysis of trade receivables based on the invoice
date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

e MBRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

21 EWE Z K HMFHIE @

(a) EWE 5 FKIE @)

R 5 RER RS RS
BHZERAHMT -

As at 31 December

M12A318

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARY FAR®
Within 6 months 61 A LA A 12,658 13,856
6 months to 1 year 6lEAZE1F 1,802 286
14,460 14,142

Movement for expected credit loss allowance JEEA = HIELKBESE

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR% FAR®E
As at 1 January M1A1H 226 277
Provision for expected credit loss allowance 78 Hi 1= F 18 2k & 83 226
Written off during the year as uncollectible 45 R #fl 5 & -~ A] Y [@] — (277)
As at 31 December W12 A31H 226
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B HRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &

21 EWE Z K EMKE @)
(a) BEWE S FHE @)

21 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(a) Trade receivables (Continued)

Trade receivables are all denominated in RMB.

For dine-in and take-out revenue of the Group’s food and
beverage business, the Group’s trading terms with its
customers are mainly on cash and credit card settlement. For
sales of finished goods to customers of the food and
beverage business, a credit period not exceeding 180 days is
granted to the majority of customers. The credit period
provided to customers can vary based on a number of
factors including nature of operations and Group’s
relationship with the customer.

Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, their
carrying amount is considered to be the same as their fair
value.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. The loss
allowance increased by RMB83,000 to RMB309,000 for
trade receivables during the current reporting period (2019:
RMB226,000). Note 3.1(b) provides for details about the
calculation of the allowance.

Information about the expected credit loss allowance for
trade receivables and the Group’s exposure to credit risk,
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk can be found in
Note 3.1.

EWE 5 AAARBEHE °

WAKREZEREBZERRART
RONBRAME  AREEELR
FPrEEXZURERERARE
B-RREREBIEPHER
KRmms MAZHEFETZ
BREHTHBBIBOR-BTEFP
ZHEEHREERR(BHEEE
MERAEEERF ZBE)M
PE e

MRS EKRIAZEHEE
HEEEREREE AR EEM
EE

AEBRERBEEY B REER
FOR 2 BIOEFEFREBMERRE
KOHEEREE S FIRER
FEMERBRBE  RARSE
HifE - EUWE 5 RIBERBEEE
hn83,0007T A K & % 309,0007T
A R # (20194 : 226,0007C A &
%) o M EES.1D) B T A BE B R T
BZFH5-

EEREKESRABHEAEL
BERASERRZEHARR -
HNEE BB K I R B 2 B R
BfaE3.1 e

BREERERAT —ZE-FEER
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21 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e R AR M A (4

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

Other receivables

21

g)

B E 7 & H b :K IR @
(b) H itz FE W 5K IR

As at 31 December

Lease deposits
Amount due from related parties
(Note 37(b))
Loans receivable due from third parties (i)
Advance to employees
Others

HEZe

JE Us B B 5 3R 3B (MY 5E37 (b))

FEWE = HER()
2R FEE
Hth

Less: provision for expected credit
loss allowance

o TREE MBREE

Other receivables — net

H A B UCRR — F R

M12831H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE TFARE
34,990 40,502
10,241 9,094
6,980 7,760
1,570 1,765
2,218 2,040
55,999 61,161
(1,617) (2,623)
54,382 58,538

Notes:

(i) The balance includes:

(1) Loans receivable of RMB5,960,000 (2019: RMB5,610,000) due
from certain shareholders of an associate of the Group, which
are repayable in 2021 and bear interest at 7% per annum. The
loans are secured by the equity interests in the associate of the

Group held by the borrowers.

2) Loans receivable of RMB1,020,000 (2019: RMB2,150,000) due
from a third party controlled by the non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary, which is unsecured and repayable in 2021.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, non-current portion
mainly comprised lease deposits and loans receivables due

from related parties.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the fair values of trade
and other receivables approximated their carrying amounts.

(i) EHaRE:

1) AEBREKE THE QAR
2 B 35,960,000 7T A R #
(20194 : 5,610,000t A R
%15)45\362021@{*5& FH)
%7\/%7% , L/{{EITAF%ﬁ
$%Hﬁ§%@72ﬁﬂé{’ﬁ&
ﬁio

2 EHHE-EHEEARFE

BREEHZE=ZFE
1,020,000t A R #(20
4F : 2,150,0007C A R#) -

K R AR 2021 FEE -

b

A
019
5

(c) M2020%4 R2019412H31H
AL T EREHEZS R
FEU B S B -

(d) #2020% %2019 12831H
BRESREMKREBEZ AAEE

HHREEMRS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRMNE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

Financial assets at fair value through 22 BAREBEEIFEBEHEE
other comprehensive income AR EERE 2SR
BE
As at 31 December
R12A31H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARE
Unlisted investments — measured at fair value 3E L& — AR BEE 2 5,000 5,000
Convertible bonds 23 AR ES
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARE
Current RENER D
Convertible bonds — interest payable AR ES — EAFE 34,183
Non-current FREBIB A
Convertible bonds MR ES 448,380

As at 31 December 2020, current portion of the Convertible Bonds
amounted to HK$54,465,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB45,837,000), which represented interest payable commencing
from 23 November 2018 and was calculated at the coupon rate of 3%
per annum. The remaining amount of the Convertible Bonds were
classified as non-current liabilities.

MR2020F 12 A31H » AI KR EFHF 2R
)30 D & ¥ 554,465,000 7T (HHE R
#945,837,0007T A R #) + 8§ B 20184
1MTH23H U FREEXI%BTH 2 JE
HAE - R ELFBREE D EAIE
MBAE-

BEEBRERAT —Z-Z5EER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 12 A31H IFF &

23 Convertible bonds (Continued)

The major terms and conditions of the convertible bonds issued by
the Company (the “Convertible Bonds”) are as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Interest rate

The Company shall pay an interest on the Convertible Bonds
at 3% per annum.

Conversion price

The Convertible Bonds will be convertible into the Company’s
shares at the initial Conversion Price of HK$1.18 per share,
subject to adjustments. The Conversion Price will be subject
to adjustment for, amongst others, consolidation, subdivision
or reclassification of shares, capitalisation of profits or
reserves, capital distribution, dividends, rights issues of
shares or options over shares, rights issues of other
securities, modification of rights of conversion and other
offers to shareholders.

Availability period for the Company to
issue the Convertible Bonds

The availability period for the Company to issue the
Convertible Bonds is a fixed term of two years commencing
from 13 November 2016 and neither party will have the right
to extend.

Maturity

The fifth anniversary of the date of issue of the Convertible
Bonds, or subject to the agreement of the bondholder, the
seventh anniversary of the date of issue.

Redemption on maturity

Unless previously redeemed, converted or purchased and
cancelled, the Company will redeem the Convertible Bond at
an amount equal to the principal amount on the maturity
date, plus accrued interest and all other amounts accrued or
outstanding under the Convertible Bonds which remain
unpaid on the maturity date. The Company may not redeem
the Convertible Bonds at its option prior to the maturity date,
except on redemption on change of control and redemption
on delisting as described below.
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(ii)

(iii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B HRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &

23 Convertible bonds (Continued)

(vij Redemption at the option of the
bondholder

(1)

Redemption on change of control

Following the occurrence of a change of control, the
bondholder will have the right at its option, to require
the Company to redeem in whole but not in part such
holder’s Convertible Bonds.

The redemption price is the HK dollar equivalent
amount which is the outstanding principal amount, plus
the amount of interest representing 8% of the internal
rate of return of the principal amount of the Bond from
the date of issue to the payment date (the “Early
Redemption Amount”).

Redemption on Delisting

In the event that the Company’s shares cease to be
listed or admitted to trading on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, the bondholder shall have the right, at its
option, to require the Company to redeem, in whole but
not in part only, such bondholder’s Convertible Bonds
at the Early Redemption Amount.

The fair value of the liability component was calculated using a
market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond at the
issue date. The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the
conversion option and recognised in shareholders’ equity on
special reserve.

23 T R 1E 3 @)
(vi) EHBEARERED

(1)

EHE2ERSEL
BARHREER  BE5F
BAERBTEEZRA
RABERZEFTAEAZ
2R (E I 3E#8 ) AT 2 v
EEa

BOERASREELASR
ZETEEEEMLES
BETHHUENRBME
A& BA LR X%
ZMEEB(TEAERS
Bl

BR b B B [
WARB RO TBERE
B EMATEEER
AHMRAEE  AEFRA
ABERBITEREERAR
Bl iR AT RE B € FEE @ %
BEFFHAAZEE(EALIF
D) A AR E SR o

BERBP AR EBERRETERSE
EFABMREZR TSN ERGTE - B
SRESRBEOIEEEBREL FRR R
EEHERREDRTHER -

BRERBERAT

—ECEEFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &
23 Convertible bonds (Continued) 23 T R 1E 3 @)
The movement in the components of the Convertible Bonds during i £2019F N2020F12 A31H It F

the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020 are as follows:

B ARESEKRE s 2 EB T

Liability Equity

component component Total

8EHD ERBo &t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

FARE TFARH FAR®

As at 1 January 2019 R2019F1 A1 H 537,392 128,088 665,480

Conversion of Convertible bonds (i) 5 # A] # f% {& % (i) (97,612) (23,794) (121,406)

Interest expenses (i) FEFX () 35,920 — 35,920

Exchange difference fE X =% 6,863 — 6,363

As at 31 December 2019 201912 H31H 482,563 104,294 586,857

As at 1 January 2020 20201 A1H 482,563 104,294 586,857

Interest expenses (i) B () 35,214 - 35,214

Exchange difference VE W ZRE (32,352) - (32,352)

As at 31 December 2020 202012 A31 H 485,425 104,294 589,719
Notes: Bt 5 -

(i) The interest expense of RMB35,214,000 (2019: RMB35,920,000) was i)
calculated using the effective interest method.

(ii) During the year ended 31 December 2020, none of the Convertible Bonds was (ii)
converted.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, Convertible Bonds with principal
amount of HK$139,323,520 were converted into 118,070,780 ordinary shares
of the Company, which resulted in an increase in share capital of
HK$11,807,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB10,074,000) and share
premium of HK$129,394,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB111,332,000),
respectively.
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# B B3 385,214,000 7T A R # (20194 :

=

35,920,000 A R #) o 5% 3 B B I R A5

REZE2020F 12 B31 B I FE R - I & A

B EFEER -

REZ2019F12A31ALEFER  KAEHE
#3139,323,520 8 L 2 A RIRIEFEHR A
A2 118,070,780 E A AR - BHR A K
%17 %5 18 2 Bl 2 H011,807,000%8 7T (1B E 7
#710,074,0007T A R # ) & 129,394,000%
7T (M & 1 49111,332,000C A R ) ©



24 Cash and cash equivalents

25

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and
short term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less. The deposits carry prevailing market interest rates.

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following

e MBRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

24 BEeRBAESEEY

RekReEBYERAEERELZ
BehkRIHARR=ZFEARARNZE
HIRTHER - ZFFERREMM SN
S I

RelReEFEMUTIERE:

As at 31 December
M12A318
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® FARK

currencies:

RMB AR
HKD BT
Usb ETT

67,329 71,064
36,081 49,764
20,331 10,457

123,741 131,285

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

25 BAREEGFERHEH

4

ATABERZETHMERE

As at 31 December
M2A31H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARY

Investment in wealth management products

REMERZKE

27,931 62,792

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are all

denominated in RMB.

BAnBEAEEEEF AERZL
TREEHAARKE-

BREBRBERAT —E-_ZFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRMNE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (continued)

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represent
investment in wealth management products issued by listed banks
in the PRC and redeemable within one year. The fair values of
investments in wealth management products are based on cash
flow discounted using the expected rate of return (ranged from
2.8%-3.7% per annum) based on management estimates and are
within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy (Note 3.3). Management is
not aware of any observable significant change in macro-economic
environment or fluctuation in short-term market interest rate as at
31 December 2020 that may significantly affect the expected rate
of return of the unlisted wealth management product invested by
the Group.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying value of these financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

Other current assets and other non-
current assets

26

BAREBEEGFEBRESH
HABRZSREE®

BEARnEBEFEEEEHTABEZL
TREEERNTRH EMBITETZ
BHEREE WAAE—FARED-
BUYERKBREZAABEDENRER
Bt IRIBFEAERE R E(F X
NF28%EIT7T%) MR ZEERER
B Y EAREBEEREIHAN (T
3.3)°c R2020%F12A31H EEE L
THBELREBRERSBEEMNABRERE
ARSI EHMIERE LR LE M
AR ErErsEMEEE LT
BHMERZ AR HRE -

RBREAM ERAARZEEARA
ZEHAARBEFEREEZEHTAR
HmZEMEEZKREME-

LA B R S 3

-3

As at 31 December

Prepayments (a) B 3R IE (a)

Deductible VAT input

A] R (B A 1R

A12831H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FARE
24,342 25,772
34,244 35,695
58,586 61,467
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e TR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

26 Other current assets and other non-
current assets (Continued)

26 HtABEEREMIER
BE

= )

As at 31 December
M2A31H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARY

Non-current E i 1,284 2,075
Current N3] 57,302 59,392
58,586 61,467
(a) Prepayments (@) ERRE
As at 31 December
M12A318
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARE
Prepayments for raw materials R B2 TS RIE 10,796 12,507
Prepayments for property management MESIBEE  KERRE
fees, water electricity and fuel 2 BRI RIB 5,496 5,512
Amounts due from related parties (Note 37(0)) & U 8 Bt 75 738 (M 5F 37(b)) 1,500 —
Prepayments for software and digital BURET RS 2 BN KIA
services 1,450 3,693
Prepayment for property, plant and W WERE&EEZ
equipment AR 1,061 461
Prepayments for rental HEZBANFHIE 776 161
Others HAb 3,263 3,438

(b)

24,342 25,772

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, non-current portion
mainly comprised prepayments for property, plant and
equipment and software and digital services.

(b) #2020% % 2019412 A31 8 -
IRBIBHETEVEME  BE
REBEARBGRBFRE 28
T8 -

BREBRBERAT —E-_ZFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRMNE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

27 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables principally comprise amounts outstanding
for trade purchases and ongoing costs. The average credit period

obtained for trade purchases is 30 to 180 days.

27 ENESZRHEMNKIE
ENEZNEGCRBEZTEAREEZE
EREERIRAZRANEE -BH
BEZVFHYIREHA30E180K -

As at 31 December

Trade payables (a)
Other payables and accruals (b)

FEHE 5 5E (a)

(@) Trade payables

M12A31H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR% FARM
70,865 50,915
HiENRIEREREM D 79,358 78,145
150,223 129,060

(@) ENESZNRE
As at 31 December

M12831H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR¥ FARE

Related parties (Note 37(b))
Third parties

R 5 (M 3E37(0) 10,914 —

59,951 50,915

70,865 50,915
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MBRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

27 Trade and other payables (Continued) 27 EHESZRHEMNE@m
(@) Trade payables (Continued) (a) EE ZKE @
The aging analysis of trade payables based on the invoice FENESREBRNREEHRIEERE
date at the end of the reporting period is as follows: AEIZERER T T :
As at 31 December
M2A31H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARY FARY
Within 6 months 61& A LA 61,578 50,658
Over 6 months 61& A LA 9,287 257
70,865 50,915
Trade payables are all denominated in RMB. ENBZHEEIHUARES
’fﬁ o
(b) Other payables and accruals (b) HttEIRERTARER
As at 31 December
R12A318
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARYE FAR®
Wages, salaries and other employee ITE #HaelkEMEERF
benefits 33,046
Payables for renovation costs FERTERAB B AR 17,979
Tax payables (excluding current income FERT AR IE (B 15 BN 23
tax liabilities) FsfasE) 1,338
Payables for franchisee FE A5 0 BR 7 Bk IR 7,062
Payables for water, electricity and fuel FERIKE R AE B A
expenses 1,429
Payables for rental expenses ERNEEEA 1,357
Payables for transportation expenses R BER 2,583
Interest payable FEASTFIE 78
Others HAb 13,283
78,145
(c) As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the fair value of trade (c) #2020% K2019F 128318 - f&
and other payables approximated their carrying amounts. NEBSREMFZEBEBZ AL BEHE

HERHEMRE -
BREBRBERAT —E-_ZFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEUBRRME (B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

28 Deferred taxation 28 IEEBi1E
The analysis of deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) is as follows: BEFREMEE/(AE)DTWT :

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
TFAR% FARM
Deferred income tax assets RIEMSMEE 33,560 25,205
Deferred income tax liabilities BEIEFTEHABE (121,790) (123,579)
The movement in deferred income tax assets during the year is as FRNBELEMESHEEZEHWMT -
follows:
Payroll and Customer
accrued Amortisation  Unused tax loyalty
expenses differences losses program Leases Others Total
IER REABK EFBH
st &R BHEER BB AE HE Hitt at

RVB'0O0 ~ RMB'OD0  RMB'000 ~ RMB'O00  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000
TAR®  TARE®  TARE  TAREE®  TARE  TARE  TARE

At 1 January 2019 R2019F1 818 5,323 9,908 12,075 3,210 - 872 31,388

Disposal of subsidiaries ~ H & B2 7

(Note 35(b)) (P 5E35(0)) - (2,425) (451) - - - (2,876)
(Charged)/credited to profit (R BZE K ),/5F A

or loss Bi (1,202) (4,578) (1,562) (1,303) 4112 1,173 (3,360)
Currency translation EMBhEEE

differences - 53 - - - - 53
At 31 December 2019 201912831 H 4121 2,958 10,062 1,907 4112 2,045 25,205

(Charged)/credited to profit (A E# ),/ 3 A
orloss 8% (864) ©2) 8706 (1,224) 1,100 710 8355

At31December2020  jA2020F12H31H 3,257 2,876 18,768 683 5,221 2,755 33,560
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

28 Deferred taxation (Continued)

e TR R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F €

28 & ZE I8 ()

The movement in deferred income tax liabilities during the year is as
follows:

FRECHEHAELDMT :

Fair value Fair value
adjustment change on
on intangible investment Amortisation
assets property  differences Others Total
BREE REYWHE
ARBERAE AABERE M= HAth A&t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARK FARE FAR TARK FARK
At 1 January 2019 A2019F1 818 (121,719) (3,191) - 42 (124,868)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMNE AT
(Note 35(b)) (P 7£35(0)) — 3,493 - (42) 3,451
Charged to profit or loss R 1B % (248) (164) (1,448) — (1,860)
Currency translation B E =8
differences — (802) - — (802)
At 31 December 2019 A2019F12831H (121,967) (164) (1,448) — (123,579)
Credited to profitor loss &+ A 828 177 164 1,448 - 1,789
At 31 December 2020 ®2020512A31H (121,790) — — — (121,790)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December
2020, the Group had tax losses of RMB126,946,000 (2019:
RMB59,788,000) to carry forward, which were not recognised as
deferred tax assets as management considered that the utilisation
of these tax losses in the foreseeable future is not probable, of
which an amount of RMB39,222,000 would expire through year
2021 to 2025 (2019: RMB19,977,000 would expire through year
2020 to 2024), the amount of RMB87,724,000 (2019:
RMB39,811,000) with no expiry date.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has
not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of temporary difference attributable to accumulated profits
of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to RMB29,825,000 (2019:
RMB38,580,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

EIEFTES R E E Y FEF B 55
%5 A]E B R PR B AR TR % A 2 3R sb
BT 4% 88 2 F 7% &5 18 1E # 38 » 122020
F12A31H AEEEE R E
1 5126,946,0007T A R # (20194 :
59,788,000t ARE) - RN BEEER
ABEUERAKRERAZEHRBEEERZ
AREEEMN MY AGEBERAET
TR 18 & E - H H39,222,0007T A R #
4 FA2021 FE ZE20254F F i (2019 4F ¢
19,977,0007C A R ¥ #& M 20204 &=
20244 f@ i) » 87,724,0007T A R
(20194 : 39,811,0007T A K ¥ ) 4 3|
A -

RIEFRCEMBERE B20084F 1
B 1B #E - F B E A A AT B EUE R M
FBRZEEHDEBWERKE - AR
NEBEEMITH BOEBFE=B 2K
- R E 8 R &K% A g~ & # [0
ERUEZRE MGAVBRRTE
HREEBRAPEWNEQARZRAEN 2 G
M 2 %829 ,825, 0007 A R # (20194 -
38,580,0007T A K ¥ ) 5 12 i 1 % 18 #
=

BRERERLR —ZT-ZFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MBRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

29 Borrowings

29 &

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR% FARM
Current BN &R
Secured A
Bank borrowings RITHE X 5,000
Unsecured mE A
Bank borrowings H|ITE R -
Loans from third parties FE=ZFER -
5,000
Non-current Ik BN
Unsecured R
Loans from third parties FEZHER 1,200
Total borrowings B KRR 6,200
(a) Maturity of borrowings (@) ERRZEIHEA
At 31 December, the Group’s borrowings were repayable as M128318 REEZEZHAER
follows: T HAMEE :
Bank borrowings Other loans
SRITEN HtEX
2020 2019 2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR% FARY FAR% FARM
12 months or less 1218 A AT 15,000 5,000 1,200

1-2 years

1226F -

15,000 16,200

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e TR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

29 Borrowings (Continued)

(b) Weighted average annual interest rates

29 &K @

(b) fnAEF 39 F R &R

As at 31 December
R12A318
2020

RMB’000

FAR%

4.35%
10.00%

2019
RMB’000
TAR®E

5.22%
3.48%

As at 31 December
M12A31H

2020
RMB’000
TAR®

54,171
2,731

1,701
153

Bank borrowings HRAT 1K
Loans from third parties FE=ZFER
30 Contract liabilities 30 EXNEE
Prepaid card R
Customer loyalty programme BB S
Advances from customers EP#
Advances from group-purchasing websites BB UL g IR
Others HAh

388

59,144

BREERERAH

2019
RMB’000
TAR®E

51,207
7,628
2,422

130
359

61,746

—E-BEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRMNE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

30 Contract liabilities (continued)

(i) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities: 0]

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period relates to carried-

forward contract liabilities.

30 N EEw@m
RANEEERT WA :

TRERARERERZWAS
HESANABERHZE® -

Year ended 31 December

Revenue recognised that was included in
the contract liability balance at the
beginning of the period

Prepaid card

Customer loyalty programme

Advance from customers

Advances from group-purchasing websites

Amounts due to related parties

Others

HZ12A31BLLEE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARY FAR®E
ARG EERE L
BRI A
BN 13,148
B AHEE 5,211
P B 5,312
EfiEEEprEaE 668
P BB B 75 3RIB 6
Hth 1,828

31 Deferred government grants

31 EXEBAFEED

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31HILEE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARYE FARE
Opening net amount of the year F 55 5,443 3,761
Additions A= 530 6,246
Amortisation o (2,806) (4,564)
3,167 5,443

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
rE W Rk MY a (48D

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F €

Deferred government grants (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group received
government grants amounting to RMB530,000 (2019:
RMB6,246,000), mainly for the establishment of restaurants and
purchase of manufacturing machineries. Such government grants
were recorded as deferred government grants and would be
credited to the statement of comprehensive income over the useful
life of the corresponding assets using straight-line method.

Share-based payments

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 18 May 2011 for the
purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible persons.
The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years from
adoption of such scheme and will expire on 17 May 2021.

Under the Scheme, the board of directors of the Company could at
their discretion grant options to () any director, employee or
consultant of the Company or a company in which the Company
holds an equity interest or a subsidiary of such company (“Affiliate”);
or (i) any discretionary trust whose discretionary objects include
any director, employee or consultant of the Company or an Affiliate;
or (iiiy a company beneficially owned by any director, employee or
consultant of the Company or an Affiliate; or (iv) any customer,
supplier or adviser as may be determined by the directors of the
Company from time to time to subscribe for the shares of the
Company.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date of
grant. The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect
of which options might be granted under the Scheme shall not in
aggregate exceed 82,500,000 shares, representing 10% of the
Shares in issue at the time dealings in the Shares first commence
on the Stock Exchange and approximately 5.23% of the Shares in
issue at the date of this annual report. The maximum number of the
shares of the Company in respect of which options might be
granted to any individual in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue on the last date of such
12-month period unless approval of the shareholders of the
Company was obtained in accordance with the Listing Rules on the
Stock Exchange.

31

32

iIE %E XA % Bh ()

HE2020F12A31BIEFE K"EEH
U B B JF % BH530,000 7T A R #5 (2019
% 16,246,000t AR®) - T EZRANH
REBERNBEELEERW ZSBITMH
MEFFABRTEERT@ME - Xi§ERAE
BECHREEE 2B RAFHEAGA
FHEMEE -

UGB HERMNR

ARBRE—IBR2011F5 180 &
Bz RER CEMERETE(H
D LEBEERAERAL
IRz ERA1I0FERE R - I
720215 A17BER °

RiEFFE AR EZFS BB
ARBRARBFEBERA R Z A F
AR ZHBRARA(HEBAR] 2
THEF BELEMB: kMXmA
BREARAXBEBARZEMNES
B 8 B M Z [ 2 #1= 7 ki) i
ARRSBBARCENES BB
FEEEERBZAF RVAAR
AEETRAEZERMES HES
B HEE T EBREARRE AR AR

,T/\ °

BRTFZERENERERE BB
ARRNEN - BEREFEMRLZ
BREMSPRZARNA TS RGEE
T84 L #8:B82,500,000 & B 17+ 1k A%
MEARBEZXMEERTMAEREE %
TRMI0% M AFHRAHS BTG
#495.23% B IEAR B8 B 2 AT = T AR Al
EBARDNAREME - T BN EM[A12
8 A HME FEMAEB AL 2 8RR E
TS RZARNAESERHDEE 15
MBERZI2EABEc &% —HE %
ARDBRD Z1% o

BRERERLR —ZT-ZFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRMNE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

32 Share-based payments (continued)

Options may be exercised during such period (including the
minimum period, if any, for which an option must be held before it
could be exercised) as may be determined by the directors of the
Company (which shall be less than ten years from the date of issue
of the relevant option). Options may be granted without initial
payment. The exercise price is determined at the discretion of the
Board but shall not be less than the highest of (i) nominal value of
the shares of the Company; (i) the closing price per share as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of the
grant of the options; and (iii) the average closing price per share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the grant of the
options.

(@) Employee Share Option Scheme

32 URBABEBSR@

BREATRARNRESFETZEHAY
FM(ZHMEaETERBEREE A
EEF10F R X BEBRER TITE
AIBAREZ&EERR(NE)) AT
- BRENERBELNHNTRZ
BATERL - TEEHEFENEE
EHEABERTIEBEZES

WA B D 2 EME (i) H PR LB
REE MM RARERMINZE
P W T M8 ¢ e (i) AR £ 20 BB R R BB AR
BEMmMESEXAEBIME AR
BRI ZFHFRETIE-

(a) EEBKRES

Movements in the number of share options outstanding

during the years

this scheme and their weighted average exercise prices are

ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 under

#H 20204 N2019F12A31H
IFE REAGFEHERTEZ
EREHE RENEFHTERE

as follows: 2E8BOT
2020 2019

Average Average

exercise exercise
price per Number of price per Number of
share option oiaileiis | share option options

BHERE Tt s i
FETEE BRESE BRI Ei- IS
HK$ (Thousands) HK$  (Thousands)
T (F 1) BT (F%)
As at 1 January MW1A1H 1.08 31,573 — —
Granted during the year F R H — - 1.08 31,753
As at 31 December ®12A31H 1.08 31,573 1.08 31,753

Exercisable at 31
December

W12 431 B A 7{E

No options expired during the periods covered by the above

tables.

2 H -

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2020



e B HRRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

32 Share-based payments (continued)

(a)

(b)

Employee Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Share options outstanding at 31 December 2020 have the
following exercise period and exercise prices:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

32 LR AERS @

(a)

EEBREE @

A2020F 12 A31 B i K 17 1% B#
PRt 2 ITREHI R AITEBOT ¢

Number of Number of

options options

Exercise price 31 December 31 December

Exercise Period (per share) 2020 2019

TR BREHA 8 IR 7 2 B

2020 F 20194

THEE(ER) 12H31H 12 A31H

HK$ (Thousands) (Thousands)

BT (F14) (F%)

From 31 December 2019 to 30 December 2024 HK$1.08 6,315 6,315
B20194 12 31 A £2024F 12 A308 1.08% 7T

From 31 December 2020 to 30 December 2025 HK$1.08 6,315 6,315
B 2020612 31 A £20259F12 A30 8 1.08% 7T

From 31 December 2021 to 30 December 2026 HK$1.08 6,315 6,315
82021612431 A E2026F12 4308 1.08% 7T

From 31 December 2022 to 30 December 2027 HK$1.08 6,315 6,315
202212 31 A E20274F12 4308 1.08% 7T

From 31 December 2023 to 30 December 2028 HK$1.08 6,315 6,315
B2023%F12 31 A £20284F12 4308 1.08% 7T

Weighted average remaining contractual life of options
outstanding at 31 December 2020 is 6 years (2019:7 years).

Share Award Scheme

The Company adopted the share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) on 11 November 2019 with a duration of 5
years commencing from the adoption date, subject to any
early termination as may be determined by the Board
pursuant to the terms of the Share Award Scheme. The
purposes of the Share Award Scheme are (i) to recognise the
contributions by certain employees and to provide them with
incentives in order to retain them for the continual operation
and development of the Group; and (i) to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group.

(b)

MR2020F12 A31 8 » HAITERE
Rz fEFEHBTANTHEA
64 (20194 : 74F) »

f 47 2% b =T &1

AR A R2019F 11 A11H K4
R D 2B ar &) ([ 17 52 Bh =T &1 ))
BRMBBRT BB AT H
FHESERERMEBTEN
1EFR AT BE R TEAR B4R 1E - B fp 18
BErENREROIKEETEE
FIEE R AR SRR #
MEBEEAAEENFELE
RERMN: Ri)ANEBENE
—SEERS|IAGEAE -

BEEBRERAT —Z-Z5EER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
rE W Rk MY a (48D

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F €

32 Share-based payments (Continued)

(b) Share Award Scheme

Subject to the Share Award Scheme rules, the Board may
select the employee(s) to participate in the Share Award
Scheme and determine the number of shares to be awarded
(the Awarded Shares”) to the respective selected grantees,
the applicable vesting date and make an award out of the
pool of issued shares held by a professional trustee (the
“Trustee”) to be appointed to administer the Share Award
Scheme to any selected grantee. The Awarded Shares will
only comprise existing shares which are purchased from the
open market by the Trustee out of cash contributed by the
Company. The vesting and transfer of Awarded Shares to
selected grantees are subject to the compliance with the
Company’s articles of association and all applicable laws and
regulations (including without limitation, the Listing Rules and
the public float requirements thereunder and the Codes on
Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy- backs).

The maximum number of Awarded Shares shall not exceed 4%
of the Company’s share capital in issue from time to time.

The Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in respect of
any shares held by it under the Share Award Scheme. All
cash income and the sale proceeds of non-scrip distribution
declared in respect of a share held upon the trust under the
Share Award Scheme will be applied towards (a) the payment
of the fees, costs and expenses of the trust and (b) the
remainder, if any, remain as part of the trust fund.

On 11 November 2019, the Board resolved to grant an
aggregate of 43,413,260 Awarded Shares (representing
approximately 2.75% of the total issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2019) to three selected
grantees (Awardees”). The amount of contribution by the
Awardees for the relevant Awarded Shares shall be HK$0.54
per Awarded Share, being 50% of the average closing price
per share of approximately HK$1.08 for 20 business days
immediately preceding the grant of the Awarded Shares.
Assuming all the vesting criteria and conditions have been
fulfilled, such Awarded Shares granted shall be vested in the
Awardees in five equal tranches on 31 December 2019,
2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023 respectively.

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2020

32 LUK AERNSR@
(b) BZ 17 58 B =t &

REBRDRBFAERA EFE
FETE2 M0 B 8 AR
B - UEEHMEEEEXEA
RO E (ZEkK)) &
AHNEBEES REKEEER
MEBFEEREANEXEZTEA
(ZFEADFAHEEETRD)

PR EREAR L ER -
BEROBEBEITANUER
AERMMNREEAMMS LBE
MR A KD - BEIR D EREB &
BETETXBEARETARA
ZHEBERARRAEBERAR
FOER (BREETRN EMRAIK
HETZARFHHREREARRA
AR - AR EETRD -

BN EEEE TEBBAR
AR EBITIRA Z4% -

EEANGITREERERD EE
AHEIRAZEMRD 2 RER-
R ZBEENERERE
Bt T 2R B9 FE A B LB 9 TR B9
PrE RS WA RIHERERER
AR @M EFENKE - KA R
XX RbO)SHERNE) BREES
ERESHN D -

R2019F 1A HE EF e
MZRBEEZEA(ERADA
H % 43,413,260 f% 22 @ B 15 (47
B R AR QA R2019F12 A31 H
BEBITIRABE 2 #2.75%) - &
BAGEEEBROIELHSE
1 & & I 2 E) AR 19 0.547% T (B
B AD P B 2 1%t 82 B AR 19 BT 20 (&
BEAZERFHRMTEL.08
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EREHEEER  BEZHH
LB IR 1D 7B 5 I 20194F + 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MBRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

32 Share-based payments (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Share Award Scheme (Continued)

The fair value of the Awarded Shares, based on the difference
between the market value of the Company’s shares on the
date of grant and the consideration to be contributed by the
selected grantees, is charged as employee benefit expenses
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income over
the respective vesting periods.

Movement of the shares granted under the Share Award
Scheme during the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019 is as follows:

2020

Average
exercise price
per awarded
share
BRER

[ Ere ]

TEE
HK$
7T

As at 1 January M1A1H 0.54
Granted during the year R B 3% 1 =
As at 31 December W12 A31H 0.54

Expenses arising from share-based
payment transactions

Total expenses arising from share-based payment
transactions recognised during the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019 as part of employees benefit expenses were
as follows:

Number of
awarded

BB K

32 URBABEBSR@
(b) BB & (@)

RIBEFH AEBARE RO HER
BEXBABINREZZE
g ZREHzAAEBED R
EERBHRARGEZHKER
WA B 18 M B 51 B ©

H E2020%F K20194F12 A31H
I FERIER G EE T8 L&
Bz EBmT

2019

Average
exercise price Number of
per awarded awarded
shares share shares

% 22 &)
i 17 35 RENA D
B BB B
(Thousands) HK$  (Thousands)
(F14) BT (F1%)
43,413 — —
- 0.54 43,413
43,413 0.54 43,413

(c) UROBB/ERZNARX

ZEEZEX

H B 20204 K20194F12 A31H
HFEERBEERAMSZ —36
DZUARDAER AR B E

Share option scheme B8 A% 2 51 21
Share award scheme %t 2B &t &l

HERXBENT
Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31ALEE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARY FAREE
4,429 2,782
7,818 5,399
12,247 8,181

BREBRBERAT —E-_ZFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HRRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

33 Cash flow information

(a) Cash generated from operation

33 REREEH

() REXBHBERS

Loss before taxation from
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Loss before income tax including discontinued
operations

Adjustments for:

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries before
reclassification of foreign currency translation
reserve

Reclassification of foreign currency translation
reserve on disposal of subsidiaries

Depreciation and amortisation

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
(Note 15)

Amortisation of deferred government grants
(Note 31)

Finance expenses-net

Share of loss of associates (Note 18)

Impairment losses on investments in associates
(Note 18)

Non-cash employee benefits expense — share
based payments (Note 32)

Gain on fair value change on derivative financial
instrument (Note 20)

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment (Note 7)

Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets (Note 7)

(Reversal of)/provision for expected credit loss
allowance for financial assets, net

Net exchange differences

Interest income on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (Note 6)

Interest income on loans (Note 6)
Decrease in trade and other receivables
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories
Decrease in other operating assets
Decrease in contract liabilities

Increase in trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations

Year ended
31 December
BZ12A31ALEE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
SN FARE
KE T 2B BATEER
BEREER (160,689) (79,257)
BRI EETE - (32,126)
BRASHAEE(BEERILER
= E) (160,689) (111,383)
-
BN ERERENLE
MB A FER
39,994
EHHELENB AR ZINE
BREFE - 7,637
e 167,189 177,250
ME - BE REERE
(H3E15) 8,688 3,192
iR SE AT 4 Bh 8 (P 5E31)
(2,806) (4,564)
W ER S 52,325 60,505
e R R EE (HisE18) 14,559 11,189
BENRIRERRERERE
(fF3E18) 24,625 14,971
FREREREBBMFAS — URG
A AT R (BT 5E32) 12,247 8,181
MESBMIAERAABEEZESHW
# (M 5£20) (29,262) -
HEWE BERXEER
(Mt&x7) 8,408 1,266
HEGRAEEERR (MHE7) (5,128) (1,340)
CRMEEMNBEEHREL (B
BEE), B FHE (450) 2,849
PE & =5 H & (1,958) (3,901)
BAREBEFEAEZSH
ANEBZZEMEENSWA
(Mt&te) (1,975) 2,197)
ERAB YA (HE6) (926) (732)
U E 5 & E 5k IE R 3,375 7,184
FERD,/(3Em) 3,597 (20,905)
HppEEEER D 9,259 3,252
AHEERD (2,602) (17,075)
B8 5 R E GBI N 17,880 16,910
LEEBMERE 116,356 192,283

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e TR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

33 Cash flow information (continued)

(b) Net debt reconciliation

33 REREER @

(b) EHFEHK

As at 31 December

M12A318
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR% FARE
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY 123,741 131,285
Liquid investments mEERE 27,931 62,792
Borrowings — repayable within one year £ — —E R EE (16,200) (5,000)
Borrowings — repayable after one year B ——FREE - (1,200)
Convertible bonds AR ES (485,425) (482,563)
Lease liabilities HEAE (316,165) (880,289)
Net debt B F58 (666,118) (674,975)
Cash and liquid investments e RnsHERE 151,672 194,077
Gross debt — fixed interest rates EBEREE— EL (15,000) (5,000)
Gross debt — variable interest rates BB — 2R (317,365) (381,489)
Convertible bonds ARk ES (485,425) (482,563)
Net debt B F 8 (RRE)) (674,975)
BRERERERAT —ZE_ZFFRH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B HRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &

33 BEREEH @
(b) EEFEHEKR®@

33 Cash flow information (continued)

(b) Net debt reconciliation (continued)

184

Borrowings  Borrowing
Liquid  due within due after Lease Convertible
Cash investments 1 year 1year liabilities bonds Total
—FR —F#
Re RBERE HEER  PEER HEAE TRRES At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
TARK TARE TARE TARE TARE TARE TARE
Net cash as at 1 R2019F1A1H
January 2019 ZREFE 302,277 42,194 (5,000) (229,742) - (537,392) (427,663)
Recognised on adoption  FRAFBH K HRE
of HKFRS 16 ERIE 16571
R - - - - (369,228) - (369,228)
302,277 42,194 (5,000) (229,742) (369,228) (537,392) (796,891)
Cash flows Beng (159,742) 48,606 - — 127,660 - 16,524
Acquisition — leases g —-HE - - - - (132,702) - (132,702)
Disposal of subsidiaries & HfE 2 7 (9,646) (29,000) — 233,558 - - 194,912
Currency translation EMBEES
differences (1,604) — — (5,016) - (6,863) (13,483)
Other non-cash HEMFEBEE 25
movements — 992 — - (6,019) 61,692 56,665
Net debt as at R2019%12A318
31 December 2019 ZEEFEE 131,285 62,792 (5,000) (1,200) (380,289 (482,563) (674,975)
Cash flows BeEnE (8,417) (35,142) (10,000) - 134,458 - 80,899
Acquisition — leases W -HE - - - - (111,806) - (111,806)
Currency translation EHmE =5
differences 873 - - — - 32,352 33,225
Other non-cash HEMFReEH
movements - 281 (1,200) 1,200 41,472 (35,214) 6,539
Net debt as at 20205128311
31 December 2020 ZEXFE 123,741 27,931 (16,200) - (316,165) (485,425) (666,118)

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &

33 Cash flow information (continued)

(c) Significant non-cash transactions

M

(i)

The purchase of property, plant and equipment
amounting to RMB19,689,000 have not been settled as
at 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB17,979,000).

In December 2019, loans due to a third party and the
respective interest payable in an aggregate amount of
HK$273,746,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB245,907,000) were set off against the
consideration receivable in relation to the disposal of
Lee & Man (Note 35).

Refer to Note 16 and Note 33(b) for the addition to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities respectively.

Refer to Note 36 for the derecognition of payable in
relation to the put right of non-controlling interests
based on management’s estimate of the possibility for
the related cash flow as at 31 December 2020.

U)

(i)

33 BEREER @
(c) EXFBEERS

R 2020F 12 A 31 EI :
BEEVE BELER
19,689,000 A & # (2019
& 179790007*5/\E¢%<>
I'LJ* D/ﬁ°

BA2019¢12H & &

FERLHBEBEMSHBEAS
%273,746,000%71(* =}
#245,907,000 7T A R #
K H P EB X ARk
W& (Mf5E35) °

@A NEREEENRTA
EaE #Hon2BEKHE
16 & B 3E33(b) °

ﬁE

WE%DW

RIEE 2 B ¥ R2020F 12
A3TBEHEBIR S R=E A8
MZEFTMKILEERE
#?k%*ﬂ$%2ﬁﬁ

NI B2 FES6 -

34 Share capital 34 B
Number of
ordinary
shares Amount
ZHEREE o]
HKD’000
FHET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each: IR E0.107% T 2 il
Authorized: SETE
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 201941 A1H » 2019412
and 31 December 2020 HA31H &2020F12 A31H  5,000,000,000 500,000
Number of
ordinary
shares Amount Amount
ZTEREB g ok
HKD’000 RMB’000
FHExT FARH
As at 31 December 2019 and 2020 20204 K& 20194
12H31H 1,578,664,000 157,866 133,023
BRERERAT —ZE-ZFFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
rE W Rk MY a (48D

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 12 A31H IFF &

35 Discontinued operations 35 BRIEREEK

Lee & Man Development Company Limited (“Lee & Man”) was sold
on 27 December 2019 and is reported in the comparative period as
discontinued operations. Financial information relating to the
discontinued operations for the comparative period is set out below.

(@) Financial performance and cash flow
information

The financial performance and cash flow information
presented are for the period from 1 January 2019 to 27

B ERARAR(E]) B R20194F
12A27TEHEETRERBBAEZRA
BRI EE - FRBRIEEEET
REEBRBEARZ T HBEREN T -

(a) BREBRBSHELSR

T &R 5 R B2019F1A1H &
2019%F 12 A27TH M 2 1§ &

December 2019. BRIBSEEELER -
For the period from
1 January 2019 to
27 December 2019
H2019F1A1HZE
201951227 i
RMB’000
TAR®
Revenue A 444,751
Expenses = (429,246)
Profit before taxation B %54 B i 15,505
Income tax expense FT{5 i (2,9971)
Profit after income tax of discontinued operations BRIEBEEB ZBRABEHERT 12,514
Loss on disposal of equity interest in discontinued ENDBEINEBERHEDRIEL
operations before reclassification of foreign currency BEBREBECGIRAMEN)
translation, net of income tax (Note 35(b)) (Bt 5E35(0)) (39,994)
Reclassification of foreign currency translation reserve on~ R E B EHFH AL R IR LXK
discontinued operations upon disposal 2N (7,637)
Loss from discontinued operations ERIEREELEER (35,117)
Other comprehensive income Htt 2@k
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: B¢ a[stE# »HEZExm 7 HEH -
Exchange differences on translation of discontinued operations 2 4% |F 4 & ¥ 76 2 [E 3 =48 11,295
Reclassification of foreign currency translation reserve on - REEBR EH DA R IEEEEK
discontinued operations upon disposal ZINE I E G E 7,637
Other comprehensive income from discontinued ERIEREXE HMEZEKE
operations 18,932
Total comprehensive loss from discontinued operations B &K It RE £ K > 2 HEIBHEE (16,185)
Net cash inflow from operating activities REEHZMERAFE 23,249
Net cash outflow from investing activities BRETH RS R FE (33,540)
Exchange losses on cash and cash equivalents HekBReEBYELESE (1,923)
Net decrease in cash generated by the subsidiaries MEBAREAZE SRV FE (12,214)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B HRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &

35 Discontinued operations (continued)

(b) Details of the sale of the subsidiaries

On 8 November 2019, the Group entered into a disposal
agreement (the “Disposal Agreement”) with South Land to
dispose its entire equity interests in Lee & Man for a total
consideration of HK$276,488,000. Pursuant to the Disposal
Agreement, the consideration is satisfied in the following
manner:

M

(i)

the amount of HK$273,746,000 will be satisfied by
setting off against the equivalent amount of the
outstanding loan amount owing by the Company to a
former director with principal amount of
HK$260,000,000 and the respective interest payable
owing by the Company; and

South Land shall pay the sum of HK$2,742,000 in cash
to the Company.

In connection with the disposal of Lee & Man, on 27
December 2019, the Group and South Land executed the
deed of waiver (the “Deed of Waiver”), pursuant to which, the
Company agreed to waive shareholders’ loans due from Lee
& Man amounting to HK$39,307,000 on the date of disposal.

35 DRUERBEEE @
(b) HEKMB AT 215

R2019F11A8H "EEEF
Bt EwE((EHERZED -
LA 48 R (B 276,488,000/8 7T HH & H
REBX 225 R - RIEHE W

2
=23

(i)

CEREBRATHAEN

273,746,0007 TT #5 i& 1B 1K
HWARBRNAESMH R
BEEERcBERASLEHE
260,000,000/ 7T & A8 A 7
REBENESFBEMNE
FlezEMN &

HEERANRX MRS
2,742,000/ It °

FHEEXME * R2019F 12 8
27TH ASKEEEEREIARR
BURERE]D Bt X278
BERLEHRRERKIE 2
fi% B2 & 539,307,000 7T °

BRERBERAT

SE L

187



188

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B HRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &

35 Discontinued operations (Continued) 35 ERIEREXEK @
(b) Details of the sale of the subsidiaries b) LEMBARZFE @
(Continued)
On 27 December 2019, the Group completed the disposal of MR2019F12 A27H » K2 AITEK
100% equity interest in Lee & Man. Details of the effect on HEREXZE2IRE - B@ L
disposal are as follows: B2 EFHBNOT

27 December 2019

201912 A27H
RMB’000
FAR®
Consideration satisfied: REZERNTA:
Cash R&e 2,406
Add: Amount set off against loans and R AEERXE R KA
the respective payable owing by the Group FEREMNRIESEE 245,907
Total disposal consideration HEREBRE 248,313
Carrying amount of net assets sold EHEEEFHEREE (286,787)
Less: expenses in relation to the disposal W BEREEE ZRX (1,520)
Loss on disposal before reclassification of EFSENERERERN
foreign currency translation reserve ZHEEEB (39,994)
Reclassification of foreign currency translation RHEEXEH I ECR LY
reserve on discontinued operations upon EBR2IIEREFE
disposal (7,637)

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B HRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2020

35 Discontinued operations (continued)

(b) Details of the sale of the subsidiaries

(Continued)

The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities upon execution

of the Deed of Waiver as at the date of disposal were:

H Z2020F 12 AT B IEFE

35 ERIEEBEEKm

(b) LEMBARZFE @

REERRBRUHRRRERZE
ENBEREE:

27 December 2019

201912 A 27H

RMB’000

TARE
Current assets REEE
Inventories TE 79,172
Tax recoverable A] U [B] 7 18 146
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 Kk H b 5kIE 68,496
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEeEEY 9,646
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss &2 A A (EEET 2 A &

AR CEREE 29,000
Other current assets HEtmeEE 7,375
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) YE - BB R (M E15) 83,444
Right-of-use-assets TREEE 41,646
Investment properties "EYE 37,477
Defined benefit assets AEFM=EE 5,301
Deferred tax assets (Note 28) RIERIIE & B (fF7E28) 2,876
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables JERE 5 R H MR8 (71,269)
Tax payable FE IR (2,632)
Contract liabilities EHBE (440)
Non-current liabilities IERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 28) EIEFE B & (M 7E28) (3,451)
Total identifiable net assets AR FEERS 286,787
BREREBRA T E_EFFR

189



190

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e P HRR N (E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 12 A31H IFF &

36 Transaction with non-controlling interests 36

On 19 June 2018, Delightful Year Holdings Limited (“Delightful
Year”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
sale and purchase agreement (the “SPA”) with Mr. Li Jian, Mr. Xu
Bochun and other individuals (collectively, “the Seller”), pursuant to
which:

(1) The Group agreed to purchase and the Seller agreed to sell
72% equity interest in Xinladao for a cash consideration of
RMB696,143,000 (the “Tranche | Acquisition”);

(2)  Subject to the occurrence of the Tranche | Acquisition, the
Group agreed to purchase and the Seller agreed to sell an
aggregate of 15% equity interest in Beijing Xinladao on or
before 31 March 31 2019 at specific consideration stipulated
in the SPA with a minimum amount of RMB142,500,000 and
a cap amount of RMB330,000,000 (the “Tranche Il
Acquisition”); and

(8) In addition to the Tranche | Acquisition and the Tranche |l
Acquisition, the Group has granted the right in favour of Mr.
Li Jian and Mr. Xu Bochun (collectively the “Remaining
Shareholders”), pursuant to which the Remaining
Shareholders will have the right, but not an obligation, to
require the Group to purchase 13% equity interest in Beijing
Xinladao from the Remaining Shareholders at specific
consideration stipulated in the SPA with a minimum amount
of RMB123,500,000 and a cap amount of RMB286,000,000,
if the net profit of Beijing New Spice Way for any of the years
ended 31 December 2019, 2020 and 2021 exceeds
RMB41,000,000 (the “Put Right”).

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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R2018%F6 4198 AR a2 B E
RAIEFERBERAG(EF))ESE
BEE BRATLEEREMAL (AT
(BErRDiIvEERE((EEHED -
Bt

) AEEREBEREHFRED
ERET%RE BeRER
696,143,000 7T A F#& ([ 5 —HA UL
Bl

@ FEHWEEER XEEA
BERR2019F3A3IHS 2RI E
MEHFRERZBPR ZATHE
b FEFEEE L15% M RE
BEEHEIIBAZRESHE
142,500,000t A REE & LR &5
330,000,0007T A R ¥ ([ 5 — HA L
Bl Rk

Q) KE—HNERE Z_HKEN
REFEBERHBUEZGAERKIA
HEREAEBINgREDAX RS
ANZ R ¥Rt - Wit R FTERE
RE ZE 20194 » 20204 K 2021 4
128318 L E R/ FE 2 4 F 18
#141,000,0007C A R ® -+ F &4 %
HEEBIEET 2R ABESRAK
EEMFHREEELRITHE
13%BE BTTRELEEEHE
FT 5] B 2 £ 1K 4 %8 123,500,000 7T
AR # K PR %286,000,000 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
rE W Rk MY a (48D

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F €

36 Transaction with non-controlling interests

(Continued)

The Tranche | Acquisition was completed on 30 November 2018.
Based on the assessment performed on the date of completion,
management determined that the significant risk and reward of
ownership relating to the 15% equity interest in relation to the
Tranche Il Acquisition has been transferred to the Group upon the
completion of the Tranche | Acquisition. As a result, the Tranche |
Acquisition and the Tranche Il Acquisition were considered as
linked transactions for the purpose of accounting for business
combination. Management estimated that the consideration for the
Tranche Il Acquisition was RMB142,500,000, which was included
in “trade and other payables” in the consolidated balance sheet as
at 31 December 2018.

The Tranche Il Acquisition was completed in June 2019 at the final
consideration of RMB139,500,000, which was mutually agreed by
the Group and the Seller. As the Tranche Il Acquisition was
completed within 12 months after the completion of the Tranche |
Acquisition, the difference between the final consideration and the
amount estimated by management, which amounted to
RMB3,000,000, was accounted for as a measurement period
adjustment and recognised as a decrease in goodwill during the
year ended 31 December 2019 (Note 19).

To reflect the amount payable in relation to the Put Right based on
management’s estimate of the possibility for the remaining
shareholders to exercise the Put Right, the present value of the
estimated amount payable of RMB102,850,000 is recognised as a
financial liability with the corresponding amount debited to special
reserve on the date of completion of the Tranche | Acquisition (30
November 2018).

As at 31 December 2020, the fair value of the payable in relation to
the Put Right was nil considering management’s estimate of the
possibility for the remaining shareholders to exercise the Put Right.
The change in fair value amounting to RMB97,778,000 (before
adjusting for currency translation difference of RMB600,000) was
treated as transaction with non-controlling interests and recognised
in special reserve during the year ended 31 December 2020.

36 HIEZERERZRF @)

F—HUWE S R2018F11 A30H =&
Ko RBERTEK BETZFE B
EBRAEBHEE I 2 15% %2
EXRRIKESELRRERE K
B rEbEAEEH - At F—
HKERE_BHUREREBGH S
FFTEEMEHRABERS - 12018
F12H31H - EREMarE Z HUEE
2 1B B142,500,0007C A B ¥ - %
RBEESFAGAEEAERIENE
N EMFRIA]

F_HIWED R2019F6 A K - &
R {8 5139,500,0007T A B - iR
SEHESLEBTE BAREZHK
BRE BB TKEI2E A AT
B MERRAREEEEEHteE2
fE /9 2 %83,000,000 T A R#E B A BRI
A EHMAE TERAE ZE2019
F12ANBEFEZHERD (WiE
19) °

BEEEEBEGTHNGRRITER
HEZ AR ARMRAE Z A
BEMNKE G EMREBEZRE
102,850,000t A KRB EHRR AT RLE
& mMAESBEERE —BRETK
H (2018411 A30H ) f& 52 A Il
1 o

R2020F 12 A31H  KEEEEER
HETATRETEROGE AT
RLBEZEBAENREZAREES
Lo & £2020F12A8318 1k F & -
97,778,000t AR 2 AR BEEE B
(R E 1% 8 = 55 #§ % Bl £600,000 7T
ARBIVEGSABEIEERERZZIR S
WERFRIFEERER -

BRERERLR —ZT-ZFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e IR R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

parties

37 Related and connected party disclosures

(a) Significant transactions with related

37 BB NBEELTHE

() HBEBLT ZEARXRS

The following transactions occurred with related parties: BB FETINTIR S
Name of party Relationship Nature of transactions 2020
HERERE B& REME
RMB’000
TAR%
Sonic Tycoon Limited Parent company Interest on convertible bonds 35,214
BZERARA BA7 AARESTE
Xin Liang Ji Food Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. Controlled by non-controling interests  Interest income
(“Xin Liang Ji") of a subsidiary
FRERMMKER)BERAR(ERTZ)) HNBRRZFEREREH FIBHA
Shenzhen Love’s Kitchen Internet and Technology — Associate Interest income
Limited Company
RN EFZEBERBERAA - UNS FIEWA
Xin Liang Ji Controlled by non-controlling interests ~ Sales of goods
of a subsidiary
ERE BB ARz FERERE SEmiHE
China BBQ Limited Significantly influenced by key Management service fee
managements of the Company
China BBQ Limited ARAFEEBABASAYE EBRBER
Quan Jin Cheng Enterprise Management (Beijing)  Significantly influenced by key Management service fee
Co., Ltd. N managements of the Company
BeHeEERER)ERRA ARRAFEEBEABASAVE EERBEHR
Xin Liang Ji Controlled by non-controliing interests ~ Purchase of goods 19,146
of a subsidiary
ERE B R Rz R IR s BEER
Zigong Yanweiyuan Food Co., Ltd. Controlled by non-controlling interests  Purchase of goods
of a subsidiary
BEERRRRBRAR BB AR ZFERERES BEERm
Quan Jin Cheng Enterprise Management (Beijing)  Significantly influenced by key Purchase of services
Co., Ltd. managements of the Company
BeHEEEEMR)BRAR ARAFEEEABASAYE BEERE
Quan Jin Cheng Enterprise Management (Beijing)  Significantly influenced by key Purchase of goods
Co., Ltd. managements of the Company
BeWmEEERLR)ARAA ARRETEERABASAYE BEER
Quan Jin Cheng Enterprise Management (Beijing)  Significantly influenced by key Loans granted
Co., Ltd. managements of the Company
BeHeEERER)ERRA ARRFEEEABAEAYVE EHER
Quan Jin Cheng Enterprise Management (Beijing)  Significantly influenced by key Interest income
Co., Ltd. managements of the Company
BeBtcEERQLR)ARAR ARAFEERBABAEAYE FIEWA
Quan Jin Cheng Food Processing (Beijing) Co., Ltd.  Significantly influenced by key Sales of goods
N managements of the company
EeBRAMILR)BRAF ARATEERABASAYE EmiHE
Quan Jin Cheng Food Processing (Beijing) Co., Ltd.  Significantly influenced by key Purchase of goods
managements of the company
BeBemmMItR)BERAR ARBTEEBABAZAFE BEEM

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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RMB'000
TARHK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRMNE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

37 Related and connected party disclosures 37 BE R BEEHIHE @)

(Continued)

(b) Outstanding balances arising from (b) HEBLSZRIEEZ
transaction with related parties KEEZ &R
The following balances are outstanding at the end of the THEBRFEE T 2 X 58 2 &%
reporting period in relation to transactions with related parties: RIFEHRE KRGS :

As at 31 December

M2A31H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FAR®
Assets BE
Trade receivables FEWE 5 I8 83
Other receivables — current (i) B b e Uk 308 — BIHA () 8,800
Other receivables — non-current (i) H b, JE U 318 — 3E B EA (i) 294
Other current assets — prepayments HEMmeEE — BN HIE —
9,177
Notes: B 5
[0) As at 31 December 2020, the balance includes: 0] R2020F 12 A31H - BB IE:

(1) Other receivables of RMB3,008,000 represented loans 1) E b fE Uk 3% 1E3,008,0007T
receivable due from a related party, which were unsecured and AR BREW R B
bear interest at 10%-15% per annum. Up to the date of BEER . RFEHEI10%E
approval of the consolidated financial statements, the principal 15%:T B - HEGA YK R
amounts of loans have been fully repaid by the related party. K EZH ZEER AN

SRHEEHER S EREE -

(2)  Other receivables of RMB1,000,000 represented deposit due (2 H &Y% FIE1,000,0007C A
from a related party. R¥EREKEBRTZE -

©®) Other receivable of RMB5,958,000 represented management ) H b fiE Uy 318 5,958,000 7T A
service fees receivable due from related parties. R A e R 5 B IR IR

(ii) Other receivables represented loans receivable due from an associate, (ii) HihfEW R IBIEEREE AT &
which was unsecured, interest free and repayable in 2028. o REIEE . R B K AEN2028F
B -

BRERERAR —Z-ZTFFRH 193
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRMNE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

37 Related and connected party disclosures
(Continued)

(b) Outstanding balances arising from
transaction with related parties (continued)

37 BB NBEELTHE@®

(b) EEB A CRBEEZ
REEEH@

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TAR®

Liabilities =i
Trade payables e E 5 5KIR

(c) Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

(c) TEEEAEHM

EENHEMTBEREKRERF
NZFHMmT :

As at 31 December

M2A31H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTAR® FAR®
Short term employee benefits REEERT 8,362 8,342
Share-based compensation expenses VAR 17 A 251 #0 3 BY B =2 12,246 8,181
Post employment benefits RIKIEE T 386 538
Other benefits H 4t 18 7| = 310
17,371
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRMNE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

38 Particulars of principal subsidiaries ofthe 38 A AT T EMEB A T 2
Company (]

(@) Particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 and

(a) 720204 K 20195 12 B
SIAARQAFTEWE L

2019 are as follows: AIZEBWMT
Attributable equity
Place and date of interest held by the
Name of company incorporation/establishment Registered capital Group Principal activities
HRAL/ RIE FEEREZEERE
NGES RAH ZREL g TEEH
2020 2019
Heroic Path Limited The BVI Registered capital R 100.00%  Investment Holding
23 May 2014 uSD1
FRERRA KEERAES HHER RERR
2014558230 127
Hero City Global Limited The BVI Registered capital R 100.00%  Investment Holding
21 March 2014 uSD1
BRRRERAF KEERRES HMER REER
2014F3A21H I
Wonderful Dawn Holdings Limited Hong Kong Registered capital R0 100.00%  Investment Holding
18 December 2015 HKD1
FBERERAE ) HMER REER
201512 A18H 1T
Delightful Year Holdings Limited Hong Kong Registered capital QR 100.00% - Investment Holding
18 December 2015 HKD1
EERRERAA B HHER REER
201512 A18H 1T
Hongfu Restaurant Management (Shenzhen) The PRC Registered capital Ll 100.00% - Catering Management Service
Co., Ltd" 10 Apri 2017 RMB50,000,000
EEEFER(MIERAA HE HHER EHERRB
201745108 50,000,000 AR
Tibet Jufu Catering Management Partnership ~ The PRC Registered capital 99.00%  Catering Management Service
(Limited Partnership) 13 November 2017 RMB1,000,000
BRERENERAMLE(BRAR) HE HHER EHERRB
201711 A13R 1,000,000 A R %
Baifuhui Network Technology (Beiing) Co., Ltd™  The PRC Registered capital 66.27% 66.27%  Technical Consultation
04 June 2019 RMB50,000,000 and Services
BREAENBEOLR)BERAT HE HHER BUEEES
201956 /4H 50,000,0007T A R %
BRERERERAT —ZE_ZFFRH 195



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEUBRRME (B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

38 ARBAETEMBEAT 2+

15 (@)

38 Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

(@) Particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 and
2019 are as follows: (Continued)

(a) 720204 K 2019412 H
SIAARQAETEHE L
AZEHBOT @

Attributable equity
Place and date of interest held by the
Name of company incorporation/establishment Registered capital Group Principal activities
ERAL/RIEY FEEREZEERE
ACE:E RBH ERER B TEEH
2019
HHG™ The PRC Registered capital 87.50%  Chinese fast food restaurants
02 December 2003 RMB10,000,000 chain
GIEE HE HER PEEHEREE
20035 12A2H 10,000,0007T A R B
Tianjin Han Fang Wei Ye Food The PRC Registered capital 78.38%  Chinese fast food restaurants
Co.Ltd® 19 June 2014 RMB27,368,400 chain
REMERBERAARARS HE HER PEEHEREE
201456 A19H 27,368,400 T AR
Beiing Hefeng Technology Co. Ltd. 2 The PRC Registered capital 82.50%  Chinese fast food restaurants
2 January 2019 RMB2,000,000 chain
ERARRREERR RS HE HhER
201951828 2,000,000 AR REEERER
HHG (Beiing) Supply Chain Management The PRC Registered capital 82.50%  Chinese fast food restaurants
Co. Ltd. » 2 January 2019 RMB2,000,000 chain
AARIHEREREREALAS HE HMER PEEHRERE
201951828 2,000,000 AR
Hehegu International Company Limited Hong Kong Registered capital 82.50%  Chinese fast food restaurants
21 July 2017 HKD1 chain
Hehegu International Company Limited 55 HfER REEERER
201747A21H 1A
Xinladao™ The PRC Registered capital 87.00% 87.00%  Chinese hot pot chain
30 December 2005 RMB15,000,000 restaurant
mamEr HE HMER PEREHNAEE
2005512 730A 15,000,0007C A K
Shanghai New Spicy Way Catering The PRC Registered capital 87.00% 87.00%  Chinese hot pot chain
Management Ltd. © 05 July 2010 RMB1,000,000 restaurant
TENABERERARAA" HE HHER PEEHEAREE
2010£7A85R 1,000,000 A R B
Tianjin New Spicy Way Catering Management ~ The PRC Registered capital 87.00% 87.00%  Chinese hot pot chain
Ltd. 2 20 October 2010 RMB1,000,000 restaurant
REFREERERBRAR HE HER PEEHNAEE
20105103208 1,000,000 A R B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRMNE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

38 Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the

Company (Continued)

(@) Particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 and
2019 are as follows: (Continued)

15 (@)

38 ARBAETEMBEAT 2+

(a) 720204 K 201912 H
SIAAQAETEHWE L
AZHEHBOT @

Attributable equity
Place and date of interest held by the
Name of company incorporation/establishment Registered capital Group Principal activities
ERAL/RIEH rEEREZEERE
ACIEE RBH ERER Ei TEEH
2020 2019
Xi'an La Zhi Dao Catering Management Ltd. *  The PRC Registered capital IR 87.00% - Chinese hot pot chain
11 October 2011 RMB100,000 restaurant
BZR BERERERD A HE HHER HEEHAAEE
0115108118 100,000 7T A KB
Shijiazhuang New Spicy Way Catering The PRC Registered capital 87.00% 87.00%  Chinese hot pot chain
Management Ltd. 2 26 October 2011 RMB500,000 restaurant
RREFREEHERERAD" HE HMER PEREHNAEE
2011510A26A 500,000 L AR
Langfang New Spicy Way Catering The PRC Registered capital 87.00% 87.00%  Chinese hot pot chain
Management Ltd. © 31 October 2011 RMB100,000 restaurant
B HREERERERART HE HER PEREHNAEE
201F10A31A 100,000 T A RH
Zhengzhou New Spicy Way Catering The PRC Registered capital 87.00% 87.00%  Chinese hot pot chain
Management Ltd. & 09 December 2011 RMB100,000 restaurant
BB REERERERAR HE HER PEEHNAEE
2011512790 100,000 AR
Tangshan New Spicy Way Catering The PRC Registered capital 87.00% 87.00%  Chinese hot pot chain
Management Ltd. © 16 December 2011 RMB100,000 restaurant
EUHRELRERERAT® HE HER PEREHNREE
201112168 100,000 AR
Huhehaote New Spicy Way Catering The PRC Registered capital 87.00% 87.00%  Chinese hot pot chain
Management Ltd. * 12 March 2012 RMB100,000 restaurant
WHERERERERAR" HE HMEA PEREHAREE
2012438128 100,000 A RE
Beijing Hong Ri Hong Yuan Food Co., Ltd ® The PRC Registered capital 81.78% 81.78%  Manufacturing condiments
28 March 2012 RMB1,064,000
EREERRERRARAR" HE HMER EERRE
20124535288 1,064,00070 A K%
BRERBRLAR —Z-TFEFRH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEUBRRME (B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

38 ARBAETEMBEAT 2+

15 (@)

38 Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

(@) Particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 and
2019 are as follows: (Continued)

(a) 720204 K 2019412 H
SIAARQAETEHE L
AZEHBOT @

Attributable equity
Place and date of interest held by the
Name of company incorporation/establishment Registered capital Group Principal activities
HRRL/RIH rEEREZEERE
ACIEE RBH ERER Ei TEEH
2020 2019
Shenyang New Spicy Way Catering The PRC Registered capital 87.00% 87.00%  Chinese hot pot chain
Management Ltd. 2 31 May 2012 RMB100,000 restaurant
EGMREERERERAA" e EMER PEEHAREE
01255A318 100,000 A B
Hefei New Spicy Way Catering Management The PRC Registered capital 87.00% 87.00%  Chinese hot pot chain
Ltd.» 16 October 2012 RMB100,000 restaurant
AEMABERERAR A" E HMER PEEENREE
2012%10 7168 100,000 A R
Beijing Lapindao Catering Management Co., The PRC Registered capital 87.50%  Leasing and business services
Ltd® 30 September 2013 RMB100,000
FREREERERBRAT® e EMER RERAERE
2013597308 100,0007 A R
Beiing New Spicy Way Catering Management ~ The PRC Registered capital 78.38%  Leasing and business services
Co., Ltd 2 18 January 2016 RMB500,000
ERFRBLEERARAA" e EMER BERBERY
2016517187 500,000 AR
Beijing Tongbettiancheng Catering Management  The PRC Registered capital 82.50%  Leasing and business services
Co., Ltd® 31 January 2016 RMB5,000,000
(“Tong Bei Tian Cheng’)
GRBARREHERERARD e HER RERBERE
(A XM 2016517318 5,000,000 A R
Beijing New Spicy Way Trading Co., Ltd The PRC Registered capital 82.50%  Wholesale and retall
17 October 2017 RMB1,000,000
RHARBEERRAR e EMER BERTE
2017£107178 1,000,000 A R %
Xinladao Catering Management Hong Kong Hong Kong Registered capital 82.50%  Chinese hot pot chain
Co., Limited. 04 July 2019 HKD10,000 restaurant
MRBEREE(FR)ARAR i EMER PEEEANER
201957 A4A 10,0007 7T
Shenzhen Qianhai Youfu Network Technology ~ The PRC Registered capital 0K 100.00% - Catering Management Service
Co., Ltd. 2 06 November 2019 RMB5,000,000
A ERBRRERBEERR D e EMER ERERRH
2019411 A6H 5,000,00070 A & B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRMNE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

38 ARNAETEMBERAT 2+

15 (@)

38 Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 and
2019 are as follows: (Continued)

(a) 720204 K 201912 H
SIAAQAETEHWE L
AZHEHBOT @

Attributable equity
Place and date of interest held by the
Name of company incorporation/establishment Registered capital Group Principal activities
ERAL/RIEH rEEREZEERE
ARER RAH EREL B TEEH
2019
Beijing Bailanerling Food Technology The PRC Registered capital —  Restaurant Operation
Co., Ltd. * 21 September 2020 RMB1,000,000
TRER-_ZRQMHEARRAS HE HHER ZBgE
202059A21H 1,000,007 A R B
Beijing Baiquanerling Food Technology The PRC Registered capital 89.91% —  Restaurant Operation
Co., Ltd.® 10 October 2020 RMB1,000,000
FRERE-ZRABEERAAL HE HMER 2ERE
2020510A10A 1,000,0007C A R %
Beijing Baikeerling Food Technology The PRC Registered capital —  Restaurant Operation
Co., Ltd.® 12 October 2020 RMB1,000,000
FREEZZRABEERAAA HE HER ZEfE
20205104128 1,000,0007C A %
Baifu JieZhi Catering (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd ® The PRC Registered capital 72.37% —  Restaurant Operation
24 July 2020 RMB1,000,000
BEREBER(RINERRA® HE HER 2EiRE
200057 H 24 1,000,000 AR
Baifu Gongying (Beiing) Network Technology ~ The PRC Registered capital 100.00% —  (Catering Management Service
Co., Ltd 2 17 June 2020 RMB20,000,000
BRARGER) BENEERAA® HE HER ERERRH
2020564178 20,000,000 ARE
Notes:
* Registered as a wholly-owned foreign investment enterprise under PRC * RBFBEE dMANEGEED
Law £
> Registered as a sino-foreign cooperative joint venture under PRC Law - RIFHREERE TMAETRIINEED
E S
o Registered as a limited liability company under the PRC Law o RERBEE FMABREMEA
Al
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRMNE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

38 Particulars of principal subsidiaries ofthe 38 A AT T EMEB A T 2

Company (Continued)

(b) Non-controlling interests (NCI)

Set out below is summarised financial information for the
HHG Group that has non-controlling interests that are
material to the Group. The amounts disclosed for the HHG
Group are before inter-company eliminations.

Summarised balance sheet

15 (@)

(b) FEZERESR

TXEIMEAREZHMBER
ME ZESERERBHAEEMNS
BEAZFFEREDS MAaRE
BErzeRELAMEHEAKE-

EEEERAE

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TAR®

160,350 124,111
(160,312) (161,707)

38 (37,596)

368,250 437,164
(149,699) (171,418)

218,551 265,746

218,589 228,150

Current assets MENEE

Current liabilities mEBE

Current net assets/(liabilities) REBEE (AR BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Non-current liabilities nRBEaE
Non-current net assets IRBEETHE

Net assets BEEFH

Accumulated NCI Rt IR IR R 2

31,470 33,183
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRMNE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

38 Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the 38

Company (Continued)

(b) Non-controlling interests (NCI) (Continued)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

ARBEFEMBELATZHF
15 (&)
(b) FEI= R E S @
2HRBRZRFE
2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000
FTAR® TARE

Revenue
(Loss)/profit for the year
Total comprehensive (loss)/income

(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI

Dividends paid to NCI

WA
Fr(BR)HF
2HEER) WEAE

A SF 4% i a5 0 B 2
(& 18), 4
XTI RS 2 Y

392,680 521,155
(9,561) 3,834
(9,561) 3,834

(1,713) 531

=} — —
oy

Summarised cash flows

BERERE

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TAR®E

Cash flows generated from operating

KEBFHAEHRSRE

activities 80,251 99,146
Cash flows used in investing activities KREEYMARSRE (5,184) (11,239)
Cash flows used in financing activities BEEBMARERE (64,299) (62,543)
Net increase in cash and cash ReRESEEYWEMTE

equivalents

25,364

Set out below is summarised financial information for the
Xinladao Group that has non-controlling interests that are
material to the Group. The amounts disclosed for the
Xinladao Group are before inter-company eliminations.

TXHEINFTRESEZHBEERT
2 ZEEREHASEMEEBEAXN
ZHERES - ARBEEZSRE
RAEEIERRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

Summarised balance sheet

38 Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

(b) Non-controlling interests (NCI) (Continued)

2020
RMB’000
TAR®

54,906
(194,930)

(140,024)

617,092
(179,816)

437,276

297,252

Current assets mENVEE
Current liabilities mEIaE
Current net liabilities RBAETFHE
Non-current assets IEREEE
Non-current liabilities IERBEE
Non-current net assets IRBEEFE
Net assets BEEFH
Accumulated NCI Rt EERE S

38,788

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

EHBREREE

2020
RMB’000
TAR®

Revenue

(Loss)/profit for the year
Total comprehensive (loss)/income

(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI

Dividends paid to NCI

LN
Fr(BR)HF

2E(BR) haam

A SF 4% i as 0 B 2

(& 18), i 7

S PR 2 RS

255,793
(60,053)
(60,053)

(7,807)

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e TR R M ()

38 ARBFEMB AR Z&F
15 (&)
(b) FEI= AR @)
EEABRAE

2019
RMB’000
TARE

97,639
(201,300)

(108,661)

663,484
(202,500)

460,984

357,323

46,595

2019
RMB’000
TAR®

476,523
4,780
4,780

561



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e TR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

38 Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the

Company (Continued)

(b) Non-controlling interests (NCI) (Continued)

Summarised cash flows

15 (@)

BERn8RE

2020
RMB’000
TAR®

Cash flows generated from operating

REEPMERERE

activities 41,346
Cash flows generated from/(used in) BEEREME/(FrA) R4

investing activities B 1,216
Cash flows used in financing activities MEFHHAARSHE (60,339)
Net decrease in cash and cash RERBSESEYRDFHE

equivalents

(17,777)

BREERERAH

38 ARNFEXTENMBLAAZH

(b) FEI= R E S @

2019
RMB’000
TARE

87,315

(42,923)
(64,734)

(20,342)

—ECEFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MBRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

39 Balance sheet and reserve movement of

the Company

9 ARAEEREREFERE
2E

Balance sheet of the Company APEEERAER
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARE
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Interest in subsidiaries MERRRE
— assets due from subsidiaries —ERNBAREE 1,414,917 1,505,369
Derivative financial instrument PTHEEMIA 72,226 -
1,487,143 1,505,369
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 36,190
Other receivables H fth U R IE 5,000
Other current assets EMmeEE 42 -
25,607 41,190
TOTAL ASSETS EEHAE 1,512,750 1,546,559
CURRENT LIABILITY mEEE
Other payables E th fE < 3k I8 4,895
Amount due to subsidiaries NSNS 1,633
Convertible bonds — interest payable AMEES — EBAFE 34,183
40,611
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RRMNE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & =2020F 12 A31H IE F[Z

39 Balance sheet and reserve movementof 39 AR FEEEEBREEE

the Company (Continued) 2B @
Balance sheet of the Company (Continued) APBEEREER®@®
As at 31 December
A12A31H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR% FARYE
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY ERBEE
Convertible bonds AR (& & 439,588 448,380
439,588 448,380
TOTAL LIABILITY EEHEE 490,458 488,991
CAPITAL AND RESERVE BEXRFEE
Share capital B& 2 133,023 133,023
Reserves i 889,269 924,545
TOTAL EQUITY EEBE 1,022,292 1,057,568
TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY EEREREE 1,512,750 1,546,559
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of RNAGIBEBERD R2021FE3 825
Directors on 25 March 2021 and was signed on its behalf: H&ESEod & WAH WA TRE
#=E:
Zhao John Huan Wang Xiaolong
HLE ES\Y- 3
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR
*TE EF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B HRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 12 A31 H I F &

the Company (continued)

39 Balance sheet and reserve movement of

Reserve movement of the Company

39 7 2
2 5 @)

AAREEED

Accumulated

AEERBERKMHB

deficit Other reserves Total
At EE H it 5 &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TFAR® FARM FARH
At 1 January 2019 201941 A1H (8,283) 674,694 666,411
Loss for the year FANEE (86,997) — (86,997)
Disposal of the subsidiary L E KB QA — 251,479 251,479
Shares converted from convertible — ##¥# B A] # A% (& A&
bonds pd 3% — 87,538 87,538
Value of services provided under BB AT B M 1D 2 )
share option schemes and share FHEIIE T AR R
award scheme ZEBE — 8,181 8,181
Currency translation differences EmE = - (2,067) (2,067)
At 31 December 2019 M2019F12H31H (95,280) 1,019,825 924,545
Loss for the year FREIE (21,261) - (21,261)
Value of services provided under fE IR RERT 8l M 1 42 )
share option schemes and share =218 T ATIR AR 7
award scheme ZEBE — 12,247 12,247
Currency translation differences EmE = - (26,262) (26,262)
At 31 December 2020 2020512831 H (116,541) 1,005,810 889,269
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B HRRME (R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F 12 A31H IFF &

40 Events after the balance sheet date 40 FEHRERSEE

On 2 March 2021, a fund with investment contributed by Shenzhen
Country Garden Venture Capital Co., Ltd.* (F3I|T 2R AR E
AR A7) (“CGVCAP”) entered into a capital increase agreement (the
“Capital Increase Agreement”) with Guangzhou Yujian Xiaomian
Catering Management Company Limited* (B &, /Nl & £k & 18
ARA7) (“Yujian Xiaomian, an associate of the Group”) and Yuijian
Xiaomian’s existing shareholders (including Wonderful Dawn
Holdings Limited* (FATIERKARAF) (“Wonderful Dawn”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), in relation to, among
other things, capital injection by CGVCAP and additional capital
contribution by Wonderful Dawn and certain other existing
shareholders in Yujian Xiaomian (the’Additional Capital
Contribution”).

As at the date of this report, the transactions contemplated under
the Capital Increase Agreement have not been completed. Yujian
Xiaomian is a company established under the laws of the People’s
Republic of China, which is accounted for using the equity method
and is held as to 19.5% by the Group as at the date of this annual
report. Upon completion of the transactions under the Capital
Increase Agreement, Yujian Xiaomian will continue to be accounted
for and will be held as to approximately 19.0% by the Group.

R2021F3 A28  FIITHEERAIH
REBERAB(2EEAR] 28K
EN—RECHBNBR/NEERE
BAERAR(BRENDE]  NEBEB
BAR)RBRNDMBARE(BEAR
NEINEEMB AR FTWERARD
AI([HF BT ) 7T 338 & 17 = ([ 34 & W
#FD O RNAEBEEFRRE BEERE
BEEEIE URTHRBR/NER
TFEMBAEREEDBINEE (I
EE]) e

RASRE B EERZETRET
RGHEMRTR B RN AEREFE
AREMBUEEK LB AT - ZA A
FAESEAR RAFHRABHAARN
EEFEE1905%ER - REEHEE
TRSERE BR)EBEEGF
ARESEIAE THBAEEFEY
19.0% M) # 75 ©

BREERERAT —ZE-FEER
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0
FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B 75 8 =

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALLEE
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FARME FARM FARE FARY
(Note(b)) (Note(b)) (Note(b)) (Note(a)) (Note(a))
(F7E))  (MtsE(p))  (BFFE())  (BFsE(a)) | ChaE)))

(Restated) (Restated)
(Eat) (Eih)
RESULTS ES
Revenue - 477,587 751,801 470,181 998,250 650,691
Profit/(loss) before taxation & ¢ Al i 7,/ (&5 18) 16,608 34,704 (7,474) (79,257) | Glel) i)
Income tax (expense)/credit FriE % (X H), 1% (6,739) (14,018) (2,348) (7,013) 9,693
Profit/(loss) for the year FREA(EE) 9,869 20,686 (9,822) (86,270) | [l
(a) The financial figures were extracted from the consolidated financial statement. (@) BRAVBETHEGREMB®RE -
()  The financial figures were extracted from the 2019 annual report. No separate  (0) BB E T Rtk 8 2019 FF 5K - M2016 F
disclosures of continuing operations and discontinued operations were made on the BTFZUBRTIERBTBELCEEBRER
financial figures from 2016 to 2017. IS BB D FRBRE -

At 31 December
M12A31H
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FARME FARM FARM FARY

(Restated)
(Eih)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EER AR
Total assets EEBEE 722250 1,325,752 2,438,434 2,280,365 | v/l
Total liabilities BEERE (419,126) (399,890) (1,455,138) (1,295,399) | Ll Lifixiy)
Net assets BETFEE 303,124 925,862 083,296 984,966 | 1 0l
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE ("ESG”) REPORT

RE - HERE

About the Report

Reporting Objectives

This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report (“the Report”)
is prepared by Best Food Holding Company Limited (“Best Food”, “the
Company” or “We”) to objectively reflect the Company’s ESG work and
performance in 2020.

Reporting Scope

The reporting scope includes Beijing HHG Restaurant Management Co.,
Ltd. and Tianjin HHG Restaurant Management Co., Ltd. (*HHG”), and
Beijing New Spicy Way Catering Management Ltd. (“New Spicy Way”) in
the mainland of People’s Republic of China. Unless otherwise specified,
the Report covers the period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2020.

Basis of Report

The information disclosed by the Report is the “general disclosures” and
the environmental KPIs set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”), Appendix 27
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities released by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Company has complied with the
“comply or explain” provisions set out in the ESG Reporting Guide in the
Report for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Reporting Principles

Materiality: The content and order of the Report are based on the
communication with investors and other stakeholders and the
identification of the importance of ESG issues. Please refer to “Stakeholder
Engagement” and “Material Issues” for the detail.

Quantitative: The scope and calculation method of our KPI metric are
disclosed in the Report.

Consistency: Unless otherwise specified, the methodologies used in the
Report are consistent with those of the 2019 ESG Report.

Instructions

It is to be read in conjunction with the Corporate Governance Report
contained in the 2020 Annual Report of Best Food Holding Company
Limited, for a more comprehensive understanding of ESG performance
of the Company.

BHE

B AR &

HEBRE

REE - HEREARE (ESGREDEE
BERERADNCEE) [AAFAIRKIR
M -T-TEEE HEREATAE
ol FE R 4

& EE

A EHE LB RIZERBRAFIZERANIL
RMERBEREEBRAFTERENMER
BERBRAR(FAERD  UARIERFHE
EREBRERAR([FHE] - MEFKFE
BH - 3R 45 HA R 5202041 A1 H £20204F12
A318 -

R KE

ABERULE(REABERHABRAT
BHEETRADME27TZCGRE -HEa Rk E
AMERIDMI—REEIZERIRIRE

HEMIERIEAE -

BE 3% /= B

ERZR - RMECRARNSEEN2ERE

ZERBMM Y2EAURNNERRAERS
NEREBE - EBARZ R ARET=E
Lo BBIRIBEEMEREE] -

Bt RESPRBENBEHEETES
ﬁ%ﬁﬁ“ﬁlﬁi‘:}:‘ TTTTILI:E °

— B BREBEEAN
BJER E—FE— 8-

BI 5% 7 A
945 8 B1CE 78 2 ARG IR 2 72020 6 [ 4R
E)CEEARMETH—GHE UHDE

EEMEEMNTHERMERR HERE
BB RE -

R LR & B R A

BRERERLR —ZT-ZFFR
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (“ESG”) REPORT (CONTINUED)

RE -HE2RE

ESG Governance Structure

ESG Philosophy

Best Food believes that a sound ESG management system is a requisite
for the Company’s sustainable development. We focus on ESG
performance of catering companies in which we own shares and are
committed to building a catering industry investment and management
platform empowered by the idea of sustainability.

& Harmony

& (%)

n

CHERERBR

ESGE =

BREEE BYRENRE HELERE
?E’\j—ﬁ—iﬂgg’*@m% Mt HME
TEFETEREZ2E 2 ERBERFH
RIE e RERERE BORNITEATR
BEEONERTERENEETS -

Our ESG vision is to realize harmonious coexistence with the environment and the society. We firmly and actively fulfil
corporate social responsibility and strive to build a harmonious relationship between the Company and the
environment, employees and the society through our constant efforts.
ERERBEIHGNMBEREEARAEREE HEREARHFXENERBAR -BMBEMmMERME
ThEEMEEE FERBEANTEHS N ECXHERR BINURMGMEENREHRECBHER -

E B &1 Team Cooperation

i)

Team cooperation is a key attribute for the Company, faced with complicated challenges common to the catering
industry to achieve good ESG performance. It is critical to collaborate as a team within the Company to realize ESG
objectives and its vision of harmony.

EXEERAARIERBITRERE HELEARMRENAESH -ARAAXBHEEETRERE £
B HEREARATEITHEBEERNIE - RERBARRACHERESIE THEREENE LR BE
FES -

|

FlEZEE Scientific management

Scientific management is an effective way for the Company to realize good ESG performance. The Company insists on
promoting scientific management methodologies and creating a more efficient ESG management model.
MEBEBREARNARERRE HELELARFRENANGE -ARAIBHHEENBESEBNER A #f
BEEMSMNRE HERERERRA -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (“ESG”) REPORT (CONTINUED)

RE #8RkER

ESG Governance Structure

With a vision of “becoming a domestically leading and globally influential
restaurant and food investment and management platform”, we stick to
compliant operation and incorporate the concept of sustainability in our
business. We also formulate ESG strategies, engage with stakeholders
and monitor ESG performance to continuously improve our ESG
management. We establish an ESG management framework and
structure with oversight and authorisation of the board of directors and
management of the Company.

The board of directors (the “Board”) is the highest decision-making body
for ESG management of the Company, being responsible for reviewing
ESG issues and taking the overall responsibility for the Company’s ESG
strategy and reporting. The ESG working group (the “Working Group”)
consists of the Company’s internal control department and the
employees in charge of ESG management at each majority-owned
company (generally the head of the finance department). Responsibilities
of the Working Group include:

(1)  developing ESG principles and strategies;

(2)  setting ESG objectives and reviewing progress made against such
objectives;

(8) assessing the materiality of ESG issues and determining the key
ESG issues;

(4) evaluating ESG risks and developing control measures for
significant ESG risks based on materiality assessment;

(5) reviewing and approving annual ESG working plans of various
departments;

(6)  preparing for disclosures, including ESG reports;

(7)  reporting to the Board on the aforementioned issues.

& (%)

ESGEARZEE
RATRATER B FHEL HREY
EHNERRARRERERTAINE
5 BENAREEEERL BATBESR
B2 B84 FESGHES - (T 712510 1
778 ® - BRESGH M E % B2 FHESG
BHAKT - EAATERER CEEER
EWERE B AQTRY TRESGE
LR o

EES TN AIESGEEMKSARKE &
EESGEIE I ¥ 1 GIESGRK B M [E ¥ # 4
BREMT - AQ A A EBES EEE (A E
#)  BERABESGEEA (—RBH B ED
I8 & A) B KESGI{E4 - 1E RESGE 12
IR iE T - ESG T FAEYESGHM E BB A
B

(—) REL N TIESGE IR #t - 5w

(Z) MEAFESGEEFE W REZEBFE
BB

(=) WRESGE Z M T - HETESGE &
EEER:

(M) FARESGRB T Y HEAEEMHT
R HHEANESGERH T E
YRR B

(R) BHWIEFFPIESGHF E TIEETE

(N) R BIFESGHREERNA H &
&R

(B) MAEEHEREETGHETER-

BRERERLR —ZT-ZFFR
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (“ESG”) REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE -8k ERAKRE (E)

The human resources, marketing, quality control, procurement, internal  SIZR A BIANE R -MHEL B 22
control and other related functional departments and business &l -~ B¢ B8 - A 5 25 40 8 B gt Mo % 75 0 P9
departments (the “Working departments”) of each majority-owned B & :

company is responsible for:

(1) developing an annual ESG working plan of the department and (—) BE KN ZLFIESGEE 2 WiIZMR &

carrying out ESG work based on the approved annual plan; B EFETSHTEE T 1F
(2)  taking measures to achieve the approved ESG objectives; () REBZEIERN A RIESGE 1Z 0 5 E
E FE B0 S B HE i
(8)  collecting regularly disclosure materials for ESG reporting; (=) WEW FTHIRMHESGHRENIEREE R

(4)  organising ESG trainings to enhance staff's ESG awareness and (/1) # 4%ESGIE 3| - IR F A 7 B TESGE

capability; B Rl
(6)  conducting ESG study, communication and programmes; (fi) FRESGHIF « XM ERELE:
(6) reporting to the Working Group on the aforementioned issues. () A LB MESG T E/EEITIESR -

The Board of Directors

Exg

ESG Working Group
ESG I {4

Internal Control and Internal Designated officers in charge of ESG management in HHG,
Audit Department of the New Spicy Way and other majority-owned companies
Company MEAESGEEA
P B0 422 i B 2 51 50 HEIBESGEE A

HiEZERAREEA

ESG Working Departments
ESG T {E &5 P9
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
RE -#HERE

Stakeholder Engagement

The Company values stakeholders as well as their key expectations. We
establish a variety of communication channels to enhance stakeholder
engagement, acknowledge their expectations and value their prompt
recommendations on Best Food’s development to safeguard their
interests.

(“ESG”) REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Major Stakeholders Key Expectations Ways of Communication
FTEFREES FEHFK BERR
Government and regulators e Compliance operation Major conferences, policy consultations,
R I BE A BREZ institutional inspections, official exchanges,
e Stringent internal control and risk information disclosure
management EREH BERFEH BEER ANXEXR-

AR B R B 42 ) I LB B 3R

e Energy conservation

B0 B L
Shareholders and investors e Investment returns
RERRIREE % & B,
° Transparent governance
E. /l:l % EH
Employees e Remuneration and benefits
BT ¥ B 48 A
e Career development
BEER
e |abor rights
BT iEn
Suppliers e Fair competition
e NS e
e ntegrity
HAZ
e Common development
HA R
Clients and customers e Quality service
BREEEE AR %% E
e Product responsibility
EmEE
e Privacy responsibility
S AL IR &
Community e Community development
ft @ g
e Public welfare activities
Nm2H

'TEI B & R

Annual reports and announcements, meetings

E'Efré&&/_\i Eu?*z

Employee satisfaction survey, labor union,
employee activities, hotline and email

EImBERAE T8 BI1LE® BRSHE
K HB

Visits conferences, telephone calls and emails
//\LECIE /ET;%% Euﬁ&ﬁg 1¢

Face-to-face communication, telephone calls and
emails

M R - A R B

Visits, donation and other charitable activities,
corporate presentations and internship
opportunities

B BHELRREH2E PETHER
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Material Matrix

The Company determines the materiality matrix by communication with

key stakeholders, taking

action plans.

HERTRERENEES

Importance for sustainable development for Best Food

3% 3% %8 #5 £ Environmental indicators

1 B35 2 Bk ik Emissions reduction

2 #i 47 & JR Use of resources

3 1R & 4 A2 F1 8 A & JR The environment and natural
resources protection

4 JfE 4 57 1% /. Climate change

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2020

into consideration management’s i@ - Iﬁv’%émﬁkuﬁ A HNEEE
recommendations and internal and external experts’ analysis. The matrix
includes subject matters in the “ESG Reporting Guide” and helps us to
determine focus on the critical ESG subject matters to draw up follow-up

AprRBBAZREBEETENZEBHE
RO
ErTEZMrEE ZEEZEEEERS
<<f§iﬁ‘?\i@&ﬁ/ﬁ?ﬁiﬁgwﬁf]ﬂ’]ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
BNEDRMERFTERE L2 kER
WENELEAD BT —FT8E -

HANZHEBEINEES
Importance for stakeholders

® it & $§ 35 & Social indicators

©O© 0O N O O B~ W N =

P pEE
BN = O

% 1% [ #2 Epidemic prevention and control

R i % % B2 Food safety and health

£ e 58 IR 35 I 4k & A g B 22 Supply chain management
¥t & Iz 38 Dining environment

fiR % & & Service quality

[ B Bt Community involvement

& & & 8 Advertising compliance

%034 2 #E (R 7 Intellectual property protection

H4& % & Data security

2 T # 25 1R 5 Employees’ rights protection

8 T %% KB E 7 B Employees’ safety and occupational health
8 T 3% 7| £ 2 & Staff training and development

&5 T 4 25 {7+ Labor rights protection

B2 12 2% Integrity and ethics
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Standing Together Against COVID-19

2020 was an extraordinary year. Faced with the outbreak and spread of
the COVID-19 pandemic, Best Food, together with its stakeholders,
persists in taking prevention and control measures to fight against the
pandemic. We are committed to exploring new catering models which
allows delivering healthy food to consumers as well as creating a safe
working environment for employees in the post-pandemic period.

Infection Prevention and Control

Since the outbreak of COVID-19, we responded proactively to the
national government’s call and took internal prevention and control
measures. We urged the majority-owned brands to manage pandemic
risks faced by employees and our customers. We immediately purchased
infection control supplies for restaurants, delivered pandemic prevention
trainings for employees and disclosed our preventive measures and
restaurants operational arrangements through the WeChat Official
Account and Weibo.

HHG immediately set up a special team for pandemic prevention and
control and tried its utmost to ensure safety of consumers and

employees. The various preventive measures include:

° Store sufficient disposable masks and gloves for distribution to
employees;

° Require all employees to wear medical surgical masks during work;
° Clean and disinfect desk surface on a regular basis, and turn on UV
light to disinfect public areas during off working hours;

° Provide wash-free hand sanitizers for customers in restaurants and
office visitors;

° Disinfect restaurants and public areas twice a day with record;

° Monitor temperature of attendants of office and customers in
restaurants;

° Monitor and report immediately for any employees having
symptoms of fever or respiratory issues.
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New Spicy Way has formulated a policy requiring regular temperature
tests for employees and comprehensive disinfection in restaurants. For
employees traveling from or passing risky areas or suspected risky areas,
they are required to isolate themselves at home for more than 7 days and
where necessary take nucleic acid test (“NAT”). New Spicy Way’s
pandemic prevention and control measures include:

° Supply chain: Intensify efforts in inspection on the supply chain of
frozen products, including checking NAT report of each batch of
products and also NAT results of the delivery persons and
conducting NAT test in the cold chain warehouse every 3 days.

° Restaurants: Take timely prevention and control measures, develop
trainings for frontline workers and ensure execute preventive
measures such as temperature testing and disinfection on the basis
of actual operation needs and local government requirements.

° Office: Promote working from home while minimise face-to-face
meetings. Strictly follow policy of personnel reporting and
quarantine and screening employees travelled from high risk areas
or suspected risk areas.

° Factory: Keep storage of alcohol, masks, gloves and other anti-
epidemic supplies, encourage employees to bring their own
tableware when dining in the canteen and strictly keep dining
distance as requested by the local government.

When epidemic prevention and control become a normal state, we
strictly follow relevant requirements of the government and business
districts where we operate, ensuring that there are routine disinfection in
place in the restaurants, office area, production areas and storage and
transportation of HHG and New Spicy Way. We monitor employees’
temperature and health condition before and during work and bear the
expenses incurred for nucleic acid tests of employees.
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Ensuring Stable Operation

In the critical period of pandemic, in order to prevent the spread of the
epidemic, our majority-owned brands closed part of the restaurants. We
supported holding companies to formulate and adopt alternative
measures, including suspending new restaurants opening, new employee
recruitment and communicating and cooperating with other e-commerce
companies to develop a “sharing of staff” model to provide stability of
income stream for our employees.

In response to the pandemic, HHG has launched special family packages
to meet consumers’ needs of home dining, and upgraded the WeChat
Mini Program webpage which allows its members to place orders
remotely and pick up delivery with no direct contact, thus providing a
safe ordering experience. New Spicy Way has developed and launched a
new cuisine, “portable fish hotpot”, for customers to enjoy food at home
without any interaction with delivery man.

As China has effectively controlled the COVID-19 pandemic, the
Company actively organizes catering brands in which it owns shares for
work resumption. HHG stocks up anti-epidemic supplies and gets well-
prepared to ensure the safety of employees and consumers. New Spicy
Way has formulated New Spicy Way Guidelines on Work Resumption
and Prevention & Control during pandemic, which specifies rules for daily
management of restaurant personnel, hygiene and health, ventilation and
disinfection, kitchen management, take-out management and dining
environment, to ensure that each restaurant resumes to work under safe
operation conditions.
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HHG has been awarded the title of Epidemic Fight Model of Beijing Catering
Industry jointly by Beijing Cuisine Association and Beijing Business Today
MeEREFILR RS RBI R RS BN

e & RBOR B 785

Assuming Corporate Social Responsibility

Severely struck by the pandemic, many small and micro catering
companies are hard to survive. Best Food quickly integrated its catering
brands and officially initiated the “shop-searching campaign” on 3 March
2020, aiming to find shops currently in difficulties and to be rented or
transferred, or small and micro companies to be transformed. We have
been receiving approaches from interested shops and various inquiries
and have gained support from government administrations and industry
organizations.

While combating epidemics, HHG has also provided hundreds of anti-
epidemic set meals and vegetables to Beijing Second Hospital, Beijing
Emergency Center, and communities in West Chang’an District to help
ensure support logistical supply to medical staff. During the second wave
of regional epidemic in Beijing, HHG launched the “Love to Zero”
program jointly with the takeaway platform and delivered hundreds of
meals to the medical staff of Beijing Shougang Hospital.
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Staying Committed to Healthy Food

Food safety
BmE2

600D HEALTH AND RESPONSIBLE
WELL-BEING 12 CONSUMPTION
BT RmESR AND PRODUCTION
Bk BEEHR
BEE

e

i AE PR

& (%)

RAb - BERE

Abide by food safety laws and regulations, and strictly
implement the food safety management system standards;
BTRMTDEAERESE BERITRRLEERREA

w
S S A S
2 pi:

Strictly select high quality ingredients, tracking the food
safety through supply chain;

BEEERY REMRVRANERONERRZ RGN
Provide more nutritious and healthier food.

REEZSE EREMNRM -

Taking food safety as the priority, the Company highly values it and
believes that the product responsibility is our foothold. We strictly abide
by relevant laws and regulations including the Food Safety Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests, the Cybersecurity
Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Product Quality. From the source of ingredients, we
strictly control food safety in every link of purchase, logistics, factory and
kitchen, striving to provide healthy, environmentally friendly, safe and
fresh food for customers.

Safe Meals

Food Safety Management

HHG has established a “farm-to-table” quality and food safety standard
system, along with formulation and implementation of the Comprehensive
Emergency Plan for Food Safety Incidents, the Measures for Safety
Management of Supplier Quality, the Specification for Food Safety
Management, the Measures for Management of Food Additives and the
Measures for Management of Food Recall. It sets up product quality
trainings to enhance the responsible personnel’s understanding on and
their practice regarding food safety system. In accordance with
requirements of 1ISO9001 Quality Management System, HHG further
strengthened internal and external review on food safety in response to
the requirements of epidemic prevention and control.

° Restaurant inspection. HHG conducts regular inspection on the
control points of quality management, labels for quality traceability,
operation procedures for food safety, disinfection records, etc., and
for issues identified, the supervisor will provide guidance and
instructions on-site.

ArAmEERRmEE H$RMLEF
RAREENE 2% UIEERAEESR
RABMNILEZA - RRABEEET(PE
ARKNMBERRELR2E) (RHEARKM
BHEERDREL) (FEARKNE
BEL2E) (PEARANBEREE
EVEERER  WRMIRER I RRIEE
RE DR -IH BEE-RANRRE
2 NFRBEERHAEE RR T2
fEH) Rdn

Mo R

EmMZETER
MEAFRBEHIERZRINEZEREER
B fIETRT(RALTEENREES
ER) (HEFEEL2EEMWE) (BMH
Z2EERE) (RRAMMEE B E) -
(RERBEEBWAIRERLEERHIEH
HIE - BBEASRRT2EEAEI  FH
EHEIFEMERALEEEAYEFED
BER - NEITEEN - AFEMEAKRE
ISOVO1EEERBARE K £EEBHIE
ERkCE—SNBRMEERNIINBEZ A
REIE

e MEBE-ZEENAEHLEEEHEH
REGH ZEEPEH Ra:E
BRUERD HELHT RERSMH
TR EEMAE . BEMIE
AUHE ©

BRERERLR —ZT-ZFFR

219



220

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (“ES

RE #HE8KRE

° Sampling inspection on logistics. Full-time quality inspectors
are assigned to check inbound and outbound delivery and their
reports during transportation and storage, including acceptance
certificate of delivery food and animal health test certificate of meat
products.

° Sampling inspection on production plants. Quality
management personnel from the headquarters regularly visit
production plants of HHG to assist in monitoring the production
quality.

° Supplier monitoring and management. HHG established a
closed-loop system for restaurants, supply chain and the
purchasing department of the headquarters to enable the direct
communication with suppliers.

° Enhanced disinfection and safety control. HHG strictly follows
the official requirement and checks NAT reports from the suppliers.
Batches of imported food are required to provide customs
declaration form, inspection and quarantine certificate, NAT reports
and sterilization certificate of goods and the qualified imported
products are recorded on the Quality and Safety Traceability
Platform for Cold Chain Food to trace the source. Employees from
the logistics department take NAT on a weekly basis. For both
plants and logistics, HHG collects NAT reports of the products, the
environment and the packaging materials every week during the
epidemic.

° Management and control of take-out safety. HHG applies
secure plastic seals for take-away packaging to avoid cross
contamination.

In December 2020, HHG attended the “new catering, new requirements
and new initiatives” seminar, which was held by China Society of Market
Supervision for discussion on quality and safety improvement in catering
industry, and shared its practice and experience in the field of food
safety.
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New Spicy Way upholds the core concept of “food quality is the
manifestation of personal quality” and establishes a food safety system
based on its business characteristics. It established a Product Committee
under the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) with frontline
operation personnel involved, covering departments related to products
and supply chain, such as technology department, purchasing
department, quality control department, marketing department, operation
department and training department. With the development of the
industry and market, New Spicy Way continues to make innovations on
management measures, introduce new technologies and enhance the
food safety management system. In 2020, New Spicy Way has won the
“China Food Health Seven Star Award” for five consecutive years.

° Strengthen food safety inspections at restaurants. New Spicy
Way increased the coverage of independent monitoring system at
restaurants during 2020, providing access for food safety personnel
from the headquarters to monitor the actual operation in food
preparation area and dining area at any time. New Spicy Way also
launched a comprehensive evaluation mechanism of “field visit plus
self-inspection at restaurants”. The evaluation results would serve
as the basis for performance assessment of operation cadres at all
levels.

° Deliver trainings on food safety for restaurants. Hold monthly
food safety communication meetings with restaurant management
teams at regions, introducing food safety risks identified and the
customer feedbacks obtained through public opinion monitoring
system. New Spicy Way sets up courses on kitchen management,
refined management, etc., to upgrade the quality of restaurant
management.

° Enhance quality control on core products and strengthen
risk assessment with risk warnings. Prior to the procurement of
aquatic products, New Spicy Way understood and identified
potential risks in the aquatic product industry based on public
information provided by National Center for Risk Management and
Assessment.
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° Conduct stricter qualification reviews on suppliers. Newly
introduced food ingredients or newly developed products shall be
assessed by members of Food Committee before acceptance
reviews of purchasing department. The documents to check before
purchasing include suppliers’ business licenses, food production
licenses, inspection and quarantine certificate for import and export
and third-party inspection reports.

The majority-owned brands of the Company are certified by ISO22000
Food Safety Management System and have set HACCP system as their
standard on-site review system to identify, assess and control key risks
related to food safety. In 2020, the Company had no significant violation
against the laws and regulations related to product health and safety. No
product recalls happened due to health and safety reasons in HHG and
New Spicy Way.

High-Quality Food Ingredients
The standardization of quality control on food ingredients is critical for our
company when making investments in catering brands.

The purchase and acceptance of raw materials of HHG are in strict
compliance with the Company’s Standards for Raw Materials. All meat
ingredients are carefully selected and delivered directly to HHG’s own
plants. Transportation route and storage temperature of the cold chain
are monitored in a real-time manner to ensure stable quality and good
tastes of food ingredients. HHG performs sampling test on each batch of
inbound goods, including product appearance and size, taste and
physical and chemical indicators testing, to assess the quality of incoming
goods from the perspective its customers. Indicators related to taste of
meat products such as water loss rate, shape, yield need to be tested.
Furthermore, HHG has established a close communication mechanism
with its suppliers. The quality department of the headquarters collects
products reports from restaurants each month and timely sends
feedback to the supplier on those unsatisfactory goods deliveries in terms
of quality.
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New Spicy Way ensures the health and taste of food ingredients through
big data analysis and traceability management. In consideration of
different regions’ dietary structure and the background values of chemical
elements in the water environment, New Spicy Way seeks fish breeding
areas with higher production and better habitat, to better meet
consumers’ diet needs. Quality inspection and acceptance processes
include qualification review, on-site tasting, salinity testing, ingredients
retention, etc. For the classic product monkfish, New Spicy Way traces
back to its breeding and fishing process to evaluate the breeding season,
living habits, suitable growing water areas or ocean currents features, in
order to control product quality and provide consumers with better tasty
products.

Carefree Dining

The Company pays constant attention to customer’'s need and is
committed to provide enjoyable experience for its customers. The
renovation of restaurants of our majority-owned brands adopts
international standard construction material and coating products to
create a good dining environment for diners.

As the COVID-19 pandemic has greatly changed customers’
consumption demands and habits, the catering brands of the Company
promptly launched and expanded online services as a response. HHG
established a brand new mini membership system with digital marketing
tools such as online red-packets and coupons, offering options for
ordering, take-away and self-pick up. In the second half of 2020, New
Spicy Way promoted the use of QR codes for placing orders and paying
bills, providing customers with more efficient and safer contactless dining
services. As at the end of 2020, nearly 70% of New Spicy Way company-
operated restaurants provided QR ordering services and nearly 100%
company-operated restaurants allowed customers to pay bills by
scanning QR codes. Meanwhile, New Spicy Way launched the single fish
& rice pot package for delivery, which is favoured by take-out consumers.
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HHG always adheres to the customer-oriented principle and optimizes
restaurants’ management to satisfy customers’ demands. It assesses the
appropriateness of the menu as well as pricing considering customer
comments on third-party platforms and formulates solutions to address
key issues raised by customers. By collecting popular local dishes and
conducting surveys on customers’ preferences and the price data, HHG
develops recipes that satisfies the customers. Regarding customer
service at restaurants, HHG evaluates its restaurants based on good
review rate on third party platforms, which stimulates restaurants to
improve service quality. At the same time, it advocates store-wide
activities by awarding “gold service” title to restaurants and individuals
and regularly conducts spot checks on and assessment of the restaurant
services for implementation of the requirements of HHG Service
Handbook. In the year of 2020, HHG redesigned employee uniforms so
that it can be more stylish, with “HHG” printed on the front showing the
brand proposition, and “GAME IS NOW ON” on the back highlighting the
spirit of sports and conveying a message of vitality.
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Built on the idea of “101% customer satisfaction with quality customer
experience” at its core, New Spicy Way encourages employees to
actively interact with customers, discover their actual needs and address
their needs in an efficient and professional manner, thus delivering a
better dining experience for customers. In 2020, New Spicy Way invited
a third party to carry out the “Mystery Customer Visit” survey on the
dining environment and dining experience from the customer’s
perspective. The evaluation included considering how they feel about the
process of welcome, dinning and checkout, the experience on services,
meals and environment and the management including standardization of
personnel and “service highlights”. According to evaluation results of
“Mystery Customer Visit”, New Spicy Way regularly reviews its internal
ranking to rethink its operation, adjusts training courses of restaurants
services based on common problems, and guides restaurants to perform
self-analysis and find solutions through communication at regional
meeting.

At the same time, New Spicy Way puts more efforts in R&D on recipes
and launches a new fish hotpot. After a comprehensive evaluation of
quality, product taste, product appearance and sources of raw materials,
New Spicy Way improved the “4 types of fish, 7 pots” mode to the “5
types of fish, 10 pots” mode and relevant recommended combination,
which provides more dining options for customers. For the new menu
and new way of placing orders, New Spicy Way has specifically
introduced Front Hall Service Process of QR Code-Based Ordering as a
guidance for restaurants to quickly update service process and ensure
customer experience.
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In 2020, HHG and New Spicy Way were both awarded 2019 China Top
100 Catering Companies. In addition, HHG was awarded 2019 China
Top 50 Fast Food Enterprises by the China Cuisine Association and
Beijing Integrity Undertaking Enterprise. New Spicy Way won China Top
20 Hotpot Brands and 2020 China Top 50 Hotpot Enterprises (Group) by
the China Hospitality Association, showing the market’'s recognition for
the company’s products and service concepts.
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Protection of Rights and Interests

Customer Complaints

The Company is in strict compliance with the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests
and other relevant provisions. Each majority-owned brand has
established a customer complaint and communication system in line with
its business characteristics. The feedback channels like complaint desk
in restaurant, customer service hotline, email, special page on various
social media and membership platform enable customers to share
comments or express their appeals.

HHG requires employees to give prompt feedback upon receiving
customer complaints and inquiries. For product complaints whose liability
lies with HHG, restaurants would grant free orders or revoke orders and
report to quality department. For other complaints such as service
complaints, the manager of the restaurant would approach customers to
provide appropriate solutions. If complaints escalate, the regional
supervisor would act to determine responsible department and clarify
who is responsible considering the specific situation, in pursuit of
addressing the issue fairly. Meanwhile, the marketing department of HHG
regularly collects and analyses complaints lodged against restaurants.

New Spicy Way lists its official phone number starting with 400, official
WeChat and Weibo accounts on the official website and restaurant menu
to widely collect customer opinions. For customer complaints and
inquiries received at stores or on WeChat, Weibo and Meituan, duty
managers would immediately contact customers and provide solutions. If
the respective restaurant fails to settle the case, the regional manager
and marketing manager at each level would follow up to ensure that a
satisfactory result can be given to the customer. New Spicy Way regularly
summarizes the common problems raised by customers and
incorporates the problems into the general training plans for restaurants,
continuously improving dining experience for each customer. In 2020, the
number of confirmed complaints related to New Spicy Way’s products
and services received by official accounts of WeChat and Weibo was 68.
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Data Security

As online ordering and online payment become increasingly popular
within  consumers, majority-owned catering brands of the Company
accelerate their digitalization process. Meanwhile, we value consumer
data security and privacy protection.

The IT department of HHG applies a way of “multi-layer encryption +
hierarchical access control” to protect consumers’ information. Any
consumer information obtained from the third-party take-out platform is
encrypted and virtual phone number of customers expires within a certain
time after the order is completed.

New Spicy Way values the operation of IT system and safeguards its
member’s rights, interests and privacy from multiple angles, including
managing channels, rules and data. New Spicy Way selects prominent
third-party companies for data management of membership system and
POS system, and by signing confidentiality clauses, ensures storage and
access security of member’'s data. Customers’ confidential data is
encrypted and stored on a third-party secure cloud platform. For data
storage, we have established access rights management and remote
disaster recovery mechanism to control the risk of data loss.

In 2020, the majority-owned brands of the Company had no significant
incident related to exposure of customer privacy.
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Achieving Environmental-Friendly Operation

Green operation 12 resrASiLE
AND PRODUCTION

BEENR

REE

O

BrRedE

CLIMATE ACTION
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Best Food proactively takes measures in environmental protection and
promotes the concept of energy conservation throughout operations.
The Company strictly abides by the Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Prevention and Control of Air Pollution, the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Waste, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Energy Conservation, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Environmental Impact Assessment and other laws and regulations in
relation to environmental protection. Pursuant to the requirements of
governments at all levels, the Company has formulated respective
environmental management system in line with its operation. Each
majority-owned brand evaluates changes in relevant laws and regulations,
and therefore updates techniques and equipment and refines
environmental management methodologies, reducing impacts of their
operating activities on the ecological environment. In 2020, Best Food
had no confirmed non-compliance incidents or grievances in relation to
environmental protection that would have a significant impact.

Resource Utilization

We actively take measures such as optimizing management, equipment
upgrading and resource consumption accounting to improve the
efficiency of resource utilization in offices, stores and factories. Our
majority-owned brands adopt the operation model of “central kitchen +
factory production” to effectively control product energy consumption per
unit.
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Reduce the intensity of greenhouse gas emissions and
enhance our energy efficiency;
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Reduce the waste generated from operations and to
reuse or recycle materials;
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Increase use of clean energy.
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The main energy-consuming equipment in HHG restaurants includes
heating ovens and refrigerated cabinets in food preparation areas. HHG
enhances its restaurants’ energy efficiency through substituting old
appliance with high-efficiency appliance and more use of energy-saving
product and multi-functional equipment. HHG’s factories conduct
statistical analysis on a monthly basis for reasonable use and
conservation of electricity consumption arising from electrical equipment.
HHG’s resource saving measures also include:

o Applying LED lighting in all restaurants and office areas.

° Posting resource-saving tips next to power switches and faucets
as a reminder for office staff to save resource.

° Encouraging and promoting the use of filtered wastewater from
vegetable cleaning for mopping the floor.

° Considering the restaurant cost for the employee performance
evaluation criteria, in order to mobilize the enthusiasm of employees
to save resources.

New Spicy Way sticks to an energy-efficient operation, promoting a
simplified, efficient and paperless office process. During the year, the
core POS system of New Spicy Way was upgraded to the cloud platform,
which has lowered requirements for hardware configuration, achieving a
dual effect of cost reduction and energy consumption reduction for a
single restaurant. It plans to cease the use of the original Internet Data
Center (IDC) computing equipment and adopt the upgraded service
rental model of SaaS platform which would reduce its system
maintenance costs and improve efficiency of energy and resource
utilization.
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Lighting: LED lighting is adopted for all company-operated restaurants, with dimming devices used to adjust the
brightness of the lights according to the environment for saving energy.
RBEF: EEPIE 2B RALEDERE - EAAAKESEEAEERE RERRTEFADRE N TE  EDEREUR -

Cooking equipment: Induction cookers are used in the kitchens and guest areas of the restaurants, which ensure
safety and sanitation and also increase heating efficiency.
BE:FEFEAERERASHEL TEUNREREZE L EEAERSHMABBE -

Soup machine: The heating control based on temperature-controlled frequency conversion curve is adopted, which
not only guarantees the expected soup temperature, but also saves energy consumption.

ASE RAREAZAHGMBES TR MERBLSRE - RRHOERE-

Dishwasher: A heat recovery technique is adopted to recover and reuse heat energy to maintain water temperature.
The total power of the dishwasher has been reduced by 40% in this way.

R RARLDRKERN  SRAEQEBNARRIFIOR  ZRBEERSABE AL X TE40% °

Ice maker: The air-cooled ice maker is adopted, which saves approximately one cubic meter of water per day
compared with the traditional water-cooled ice maker, thus reducing water consumption.

Bk H  RAE SRR BIRE - LLEGRKSHKEEREKIZTER  BR2KERRE -

Air conditioner: Air conditioners of variable frequency are used, with the working power of the compressors changing
in real time according to the ambient temperature, which reduces energy waste.

ZHCRAEEATEE BRENEAEERNBEHEELTIENEX  BRIERRE -

Factories of New Spicy Way routinely check and maintain the electrical ¥TEE T T H KB ETREE KEKE
equipment and water pipes and water tanks, avoiding leakage caused by % - W R A S M E R ESE  Bem R
equipment damage. Solar-powered heaters and plug-in shower fittings HRERENERAITRERNEE - LKA
are available in factories’ bathrooms to achieve energy and water ﬁ ﬁﬁ 7( b5 BE Zh oK e F IR R MR 88 0
conservation. The company carries out monitoring use of energy KM E - RAFFVFHEERZ
throughout the year to control the energy consumption per unit of ; ?I’T %IJ ﬁﬁi%ﬁ% MEERBREE ©
production capacity.
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Emission Management

The major emissions and waste arising from the operation of HHG and
New Spicy Way include exhausted gas, wastewater, non-hazardous
waste such as kitchen waste generated in the operation, and greenhouse
gas (“GHG”) arising from energy consumption.

With regard to gas emission, our majority-owned brands strictly abide by
relevant emission regulations and standards such as the Emission
standard of cooking fume (GB18483-2001) and purchase and install the
oil fume purification equipment in accordance with the regulations on the
emitted gas treatment of the local areas in which the restaurants are
located. HHG requires all restaurants to engage qualified suppliers for the
kitchen exhaust cleaning with the valid reporting maintained properly. It is
required to operate kitchen equipment generating fume under the
extraction canopy. As of the end of 2020, 95% of company-operated
restaurants of HHG have replaced oil fume purifiers. New Spicy Way
requires company-operated restaurants to clean the fume purifier and
kitchen ventilation ductwork every 2 months or more frequently. As of the
end of 2020, all the restaurants of New Spicy Way across the country
have upgraded the purification equipment that meets the national
standards for low emission. The equipment was furnished with a UV
photolysis device, an activated carbon filter, and an electrostatic plasma
purification device. The treated gas fully meets the requirement of
Emission Standard of Air Pollutant for Catering Industry (DB11/1488-2018)
issued by Beijing, which is more stringent than the national standard.

HHG’s and New Spicy Way’s production factories make use of well-
established exhaust gas collection system and special purifiers to
process the cooking fume arising from steaming, boiling, stewing and
other procedures.
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New Spicy Way'’s factory installed three sets of emission and oil fume
purification equipment, each one equipped with low-noise centrifugal
fans, oil fume purifiers and UV photolysis purifiers.
MREBIHEE R MEFCREIE BEBRAERSH

DR RS L UV F (b8 -
Regarding wastewater discharge, HHG and New Spicy Way require all
restaurants to install oil separators in compliance with local requirements
on environmental protection, and water separated from oil is discharged
into municipal sewage network to comply with local discharge standard.
Industrial and domestic sewage of production factories is disposed of
first through the wastewater treatment stations in factories, before
discharging into local wastewater treatment plants.

In response to the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste, and
the Domestic Waste Management Regulation in Beijing and other national
and local regulations in China on waste disposal, HHG and New Spicy
Way have set up trash bins by categories to strictly comply with the
standards of garbage sorting required by the local authorities and the
local properties in which the restaurants are located. HHG restaurants
and factories implement waste sorting management for many years.
Waste packaging boxes and bags are recycled and reused by recycling
entity, certain kitchen waste arising from procurement of raw materials is
used as “fertilizer”, and a qualified third party is entrusted to help recycle
waste oil on a centralized basis. All the used and waste oil in HHG
restaurants and central factories are recycled and disposed of by waste
oil recycling companies with professional qualification certified by the
government or third parties designated by the local properties. For New
Spicy Way, the kitchen waste and other waste (including tissue, etc.)
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generated in restaurants is stored in special capped barrels and disposed
of by the qualified company designated by shopping malls where the
restaurants locate. Discarded cartons are sorted and recycled by the
supplier designated by the shopping malls or otherwise by the local
recycling entity appointed by the restaurants.

Litter Less Campaign

Less plastic: In 2020, HHG and New Spicy Way made more efforts on
reducing plastic products in its operations in response to the Guideline
on Further Strengthening the Control of Plastic Pollution and the Notice
on the Solid Promotion of Plastic Pollution Control issued by the central
government. HHG replaced non-degradable take-away plastic bags and
plastic straws with biodegradable ones.

Less paper wastes: In order to reduce the generation of waste, HHG and
New Spicy Way promote and encourage consumers to order food by
mobile phone, which does not only reduce the waiting time for ordering
and settlement, but also greatly reduces the amount of printing paper
consumed by the restaurants. HHG has stopped providing paper
placemat to customers since 2020, which reduces the consumption of

paper.

Less food waste: All restaurants of New Spicy Way intensified the “Clear
Plate Campaign” by introducing dishes of different sizes and vegetable
combo, communicating with customers through table cards and stickers
or attendants. Customers are encouraged to have healthy and balanced
diets, save food and avoid waste. The factories of New Spicy Way
abandoned the three-side seal packaging and replaced it with the Eight-
station automatic packaging machine and pre-made packaging bags to
reduce the loss of food products, labor demand and decline in the effect
of products incurred by oil leakage of packaging.

Climate Change

Based on the operating characteristics of the catering brands controlled
by the Company, climate change has lesser impact on the procurement
and daily operation. Most restaurants of HHG and New Spicy Way are
located in commercial complexes, following the energy usage rules
imposed by local properties management companies. In response to the
goal of carbon neutrality of the Chinese government, the Company will
actively urge the local properties in which its restaurants are located to
purchase clean energy, and also help the restaurants explore production
and operational measures that improve energy efficiency.
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Environmental Performance

Unless otherwise specified, the environmental data in this section covers
the period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020. The data scope
covers HHG's office area, company-operated restaurants, production ¥l - R Z & A 42 5 i A
factories and the logistics center, and New Spicy Way’s company-

operated restaurants and production factories.

Table of Key Environmental Performance Indicators —
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HHG
2020 Data
Indicators BE 2020 H 1%
Emissions BErk
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2) (tonnes)!  EEREHIWAE (BB — L& E —) ()" 9,606.97
Including: Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) (tonnes) HEoh: BEd (g E—) (M) 245.42
Natural gas (tonnes) RIAR (HE) 226.52
Gasoline (tonnes) M (188) 18.90
Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) (tonnes) Mg (g E =) (WE) 9,361.55
Electricity (tonnes) B 7 (W8) 9,361.55
GHG emissions per RMB million in revenue FABTARBIIAEZE RN
(tonnes/RMB million) (M, BETAREARYE) 24.70
GHG emissions per restaurant (tonnes) BIEREESAEERE (M) 73.61
Non-hazardous waste (tonnes)? mEEEYES ()2 1,018.278
Non-hazardous waste per RMB million in revenue BEHETARBRABESEEZYBRE
(tonnes/RMB million) (W8, BETARE) 2.58
Chemical Oxygen Demand (COD) coD(tEZEE2)E4=2(TR) 284
Resources consumption BiRFER
Total energy consumption (MWh)? BERH MR E JKER)® 14,385.77
Including: Direct energy consumption (MWh) B BEEERERECREE) 1,235.68
Indirect energy consumption (MWh) ¥ ee R EFE LR ) 13,150.09
Energy consumption per RMB million in revenue BETAREWAGERERE
(MWh/RMB million) (kEE/BEBTARYE) 36.63
Water consumption (tonnes) BREKE (HB)4 114,235
Water consumption per restaurant (tonnes) BIEFEKE () 808
Water consumption per RMB million in revenue AETARBEIPAFEKE
(tonnes/RMB million) (M, BB TARE) 290.91
Packing materials (tonnes)® BEY (E)° 764.54
Packing materials per RMB million in revenue (tonnes/ BETARBEKRABED
RMB million) (g, BB TARKE) 1.95
BRERERAT —ZE-ZFFH
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Table of Key Environmental Performance Indicators —
New Spicy Way

tmt: (Ill

MmE

it

)

RIBENIBERXR

2020Data
Indicators BE 202085
Emissions BEmy
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2) (tonnes)! SR = RIS HEMMAE (SE — L& E —) (M)’ 4,636.88
GHG emissions per RMB million in revenue BEETARBKABEREIER 17.70
(tonnes/RMB million) (M BB TARE)
Non-hazardous waste (tonnes)? BmEREZEYHRE ()2 637.21
Non-hazardous waste per RMB million in revenue BEBTARBWNANEEZREEZYMR 2.49
(tonnes/RMB million) (M, BB TARE)
GHG emissions per restaurant (tonnes) BERBESMEERE (M) 58.75
Resources consumption BEREHR
Total energy consumption (MWh)? BERHFERE JKER)® 6,372.92
Energy consumption per RMB million in revenue BREEBTARBRARRERE 24.87
(MWh/RMB million) (KRR /BETARYE)
Water consumption (tonnes)* w8 FEK 2 (A) 86,513.22
Water consumption per restaurant (tonnes) BIEFEKE () 1,052.63
Water consumption per RMB million in revenue BETARKIAREKE 337.6
(tonnes/RMB million) (Mg, BB TARKE)
Packing materials (tonnes)® B EE Y () ° 21.4624
Packing materials per RMB million in revenue BEEBTARBRKABEDFERS 0.08
(tonnes/RMB million) (W, BB TARE)
Notes: EX
1 Due to its business nature, the significant gas emissions are GHG emissions, arising 1 ERNEBEEFE TEREHNERALERES W

Best

mainly from electricity generated by burning fossil fuels and consumption of natural gas
and gasoline. The GHG inventory includes carbon dioxide, methane and nitrous oxide.
GHG emissions data is presented in carbon dioxide equivalent and is based on the
2019 Baseline Emission Factors for Regional Power Grids in China issued by the
Ministry of Ecological Environment of the People’s Republic of China and the 2006
IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories (2019 Edition) issued by the
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC).

Due to its business nature, the main solid waste is non-hazardous waste including
kitchen waste and food industrial waste. Hazardous waste such as waste toner
cartridges and ink cartridges in office and waste machine oil in factory account for tiny
percentage. Considering the percentage and the less importance of hazardous waste
for New Spicy Way, it is not disclosed.

Energy consumption only includes purchased electricity, natural gas and gasoline.

The main water resource is municipal water. There is no issue about sourcing water
until now.

Packing materials mainly include cartons and plastic bags.

Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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Cherishing Talents and Caring for Employee

Development

People oriented

BABRE

3 GOOD HEALTH AND
WELL-BEING
B 7R
Wik

QUALITY EDUCATION
4 @A

]

GENDER EQUALITY DECENT WORK AND
3R 8 ECONOMIC GROWTH
I

The Company adheres to the talent-based development philosophy and
puts forward the slogan “Welcome all talents from all over the world to
contribute to catering industry together” and is committed to achieve the
company’s vision while also helping employees realise their dreams. We
protect the legitimate rights and interests of employees and pay attention
to their demands. Meanwhile, the Company signs formal employment
contracts or labor agreements with all employees according to laws and
regulations, fulfils relevant obligations in strict accordance with the terms

& (%)

n

A BEIRE

Protect the basic rights of employees and provide
competitive salary and benefits;

REETEAEZ REERFHOHFEREN
Create a healthy, pleasant and efficient working
environment for employees;
BIERMEETRE Wl EBRESMEMNIERE:
Build a diverse employee team that respect differences;
TEZTlh BEEZENETEK

Provide quality resources for staff development and
vocational education.

RETERNBEHERHEEER-

ARABHAT RANERED  REHIE
BRTES HRXEKKREINOR &
ARERRAZENEE  wEHETE
EEQEH'JHTE°&{F3W§?’E§§E\ BIAE

@ BT B TR UREABARERE
PﬁﬁE\IMnTETM@J/\H‘X“FTﬁ%
BRERARGREBETHBARE L RE
THRESFEN TERREMEDNIFIER

in the contract, and provides comfortable working environment and

sufficient training resources for employees.

BRERERLR —ZT-ZFFR
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Employment and Employee Rights

The Company strictly abides by the relevant national legal requirements,
and complies with the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Special Rules
on the Labor Protection of Female Employees, the Regulation on Paid
Annual Leave for Employees, the Provisions on Minimum Wages, etc.,
and has established a comprehensive human resources (“HR”)
management system. We value a diverse workforce constitution and put
efforts to realise equal rights regardless of ethnic, gender and age and
prevent gender discrimination, child labor and forced labor among our
employees.

We strictly prohibit the employment of child labor and forced labor. HHG
clearly stipulates in its Employee Handbook that it is not allowed to
employ or use child labor. The Operational Manual for Personnel Practice
of New Spicy Way sets out the minimum age for all positions, where HR
specialists periodically organize trainings for relevant managers from each
restaurant, to ensure compliance with this policy on recruitment, and to
avoid employment of the child labor. Our majority-owned brands have
established attendance and leave management systems and
implemented approval procedures for special working hours in various
regions in accordance with local laws and regulations. The HR
department is responsible for managing working hours of employees,
communicating with persons in charge in case of any abnormality and
requiring for reasonable, as well as arranging overtime leave or payment.

During the year of 2020, the Company was not aware of any child labor,
forced labor or other violations of the human rights among employees.

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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Table of Key Employment Indicators — HHG

& (%)

NEeEREIREBEEMEER

Indicators' 2020
e 2020
Total employees 1,567
ETIHAY
Total employees by gender Male employees EHETITEH 556
BIERIE D B T Female employees B TEH 1,011
Total employees by age group Employees under 30 years old FRIOEATHEIAH 260
LERMBARNE DB THE Employees between 30 and 40 FH 3024055 (T 8) K 495
(not included) years old BT AH
Employees between 40 and 50 FH 4055 25055 (T &) /Y 516
(not included) years old BT A
Employees over 50 years old FER0E(B)NEMET 296
(including 50) A
Total employees by employment type Contracted employees LBEARGE LA 1,566
HEFEEAESSNE THEH Labor dispatch worker BisRES B T AS 1
Full-time employees 2B ET AH 702
Part-time employees FBBE T A 865
Total employees by geographical region?  Employees in Northern China Fib@mE T A 1,567
B RIKE S B T Employees in Southern of China g [@ 5 T A & 0
Employees in Central China FERiEETAH 0
Employees in Eastern China ERMEET AR 0
Employees in Northwest China micile 8 T AR 0
Employees in Southwest China FAEHtEE T A 0
Employees in Northeast China Fitm B T AR 0
Total employees by employee category® Senior managers SREEEBETI AR 11
HETERIASWBE LB Including: Female senior managers H & : SR E 188 & M 4
BETAH
Middle level managers FREEEETIAH 23
Non-Management employees HEB T AH 1,533

1. The above data of employees covers Beijing HHG Management Co., Ltd. and Tianjin
HHG Co., Ltd. and their self-operated restaurants.

2. Disclosure is based on the region where employees work.

3. The senior management includes employees at the deputy director level and above in
the headquarters; the middle management includes employees at the manager and

deputy manager level, as well as factory heads.

BETHEBBEREILRAMAAERERARAA
RREMEAERBRAB UREZEME

BENEARETEBRTEMAMNMELRE
EREEERERMALERALERFET : &

REEERELERBKERNE TARTK
B o

BRERERLR —ZT-ZFFR

239



240

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (“ESG”) REPORT (CONTINUED)

RE #8RkER

Table of Key Employment Indicators — New Spicy Way

& (%)

MREETIRBEAMERER

Indicators' 2020
fEE 20204
Total employees 1,930
ETIHAY
Total employees by gender Male employees EHETITEH 702
BIERIE D B T Female employees B TEH 1,228
Total employees by age group Employees under 30 years old FRIOEATHEIAH 834
BRFRE D E THEH Employees between 30 and 40 FEB0 2405 (T 2) 1) 351
(not included) years old BT AH
Employees between 40 and 50 FH 4055 2505 (&) K 351
(not included) years old BT A
Employees over 50 years old FER0E(B)UNEMET 394
(including 50) A
Total employees by employment type Contracted employees LEARGE LA 1,930
REBHENESHE TEH Labor dispatch worker BisRES B T AR 0
Full-time employees 2B ET AH 1,236
Part-time employees FBBE T A 694
Total employees by geographical region?  Employees in Northern China Fib@mE T A 1,154
iR B D 8 THEE Employees in Southern of China g [@ 5 T A & 0
Employees in Central China FERiEETAH 0
Employees in Eastern China ERMWEE T A 223
Employees in Northwest China madbiE 8 T AH 553
Employees in Southwest China FAEHEE T A 0
Employees in Northeast China Fitm B T AR 0
Total employees by employee category® Senior managers SREEEBETI AR 11
HETERIASWBE LB Including: Female senior managers H & : SR E 188 & M 3
BETAH
Middle level managers FREEEETIAH 29
Non-Management employees HEB T AH 1,890

1. The above data of employees covers Beijing New Spicy Way Catering Management

Ltd. and its self-operated restaurants.

2. Disclosure is based on the region where employees work.

3. The senior management includes employees at the deputy director level and above in
the headquarters; the middle management includes employees at the senior manager,

manager and deputy manager level.

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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Welfare

The Company provides employees with reasonable welfare assurances
and a comfortable working environment. We ensure that employees are
granted paid annual leave and maternity leave, and we provide
employees with pensions, work injury insurance, maternity insurance,
unemployment insurance, medical insurance, and housing provident fund
as required. In order to attract high-quality talents and retain outstanding
employees, our majority-owned brands regularly review salary standards
by benchmarking with the market level to develop a market-competitive
salary and bonus scheme. An attractive and fair compensation system is
built based on performance, professional qualifications and experience of
the employees. In addition to the basic salary, HHG and New Spicy Way
provide employees with post allowance, performance bonus, etc. For
example, HHG provides benefits such as meals and uniforms for
headquarters and restaurant employees based on their work nature,
phone allowance for employees in headquarters or restaurants in
suburban areas and transportation allowance for employees who
temporary aid in newly established restaurants.

Some restaurants of HHG could not continue normal operation under the
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020. The Company provided
salary according to local minimum wage standard to employees of the
restaurants where the operation was suspended. As for the employees of
the restaurants that had been permanently closed, HHG re-located them
to other HHG restaurants in nearby neighborhoods and avoided
downsizing of its workforce.

Voices of Employees

With great importance attached to communication with employees, the
Company is ready to listen to the voices of employees and advocates
active communication between employees and the management.

HHG has openly published directory contacts of management and
restaurant managers within the “Cloud-Hub” office automation system, or
corporate WeChat platforms for easy access by employees. Employees
can directly communicate with the heads of relevant departments or
restaurant managers through channels such as telephone, email and
office or communication software on remuneration of daily work,
suggestions and opinions on work and other topics. The management of
HHG collects opinions and suggestions on the company’s systems by
means of office interviews and restaurant visits.
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New Spicy Way provides employees with open communication channels,
including restaurant employee meetings, internal mailbox, internal contact
books, etc. The restaurant staff and employees of supporting
departments can provide timely feedback to the company through online
or offine channels. In 2020, New Spicy Way updated the Employee
Manual with detailed interpretations of original regulations and clarification
in protecting whistleblowers, prohibiting discrimination and bullying,
hence conveying an open attitude to employees.

For employees who apply for resignation, HR specialists or the relevant
managers in restaurants actively communicate with resigning employees
to understand their feelings at work, and to review vulnerabilities in our
management and operation system in a timely manner.

Case: Donation for severely injured employee in New Spicy Way

In 2020, an employee of one of the New Spicy Way restaurants
unfortunately suffered a severe injury in the traffic accident. The
Company immediately donated RMB50,000 to the employee, although
New Spicy Way bore no direct liability for the accident. The Company
subsequently organized voluntary donation among employees and
received active reply. The donation raised a total amount of
approximately RMB74,000, with care and support from all the staff.

Concerning for Employee Development

The Company attaches great importance to the development and growth
of employees. We established “Best Food College” to provide training
courses for management, restaurant managers and employees that is
understandable, easy to learn and useful for the purpose of cultivating
employees through the method of “practice + learning” and helping them
realize the value of life. In addition, our majority-owned brands also have
established appropriate training systems based on business
characteristics.

With the philosophy of “discovering, cultivating and perfecting talents”,
HHG has established training systems and training courses for restaurant
staff and all levels of employees in the headquarters. HHG cooperates
with Beijing Xicheng Econ. Science University to launch a joint training
program. Employees can voluntarily enroll in a 3-year junior college
course at Beijing Xicheng Econ. Science University. Once they complete
the 3-year course and successfully acquire the certificate, HHG will bear

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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all the training costs of these employees. HHG also establishes internally
two levels of training system for both the restaurant and the headquarters.
At the restaurant level, HHG maintains consistent training standards and
has developed training manuals consisting of necessary knowledge and
practical skills with respect to food safety, service delivery, fire protection,
etc. HHG renews its training programs for employees at different levels
each year, and provides trainings on duty management, system
management and practice management when necessary. Restaurants
have appointed dedicated trainers, and the restaurant manager and the
trainer are jointly responsible for organizing offline staff trainings, which
are supplemented by online trainings, such as Standard Operation
Procedure (SOP) handbook, online videos and other online platforms
provided by HHG’s headquarters. At the headquarters level, HHG
organizes centralized training, discussions and independent learning
programmes for employees at different job levels to learn about
management theories, analyse industry trends and conduct case studies.

Under the philosophy of “cultivating subordinates, guiding others,
respecting superiors, predecessors and teachers, as well as keeping
diligent and eager to learn”, New Spicy Way is committed to becoming a
school that educates people and creates better conditions for the
personal growth of employees. The Company designed a variety of
curricula in 2020, aiming to satisfy the needs for the actual operation of
the restaurants. The pandemic prevention and control were added as
one of the key courses of the curricula. Manpower, inventory, financial
audit, internal control and internal audit were also added in the curricula.
Meanwhile, a detailed course plan and a training system were developed
for the management team and the service team of restaurants, to help
them deal with daily affairs in a rigorous and disciplined manner.
Regarding the headquarter, New Spicy Way developed vocational
training courses according to the characteristics of the work and job
position of each department. New Spicy Way also applied for the account
of the online training program of “Beijing Vocational Skill Improvement
Operational Management Platform”, encouraging employees to study
and improve their professional capabilities in spare time. Meanwhile, New
Spicy Way designed a variety of highly-professional theoretical courses
for different departments to help employees consolidate theoretical basis
while improving management levels, such as marketing courses for the
marketing department, food safety control courses for the quality control
department, financial analysis and organizational behavior courses for
operation managing personnel, etc. In mid-year and each year end, the
training department of the New Spicy Way conducts a collective
assessment of the progress and comments of all the training programs,
summarizes lessons of training experience and optimizes the training
system.
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Table of Key Indicators of Employees Training — HHG MERBIEIEMIBERX
Indicators' 2020
EE 2020 £
Total employees participating in training Employees in headquarters PG r=a | P4 NG g People A 128
= FEWNE Employees in restaurants FI/E1E 348 A &1 People A 789
Percentage of total employees Percentage of male employees S E T Percentage % 59.5
participating in training by gender participating in training 2L Bt
EHERNESHZIETBED L Percentage of female employees % % 8 T Percentage %  58.0
participating in training 2mEIE St
Percentage of total employees Percentage of senior SRER Percentage % 100
participating in training by employee management participating in 2MEBIa D
category? training
BZETIRBAESHNZINE T ADL? Percentage of middle level AR s IR Percentage % 100
management participating in 2mEa st
training
Percentage of non-management & 8 T Percentage % 56.8
employees participating in 2MEI B
training
The average training hours per employee Hours /J\FF 8.75
A2 EEIR &K
The average training The average training hours BHEET Hours /]NiF 8.5
hours completed per completed by male A5
employee by gender The average training hours ZHEET Hours /]NAF 8.9
ZHRESME TAHLEEIFRK  completed by female A58
The average training The average training hours =R EE Hours /]NAF 54.0
hours completed per completed by senior A
employee by employee category? managers
HEIEBLKESPHMET The average training hours AR IR Hours /|\B% 54.0
A2 B FR? completed by middle level A BB K
managers
The average training hours HEEET Hours /]NiF 6.9
completed by junior AR
employees
1. The above data of employees covers Beijing HHG Management Co., Ltd. and Tianjin 1. BT EEEEREILRNAAERRERS
HHG Co., Ltd. and directly operated restaurants. RAGIERENEARERBRAR UEKEE

2. The senior management includes employees at the head office’s deputy director level
and above; the middle management includes employees at the manager and deputy
manager level, as well as factory heads.
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Table of Key Indicators of Employees Training — HHEBEITIZIEKRNIEER
New Spicy Way
Indicators' 2020
EE' 2020
Total employees participating in training Employees in headquarters RS [ RN 2 People A 40
=2 48 A 2 Employees in restaurants P95 5 il 48 A 8 People A 1,890
Percentage of total employees Percentage of male employees EME T Percentage % 100
participating in training by gender participating in training 20538 2L
EMREI S BEIE DL Percentage of female employees % % 8 T Percentage % 100
participating in training 22BN ED T
Percentage of total employees Percentage of senior =R R Percentage % 100
participating in training by management participating in E3ib=H =R
employee category? training
BETITRBAESHNZIE TEHDH? Percentage of middle level AR s IR Percentage % 100
management participating in 2mFa ot
training
Percentage of non-management EE & T Percentage % 100
employees participating in 2mEIE ot
training
The average training hours per employee Hours /JNEf 18.0
A2 EEIR R
The average training The average training hours EHET Hours /| B 18.0
hours completed per completed by male ABEIE K
employee by gender The average training hours BT Hours /)N 18.0
BERESHET completed by female AR E
A2 BB
The average training The average training hours ERERE Hours /]NiF 18.0
hours completed per completed by senior ABEIIE &
employee by employee category? managers
EEIERESHET The average training hours AR IE Hours /)~ B 18.0
A2 B R? completed by middle level AR
managers
The average training hours HEEST Hours /)NiF 6.9
completed by junior AR &
employees
1. The above data of employees covers Beijing New Spicy Way Catering Management 1. ETHBHEEREILL I HREERERERE AT
Ltd. and its directly operated restaurants. EEZME
2. The senior management includes employees at the deputy director level and above in 2 R EEERET RERIEERN ERBIET
the headquarters; the middle management includes employees at the senior manager, RAREEERESRLCE K18 3IKERR
manager and deputy manager level. BT
BRERERBRAE ZZEZZFFR
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Occupational Health and Safety

Concerning for employees’ health

The Company is committed to providing a safe and healthy working
environment for all employees. HHG and New Spicy Way provide pre-
employment health checkup and routine health check-up for onboarding
employees in headquarters offices. Employees of all restaurants and
logistics division and related departments are mandatorily required to
obtain health certificates for onboarding and have health examination
annually conducted for renewal for work certification.

During the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020, HHG and New
Spicy Way provided epidemic protection products such as masks,
gloves, and hand-washing disinfectant for employees returning to work
and production, formulated a system of routine temperature
measurement and comprehensive daily regular disinfections in
restaurants and offices, and organized all restaurant employees to carry
out NAT. HHG and New Spicy Way disseminated COVID-19 related
information and promoted epidemic prevention awareness to employees.
In 2020, none of the employees of Best Food and its catering brands
were infected with COVID-19.

In addition, the Company attaches great importance to the mental health
of employees. In response to the impact of the epidemic on employees’
lives and company operations, we promptly provided psychological help
and guidance to employees. HHG issued the Notice to All Employees in
early February 2020, conveying to employees the company’s measures
to mitigate the impact of the epidemic, such as developing online
business, preparing for the procurement of epidemic prevention
materials, etc., and conveying the company’s firm belief in ensuring
stable operations. After the resumption of work and production, HHG
organized a meeting of restaurant managers and prepared banners,
customized gifts and thank-you letters to express gratitude to its
employees who had confronted the difficulties together.

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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Production safety management

HHG strictly abides by the Work Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Regulations on Work-Related Injury Insurance and other laws
and regulations and has developed the System of Labor Safety and
Health and Operation Protection accordingly. HHG sets out the Safety
Management Regulations, which constitute an important part together
with safety trainings for actual operation in new employee orientation, in
the Handbook for Employees. HHG manages health and safety risk of
restaurants in line with the Regulations on Restaurant Safety
Management. All restaurants are equipped with firefighting and safety
documentation portfolio including restaurant’s emergency plans for safety
and health accidents, instructions on using firefighting equipment and so
on, so that the employees can freely access and read at any time. A
safety administrator is appointed in restaurants to oversee the safety
measures and regularly conduct and record safety training as required.
Lifeguard and evacuation managers are also designated on a proportional
basis to undertake safety responsibility. In terms of fire safety, HHG
carries out safety inspection and equipment maintenance regularly,
organizes fire drills and security awareness trainings each year.

HHG factories establish a special equipment team responsible for
electricity safety management of each department. Equipment teams
check whether the electricity use is in accordance with the specifications
on a monthly basis, timely rectifying electrical safety violations and
eliminating identified safety risks arising from faulty electricity facilities.
Special personnel are assigned for each production equipment, checking
whether the equipment is in normal condition prior to use. Pursuant to
the fire safety regulations, equipment with electrostatic discharge ground
clip must be correctly clamped before use, where users should
periodically check whether the metal on both ends of the clip is still
properly attached to the equipment.
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Case: Fire Drill at HHG

HHG held the 2020 fire drill at Jiaochangkou Fire Brigade of Xicheng
District on 14 and 15 September 2020. At the site of the fire drill, the
firemen instructed on how to extinguish fire in early stage, how to use
fire-fighting facilities and equipment and shared the knowledge of self-
prevention and self-rescue, etc. Trainings on kitchen safety, fire
extinguishing of burning oil in a cooking pan were specifically carried
out according to the characteristics of catering industry.

| & '”9 j [ d o
:lta'ﬂﬂ"’ﬂ'ﬂﬁfﬂﬁﬁ"ﬂ?ﬁﬁ}ﬁﬁ 2020$E

New Spicy Way promulgates the Safety Preservation, Personnel and
Government Policies, Disinfection and Food Safety and issued New Spicy
Restaurant Crisis Operation Guide and Emergency Event Flow Chart to
provide safety guidelines for employees in dealing with possible crisis in
daily operation. For the protection of frontline employees in its
restaurants, New Spicy Way designates restaurant managers, as
persons-in-charge to address safety risks in a timely manner by patrolling
the restaurants regularly. For office employees, New Spicy Way arranges
safety trainings for new employees and sends regular safety reminders
for office employees. It provides employees with optional supplementary
medical insurance and financial support for accidents. In 2020, Factories
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of New Spicy Way developed the Compilation of Work Safety
Management System and fulfiled responsibility systems for safe
production, setting up full-time fire security officers and providing
incumbent employee injury insurance, and safety liability insurance to

ensure the safety of employees in all aspects.

Case: Fire Safety Training at New Spicy Way

New Spicy Way held a fire safety training meeting in May 2020. At the
meeting, each article of the Operation Guideline for Restaurant Crisis
Response was studied carefully, with special emphasis on fire
prevention and other major personal and property safety crisis
response. Meanwhile, the analysis on simulated scenario was provided
and employees actively participated in the discussion on how to
handle the crises in real life.

On 27 September 2020, New Spicy Way also organized restaurant
staff to learn about the fire safety on the spot, including the use of a
fire extinguisher, the use of escape routes and the treatment of scald.
The knowledge is applied in practice. It is aimed to eliminate potential
safety hazards and prevent accident from happening.
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Insisting on Responsible Operations

& (%)

BT BEERE

Responsible business 12 Eiena 16 it Focus on environmental, social and governance risks of
A RS
wis

- . AND PRODUCTION
EELE .

supply chain;
BOIHERIRE e kERRAR:
Establish supplier audit mechanism;

R E R

Uphold the corporate culture of integrity, and adhere to
compliance and honesty.

EERER HEMNGEE BIFEHEE #MELE-

The Company keeps improving internal control measures for catering
brands in which we own shares. Our internal control department regularly
provide guidance to these brands to strengthen the internal compliance
management.

HHG has established the internal control department as well as the
internal control committee with Work Responsibilities and Rules of
Procedure formulated. The internal control department is responsible for
supervising the relevant departments of HHG and improve internal control
management with supports from the internal control department of Best
Food.

° Strengthen management of contract approval. In the second half of
2020, all the contract approval processes of HHG were completed
online to prevent any overriding of approval.

° Establish a procurement committee. To strengthen the selection of
suppliers, projects exceeding a certain amount and the admission
of new suppliers are subject to the approval of the procurement
committee.

o Establish a business development team. The siting of the new
restaurant and the application for the new project are subject to the
approval of the team.

° Establish a human resources committee. The human resources

committee is responsible for the appraisal and deliberation of the
employment of important positions.
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Social and Environmental Risk Management on
Supply Chain

The Company vigorously establishes win-win relationships with its
partners, and strictly abides by the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Tendering and Bidding, the Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China and other relevant laws and regulations. We continuously refine the
supplier management system, focus on environmental and social risks in
the supply chain and encourage suppliers to jointly enhance the
environmental and social risk management of food industry chain.

In order to strengthen the procurement management, regulate
procurement behaviors and save procurement costs, HHG has
established a procurement committee under the Board, which is
responsible for the review of the bulk procurement of the Company.
According to the Work Procedure of HHG Procurement Committee and
Procurement Bidding Management System, all departments of the
procurement committee are required to participate in the review and
approval process of suppliers of the bulk procurement. The personnel in
charge of legal affairs check the public punishment records of candidate
suppliers and evaluate whether they meet HHG’s procurement standards
in terms of labor, environmental protection and other compliance issues.
In 2020, in accordance with the Guideline on Further Strengthening the
Control of Plastic Pollution issued by the central government, HHG
started to purchase biodegradable take-away bags and paper straws
and stopped the procurement of disposable plastic spoons.

HHG continues to evaluate the performance of existing suppliers through
the Supplier Management System. The related department routinely
summarizes the quality evaluation information of all suppliers every month
and organizes comprehensive supplier evaluation every quarter. In June
and October 2020, the quality department carried out routine inspections
on all chicken suppliers in batches. If problems are found during routine
inspections or on-site inspections of suppliers, HHG will communicate
with the suppliers and follow up in a timely manner. Suppliers which fail
to address the identified issues in a timely manner, will be removed in
accordance with the elimination mechanism.
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Suppliers category Amount of suppliers  Notes
ZE R ER
fit pE 7 2 BYE B
Food suppliers 60  Direct sourcing suppliers from HHG headquarters for both
RmBEHERS directly operated restaurants and franchisees.
2020F AMERBHERMEN REHEELEME
AMANEER -

Package suppliers 7

BEEAHER
Equipment suppliers 7
BB EEER
Construction materials suppliers 3
MR ER

New Spicy Way’s supplier access mechanism comprises qualification
verification, on-site review and office automation (OA) approval, where
the purchasing department is responsible for purchase demands
analysis, supplier bidding coordination and admittance process as the
initiator. Meanwhile, the quality control department is responsible for
independent on-site review. The qualification verification entails checking
administrative punishment records of the suppliers in the National
Enterprise Credit Information Publicity System, including food safety and
environmental pollution; such punishment is deemed as an indispensable
reference for the review, which will definitely affect comprehensive
assessment for the suppliers. On-site reviews comprise assessment on
production management ability, product processing quality,
environmental and healthy control, personnel management, etc., and the
assessment focus of factory inspection varies with products. New Spicy
Way implements a system which vetoes suppliers failing the factory
reviews or lacking requisite qualifications.
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When signing contracts with suppliers, in addition to the standard
contract in compliance with the requirements of national laws, New Spicy
Way signs the letters of commitment for food safety and packaging
materials safety as the appendix to contracts, which requires suppliers to
take food safety seriously. For suppliers’ evaluation, the purchasing
department, quality control department and operation department of
New Spicy Way jointly complete the supplier review on a regular basis, to
assess supply ability, delivery, supply quality, packaging, and services of
the suppliers. An elimination mechanism is applied to unqualified
suppliers, with relevant information in the supplier database updated
accordingly. New Spicy Way conducts on-site supervision and
management of core original equipment manufacturer (OEM) suppliers to
ensure that the suppliers keep the standard management of production
line and provide continuous and reliable products.

New Spicy Way currently has 53 direct sourcing suppliers for food and
15 direct sourcing suppliers for packaging. Due to the needs of epidemic
prevention and control in 2020, most on-site audits cannot be carried out
as scheduled. New Spicy Way organizes auditors to participate in remote
audit training provided by third-party certification centers to promote the
efficient use of video communications to conduct supplier audits. In
2020, New Spicy Way conducted on-site audits of 14 suppliers and
online audits of 12 suppliers.

New Spicy Way has implemented a dual-supplier management system,
which means that each type of food material is supplied by two or more
suppliers in different regions. The dual supplier system has following
advantages:

° The supplies of food materials will remain stable. The dependence
on a single supplier and a single transportation chain is reduced.

° The price competition is maintained. An agreeable price is obtained
through the competition between suppliers, so that the Company
can provide consumers with the best delicacy at the lowest price.

° Unexpected risks are controlled. After the outbreak of the
COVID-19 pandemic in 2020, the supplier of monkfish, a core dish
of New Spicy Way, suspended its operation for 40 days. Thanks to
the dual-supplier system, the production was transferred to another
supplier located in a different region, thus ensuring the normal
supply of the dish.
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Intellectual Property Protection

The Company attaches great importance to the protection of intellectual
property rights, strictly abides by relevant laws and regulations such as
the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China, conducts patent
applications to protect its intellectual property rights and monitoring risks
of trademark infringement in major domestic cities. For the purpose of
obviating infringement on intellectual property rights, we conduct a
content review to publicity materials, materials or finished products with
trademarks.

Advertising Compliance

The Company strictly complies with the relevant provisions in the
Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China and makes publicity
on the basis of actual product to avoid false advertising or misleading
information to consumers. Advertisements on the official website and the
Company news published by other official media promotion channels are
examined and approved by relevant departments to ensure the accuracy
and authenticity of the information.

The Company was not aware of any significant violation against the laws
and regulations related to advertising in 2020.

Anti-Corruption

The Company continue to refine our internal anti-corruption management
to ensure the integrity management and operation of the Company. The
Company strictly abides by laws and regulations related to anti-
corruption, such as the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China and
the Interim Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery. The Company
optimizes the internal monitoring system based on operating status and
has formulated the Administrative Measures for Complaints and Reports,
together with the anti-corruption training system for all staff. In 2020, no
litigation regarding corruption was filed against the Company.
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The Company formulated the Anti-Commercial Bribery Clause as an
additional agreement to the majority-owned company’s commercial
contract, binding the commercial behavior of both parties to the contract.
In accordance with the internal management experience, we revised the
Administrative Measures for Complaints and Reports of Best Food (the
“Measures”), regulating the procedures for reporting, investigating,
handling and escalation, in relation to corruption, bribery, abuse of power
and fraud, and requiring all business segments to post the Measures in
the public areas of offices. In addition, HHG and New Spicy Way
implement various measures in supervision and management, based on
their actual circumstances.

HHG sets up various supervision channels such as working group, e-mail
and phone, so that employees can timely report issues. HHG ensures
that all reporting channels are fully accessible, and the issues reported
can be investigated in time. As for significant problems such as illegal
operation and potential fraud, the internal control department will carry
out timely follow-up. Once the facts are verified and confirmed, they
would be dealt with seriously.

New Spicy Way has explicitly stipulated in the inspection and punishment
for corruption and bribery in the Employee Handbook. It has no tolerance
for employees’ violations, such as bribery, embezzlement of public funds.
For employees who commit serious negligence of duty, illegal acts for
personal gains and fraud, New Spicy Way will pursue criminal
responsibility and economic compensation according to relevant laws.
Employees of New Spicy Way can, in an anonymous or real-name
manner, report any violation of corruption, bribery, abuse of power,
extortion and fraud. Reporting channels are posted in all restaurants.
According to the Detailed Implementation Rules for the Corruption
Complaint Box, the person in charge of the corruption complaint box
must comply with confidentiality requirements and is strictly prohibited
from disclosing the information about the whistleblowers.
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Expanding Community Interaction

Community investment

NO POVERTY
EFRE

& (%)

n

R HER

Involved in poverty alleviation projects;

HERE . o . SHEKAETRA
M*’i‘w Support youth development;
XFEEFER:

SUSTAINABLE CITIES

QUALITY EDUCATION
BURBE AIID COMMUNITIES

]

Spreading the Spirit of Winter Olympics

In 2020, HHG entered into a strategic partnership agreement with
Shougang Group and becomes the official partner of Shougang Sports.
HHG engaged Zhai Xiaochuan as the first brand spokesperson and Zhu
Yanxi as the product experience officer. A promotion activity was
launched and HHG applet would offered a 50% off discount on all
products on the second day of the winning of Shougang team, which
aimed to spread the concept of health and the spirit of competitive sports
to the society.

In 2020, HHG sponsored the ice hockey match of selected schools in
Beijing, providing a platform for elementary and middle schools to
communicate and show themselves on ice hockey. The initiative is to
bring more young people into the ice and snow sports, discovering and
cultivating talented players for the Beijing 2022 Winter Olympics, and
responding to the call of “800 milion people coming into the ice and
snow sports”.
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Build an interactive relationship with the community and
participate in community construction.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (“ESG”) REPORT (CONTINUED)

RE -#HERE

Assisting Hubei in Economy Recovery

The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic in early 2020 had great impact
on Hubei’'s economy, for which the compatriots across the country
showed great solicitude. HHG actively responded to the call and
participated in the “A Trip to Hubei by Well-known Enterprises” activity
themed on “Standing with Hubei and Helping Hubei” organized by the
All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce, the People’s
Government of Hubei Province and the China Society for Promotion of
the Guangcai Program, making contribution to the recovery of the
economy in Hubei Province.

HHG Chairman Zhao Shen participated in the “Wei Ai Hubei” live delivery
event, bringing in Hubei specialty products such as Wudang Taoist tea,
Fangxian mushrooms and Songhua eggs, and promoting Hubei
agricultural products through live broadcast, showing Hubei on the tip of
the tongue. HHG purchased a total of more than RMB100,000 worth of
goods for employee welfare and helped Hubei in this event.

Charitable Sale of Artworks

In September 2020, HHG participated in the charitable sale of artworks
of China Charity Day organized by Beijing Xicheng Enterprises and
Entrepreneurs Association. In this event, calligraphy and painting works
were collected by companies, and the proceeds from the sale of the
exhibited works would be raised by Beijing Xicheng Charity Association
for pandemic prevention and control. HHG actively collected calligraphy
and painting works for this charitable sale. On the day of the event, many
nearby residents came to the exhibition and enjoy the cultural life of the
community.
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Appendix — ESG Reporting Guide fisg—( BB - HERER
wREESDABR RS

Corresponding section

Area Aspect in the Report
gz =3 Key Performance Indicator #& 3% 15 12 HEXFEELH
Environmental A1 Emissions General Disclosure: Information on: Achieving Environmental-
IRIR Al HER Y (1)  the policies; and Friendly Operation —
(2)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations Emission Management
that have a significant impact on the issuer B IRBERET —
relating to exhaust air and greenhouse gas BEEYEW

emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.
—REE: BRAERIREREBHEEN  HKkkLE
BOEET AENBEEEEVNELESH:

M BE: R

2 EBETHIIMAREABEAXEZENHEBEEEK
RTENER -

A1.1 The types of emissions and respective Achieving Environmental-
emissions data. Friendly Operation —

A1.1 BERRY)1E 28 o AR B8 BE RRER o Environmental

performance

A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) B BB R —

greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, IR 1B 4B W

where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

A2 B (BE1) ke RHEE(BE2) R ERE
Mk E (AW E )&(ﬁﬂkﬁﬁ)"ﬁ J& (a0 LA
BES8EM BEIXMTE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (“ESG”) REPORT (CONTINUED)

Aspect
A

IRIE -

HTERE

& (%)

Key Performance Indicator #& 3 5 12

Corresponding section
in the Report
HEAREED

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)

A1.3

and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit
of production volume, per facility).

FEXEEREEYRE (AMEHE
REE(WMABEESEN BHRK

g) K (403
SHEETE) o

A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tons)

A1.4

A1.5

A1.5

A1.6

A1.6

and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit
of production volume, per facility).
FRESEEEREEYHES AEE) R (E
REE(WMLNEEEEN BEKMETE) °

Description of measures to mitigate emissions Achieving Environmental-
and results achieved. Friendly Operation —
AU R E R R ATEGKR - Emission Management
R BRI —
EIRHER
Description of how hazardous and non- Achieving Environmental-
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction Friendly Operation —
initiatives and results achieved. Emission Management
HIEEEEREEEEYN T EAREE RBR RERTF —
HEENEREEAISKRR - BB
Achieving Environmental-
Friendly Operation —
Litter Less Campaign
B BRI —
WEITH
BRERERBRAE ZZEZZFFR
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RE -#HERE &= (&)

Corresponding section

R EL) BB

A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by
type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in
’000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

Ao IREREI M EE R/ EERR(DE -

RIEH) BRENTETESTE) LEE
(MANEEZ%M - BEKRBETE) -

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).

A22 EREKEREE(MUSEEEMN B8ER
heEt &

A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives
and results achieved.
A2.3 LR 8 A B s st Bl R FTERIS AR -

A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

A2.4 it Sk BUE B KR £ R A A R R
It AR 5T & R PTG B RE -

LA B2

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished
products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced.

A25 Bl mPFTRBEEMEMES (AEAHE) &
(WMER)BEESMEE-
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Area Aspect in the Report
gz 1 Key Performance Indicator #& 3 5 12 HEAREEH
A2  Use of General Disclosure: Policies on the efficient use of Achieving Environmental-
Resources resources, including energy, water and other raw Friendly Operation —
materials. Resource Utilization
—REBER-BARERAER(EELER - KEREM B BERT -

BIEERF A

Achieving Environmental-
Friendly Operation —
Environmental
performance

R BRERI —
IRIBEN

Achieving Environmental-
Friendly Operation —
Resource Utilization

R RERLE —
BB IRF A

Our company uses
municipal water, with no
issue in sourcing water.

RARMERATHRAK £
SKER 8 A KR - &

o

Achieving Environmental-
Friendly Operation —
Environmental
performance

R BIRR —
RIBREN
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R #28RERHmE (A)

Corresponding section

Area Aspect in the Report
i = 1 Key Performance Indicator #& 3 5 12 HEAREEH
A3 The General Disclosure: Policies on minimizing the Achieving Environmental-
Environment  issuer’s significant impact on the environment and Friendly Operation —
and Natural ~ natural resources. Litter Less Campaign
Resources  —MEE: FE LT AAHBRERRAERER R RERF —
A3 IRERRA BEATEHEE - WEITH
= Achieving Environmental-
Friendly Operation —

A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of
activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage
them.

A HIMEBEHHRERRAERNERY
EREKNMEEEUALENITE -

Climate Change
B BRI —
Rt
Achieving Environmental
Friendly Operation
— Resource Utilization
R BRI —
BERNA

Achieving Environmental-
Friendly Operation —
Litter Less Campaign

B BRI —
WEITE

Achieving Environmental-
Friendly Operation —
Climate Change

R BRER —
AR Z1(E

Achieving Environmental
Friendly Operation —
Resource Utilization

R RERLE —
BERAA

BRERERLR —ZT-ZFFR
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (“ESG”) REPORT (CONTINUED)
R #28RERHmE (A)

Corresponding section

Area Aspect in the Report

i = 1 Key Performance Indicator #& 3 5 12 HEAREEH
Social B1 Employment General Disclosure: Information on: Cherishing Talents and
o Bl (&% (1)  the policies; and Caring for Employee

(2)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

—REE AEFEEE BERET IE

KE- R TERE 2t RERUAEHE

i 15 48 e AR I 9

M BE: R

@ BTHLITRRAABEAZENHBERR
RERE R -

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type,
age group and geographical region.

Bi.1 MR - EBIRAE - Fied R Kbz & 5o H
EEHEE -

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group
and geographical region.

Bl.2 R Fier kiR E D HEERK
LK o
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Development —
Employment and
Employee Rights
B BINK —
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Cherishing Talents and
Caring for Employee
Development —
Employment and
Employee Rights
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IRIE -

HTERE &= (&)

Corresponding section

Area Aspect in the Report
i = 1 Key Performance Indicator #& 3 5 12 HEAREEH
B2 Health and General Disclosure: Information on: Cherishing Talents and
Safety (1)  the policies; and Caring for Employee
B2 f@ms (2)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations Development —
that have a significant impact on the issuer Occupational Health and
relating to providing a safe working environment Safety
and protecting employees from occupational EA BIKE —
hazards. BERERRZR

—MRE: ABRAE2 THABERREETE
EREMBES

1
@

B2.1
B2.1

B2.2
B2.2

B2.3

B2.3

BR &
BTHETRRBEARENHEBERZR
REMEH -

Number and rate of work-related fatalities.
T AB R R o

Lost days due to work injury.

ATHBEAIIERE-

Description of occupational health and safety
measures adopted, how they are implemented
and monitored.

P IRMMBERREL2HEE UK
R ITRERGE -

BRERERLR —ZT-ZFFR
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Aspect

E-1=

RE -#HERE

& (%)

Key Performance Indicator #& 3 5 12

Corresponding section
in the Report
HEAREED

B3  Development
and Training
B3 #EEEIFII

B4

B4

Labor

Standards
& T AR

General Disclosure: Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.
—REE:AERABEBRTIERENTER
FAEEVBUR - f SR AIE S -

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender
and employee category (e.g. senior
management, middle management).
RUERLEEREF (W REREE -
BE)EASHNXIEEADL -

B3.1 RRE

B3.2 The average training hours completed per
employee by gender and employee category.
REBBRMEMRE S BHREETKX
BllEoRS=liss 8

B3.2

General Disclosure: Information on:

(1)  the policies; and

(2)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labor.

—MRIKEE  BED L E TRt S T -

n BE: R

@ BTHITRABEAZENHBEEAREK
REHE R

B4.1 Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labor.

B4l fitin st MIE B NEBAREE T KA
85 T o

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such
practices when discovered.

Ba2 i EFMBERNERB AR EHRBBIE
ERERE) 2 BR -

SRR
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Cherishing Talents and
Caring for Employee
Development —
Concerning for Employee
Development

B4 BIKEK —
BIB8 TR

Cherishing Talents and
Caring for Employee
Development —
Concerning for Employee
Development

B BIKK —
I T#RE

Cherishing Talents and
Caring for Employee
Development —
Employment and
Employee Rights

B4 BINEK —
EEEE IR

The company does not
have relevant violations.
Not applicable.
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Corresponding section

Area Aspect in the Report
i = 1 Key Performance Indicator #& 3 5 12 HEAREEH
B5 Supply Chain  General Disclosure: Policies on managing Staying Committed to
Management environmental and social risks of the supply chain. Healthy Food — Safe
B HEHEERE —MEER:-EEHEENREHUYSERBCR Meals

B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.

B5.1 @B S K HEREEE -

B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the

practices are being implemented, how they are

implemented and monitored.

Bs2 Wil ERMIS MM ERMED  MEATE
MEIOHERHE LR BRENNRT

NEERTIE -

BRERBERAT

Bl BERR —
o &

Insisting on Responsible
Operations — Social and
Environmental Risk
Management on Supply
Chain

BT BEALE — HE

wHehRERREE

Staying Committed to
Healthy Food — Safe
Meals
Bl BEARR —
BLAE

SE L
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RE -#HERE

& (%)

Corresponding section

Area Aspect in the Report
gz 1 Key Performance Indicator #& 3 5 12 HEAREEH
B6 Product General Disclosure: Information on: Staying Committed to

Responsibility
B6 EmAIE

(1)
@

the policies; and

compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising,
labeling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods
of redress.

—REE: ARMREERIRENRERY
2 BE BERMEBEFEARBRTEN

1 BE: R

@ BTHLITRRABBEAZENHBEERR
MEHEF -

B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.

%1EE%ELLFW%E$IQ HE {2 R IR
BmmARKTN B S

B6.2 Number of products and service-related
complaints received and how they are dealt

with.
B62 HEEMMNEMERBMWIEHFEE UAREY
FE e

B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing
and protecting intellectual property rights.
B6.3 fi it B 4 i N R[S M B EE A B ED

B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and
recall procedures.
B6.4 fi il B B F @2 ME m L W iEFr -
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Healthy Food
Bl BREKR
Insisting on Responsible
Operations
BT BEKE

No products to be recalled
for safety and health
reasons during the year.

RERRERZ 2 HERE
FZI2 e T 72 B W &) 2

Staying Committed to
Healthy Food —
Protection of Rights and
Interests
AL BERKR —
EmiRE

Insisting on Responsible
Operations — Intellectual
Property Protection

BT BEAKLE —

R a8k 7 IR

Staying Committed to
Healthy Food —
Safe Meals
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B AE



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (“ESG”) REPORT (CONTINUED)
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& (%)

Corresponding section

Area Aspect in the Report
i = 1 Key Performance Indicator #& 3 5 12 HEAREEH

B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and Staying Committed to
privacy policies, and how they are implemented Healthy Food — Carefree
and monitored. Dining

B6.5 MMl HE T ERHRE RBAEEK - WA AL BEKE —
BT RERTT A ERZER

B7  Anti- General Disclosure: Information on: Insisting on Responsible
corruption (1)  the policies; and Operations — Anti-
B7 k&S (2)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations Corruption

that have a significant impact on the issuer BT BEELE —
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money RE&ESF
laundering.

—RRE:-AEMNIEHRE R MFLEER

B

1 BE: R

2 ETHIITARABEAXENHEBEEEK
BEMEH o

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or
its employees during the reporting period and
the outcomes of the cases.

B71 RERBAY ETAAIKEEER ﬁjfa
BRNBETHARNBE RFALE

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-
blowing procedures, how they are implemented
and monitored.

Br2 it & R B HREF - L RBBEHAT

NEEERTTE -
BRERERBRAE ZZEZZFFR
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Area Aspect

i = 1 Key Performance Indicator #& 3 5 12

Corresponding section
in the Report
HEAREED

B8 Community  General Disclosure: Policies on community
Investment engagement to understand the needs of the
B8 #HEIEE communities where the issuer operates and to ensure
its activities take into consideration the communities’

interests.

—ﬂxiﬁﬁﬁ BRNMR2ERTBEEMELR
BEMEREXFIDEERLRMAMBEK -

B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
environmental concerns, labor needs, health,
culture, sport).

B8.1 B ¥ Bkt % & (ﬁu?ﬂz?
ko2 b

B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to
the focus area.

B2 EEXHMEMHAER (N EEM) -

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2020

BEER BIH

Expanding Community
Interaction

R - A

Standing Together Against
COVID-19

BT HRRR

Expanding Community
Interaction

R - L E B

Expanding Community
Interaction

HE - EmE

Standing Together Against
COVID-19

BT HRBR
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